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TR Property Investment Trust plc

The investment objective of TR Property
tnvestment Trust plc is to maximise
shareholders’ total returns by investing

in the shares and securities of property
companies and property related businesses
internationally and also in investment
property located in the UK.

INTRODUCTION

TR Property Investment Tiusl plc (the “Company” or the
“Trust™) was formed in 1905 and has been a dedicated
property investor since 1982 The Company 15 an
Investrnenl Trust and 1ts shares are premium hsted on the
London Stock Exchange.

BENCHMARK

The benchmark is Lhe FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed
Europe Capped Net Total Return index in Sterling.

INVESTMENT POLICY

The Company seeks to achieve 1ts objective by investing in
shares and secunties of property companies and property
related businesses on an international basis, although.
with a Pan-European benchmark, the majonty of the
investments will be located in that geographical area. The
Company also invests 1n iInvestment property located in
the UK only.

Further details of the Investment Palicies, the Asset
Allocalion Guidelines and policies regarding the use of
geanng are set cut In the Strategic Reporl on page 25 and
the entire portfolig 1s shown on page 18

INVESTMENT MANAGER

BMO Investment Business Limited acts as the Company's
allernative investment fund manager ("AIFM™) with
portfolio management delegated to Thames River Capital
LLP {"the Portfolio Manager” or "the Manager”) Marcus
Phayre-Mudge has managed the portfolio since 1 April
2011 and been parl of the fund Management team since
1997

INDEPENDENT BOARD

The Directors are all Independent of the Manager and
meet regularly to consider investment strategy, 1o monitor
adherence 1o the slaied objective and investment palicies
and to review performance. Detalls of how the Board
operates and fulfils its responsibilities are set out in the
Report of the Directors on page 47,

PERFORMANCE

The Financial Highlights for the current year are sel out
opposiie and Histonical Perfarmance can be found on
page 3 Key Performance Indicators are set out in the
Strategic Report on pages 26 and 27

RETAIL INVESTORS ADVISED BY IFAS

The Company currently conducts its affairs so that its
shares can be recommended by Independent Financial
Advisers (“IFAs™) In the UK to ordinary retall investors in
accordance with the Financial Conduct Authority ("FCA™)
rukes in relation to non-mainstream mvesiment products
and intends to continue to do so The shares are excluded
from the FCAS restnctions, which apply to non-mainstream
investment products, because they are shares in an
authorised investment trust

FURTHER INFORMATION

General shareholder information and details of how to
invest In TR Property Investment Trust ple, including an
investment through an iSA or saving scheme, can be
found on pages 111 and 112. This informaticn can also be
found on the Trust’s website www tiproperty.com

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

MIIAYIAD



Financial Highlights and Performance

Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March
202 2020 Change

Balance Sheet

Net asset value per share 417.97p 358.11p +16.7%
Shareholders’ funds (£'000) 1,326,433 1,136,453 +16.7%
Shares in issue at the end of the year (m) 3174 3174 +0.0%

Net debt's ) 16.5'?!1 7.6%

Share Price

Share price 392.50p 317.50p +23.6%
Market capitalisation £1,246m £1,008m +23.6%
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2021 2020 Change
Revenue
Revenue earnings per share 12.25p 14.62p -16.2%
Dividends®
Interim dividend per share 5.20p 5.20p +0.0%
Final dividend per share 9.00p 8.80p +2.3%
Total dividend per share ) 14.20p 14.00p +1.4%

Performance: Assels and Benchmark

Net Asset Value total return?t +20.7% “11.5%
Benchmark total return® +15.9% -14.0%
Share price total returns +28.3% -16.8%

Ongoing Charges™*

Including performance fee +1.40% +0.80%
Excluding performance fee +0.65% +0.61%
Excluding performance fee and direct property costs +0.63% +0.59%

1. Net debt is the 1otaf value of loan netes, loans (incuding notional exposure 1o CFDs and Tatal Retorn Swap) less cash as a proportion of net asset value.

2. Dividends per share are the dividends in respect of the financial year ended 31 March 2021. An interim dividend of 5.20p was paid in january 2021, A final dividend of
9.00p (2020: 8.80p) will be paid on 4 August 2021 to shareholders on the register on 18 June 2021,

The shares will be quoted ex-dividend on 17 June 2021,

3. The NAV Total Retum for the year is calculated by reinvesting the dividends in the assets of the Cornpany frem the relevant ex- didend date. Dividends are deemed
1o be reinvested on the ex-dividend date as this is the protocol used by the Company’s benchmark and other indices.

4. The Share Price Tolal Return is calculated by reinvesting the dividends in the shares of the Company from the relevant ex-dividend date.

5. Ongaing Charges are caltulated in accordance with the AIC methodology. The Ongoing Charges ratios provided in the Company’s Key informaticn Document ate
calculated in line with the PRUPs regulation which is difterent to the AIC methadology.

6 Considered to be an Alternative Performance Measure as defined on page 98.
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Historical Performance
For the years ended 31 March

201 2012 2013 2014 2015 2006 2017 2098 2019 2020 m

Performance for the year:

Total Return (%)

NAVM 15.4 -8.5 215 224 28.3 8.2 80 155 91 -Nn.5 20.7
Benchmark™ 15.2 -8.9 17.8 14.9 213 5.4 6.5 16.2 5.6 -14.0 15.9
Share Price®@® 2.6 9.5 25.8 377 29.5 -1.6 %1 25,5 6.2 -16.8 28.3

Shareholders’ funds {£'m}

Total 670 588 684 805 1,010 1,065 118 1,256 1328 1,136 1,326
Ordinary shares 531 470 684 809 1,010 1,065 1,118 1,256 1328 1,136 1,326
Sigma shares®™ 139 118 - - - - - - - - -
Ordinary shares

Net revenue (pence per share)

Earnings 6.94 707 6.74 8.09 8.89 8.36 11.38 13.22 14.58 14.62 12.25
Dividends® 6.00 6.60 700 745 770 835 10.50 12.20 13.50 14.00 14.20

NAY per share (pence) 20710 18360 21525 25494 31812 33556 35242 39564 418.54 358T 41797

share price (pence) 17710 15450 186.30 24750 310.50 29750 31450 382.50 39400 31750 392.50
Indices of growth

Share pricet? 100 87 105 140 175 168 178 216 222 179 222
Net Asset Value® 100 89 104 123 154 162 170 19 202 173 202
Dividend Net® 100 0 17 124 128 139 175 203 225 233 237
RPI 100 104 107 110 m 12 116 120 123 126 128
Benchmark® 100 87 99 105 126 130 134 144 147 123 140

Figures have been prepared in accordance with IFRS.

(A) The NAV Total Retum for each year is calculated by reinvesting the dividends in the assets of the Company from the relevant ex-dividend date. Dividends are
deemed to be reinvested at the ex-dividend date as this is the pratocel used by the Company’s benchmark and other indices. This is considered to be an Alternative
Performance Measure as defined on page 98.

(8) Benchmark index: composite index compiising the F1SE EPRA/NARET Developed Eurape TR index up to March 2013, and thereatter the FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed
Europe Capped Index. Source: Thames River Capitat.

{C) The Share Price Total Return is calculated by reinvesting the dividends in the shates ot the Company from the relevant ex-cividend date.
(D) The Sigma share class was launched in 2007 and Sigma shares were redesignated as Ordinaty shares on 17 Decernber 2012

(E) Dividends per share in the year to which their declaration relates and not the year they wese paid.

(F) Share prices only. These do not reflect dividends paid.

(G) Capital only values. These do not reflect dividends paid.

(H) Price only value of the indices set out in {B) above.
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Chairman’s Statement

David Watson
Chairman

Whilst underlying earnings were initially
impacted by the pandemic, the message
from the vast majority of our invested
companies, which largely excludes
owners of retail property, has been a
considered and strong resumption in
dividends.

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

INTRODUCTION

The start of this reporting penod was very close to the
recent COVIC-19 influenced nadir of global equity markets
In March 2020. Since then equity markets have been
determrnedly focused on the future rather than reflecting
on the more immediate economic data and human
tragedy of the pandermc. As a result, I'm able to report
heallhy returns for the year with a net asset value ("NAY")
total return of 20.7%, well ahead of the benchmark total
return of 15 9%, The share price tatal return was even
stronger at 28 3% as the discount narrowed over the year

Stock markets have taken great comfort from the huge
amounl of central bank stmulus and state aid {or both
corporates and individuals. Since November 2020, this
sense of suppart has been augmented by optimism
following the announcements and subsequent rollout of a
range of vacane programmes

The ¢risis has forced a dramatic change in the way we work,
consume and relax Over the last year gur management team
has pondered not anly the pace of these changes across a
wide range of property sectars but also thew sustainability
ance the world reverts to "the new narmal”

Over the last quarter of the financial year under review
and into the start of the new one, we have seen very
dramatic share price movements as Investors rotated
from companies offering Lhe safety of secure Income
towards those offering greater nsk, particularly where the
companies were trading at large discounts to their asset
value Your manager's repart will examine In more detail
how the portfolio structure has evolved through these
thematic rotations



REVENUE RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

Earnings for the year were 12.25p per share, 16% lower
than the prior year earnings of 14 62p.

The headline earnings per share fiqure 1s slightly deceptive,
earnings before tax were 24% lower than the previous year,
but a significant Lax refund and some further pror penod
withholding lax recoveries reduced Lhe revenue tax charge
from an effeclive rale of 11.3% 1n 2020 to just 1.9% for the
financial vear to March 2021, Further detarls of this are set
out in the Manager’s Report

The Board has announced a final dividend of 9.00p per
share, brinqing the full year dividend to 14.20p per share
(2020: 14.00p) an overail increase of 14% on the pnor year
dividend The Beard 15 conscious of the income aspirations
of some of our investor base and, although this dividend
15 not fully covered, the Company has significant revenue
reserves avallable. As long as the Board has a reasonable
expectation of income returning to previous levels in the
medium term, the Board 15 happy to maintain a modest
level of dwidend progression

REVENUE OUTLOOK

Within our portiohio, the manager anticipates income

for the year Lo March 2022 Lo be split into three broadly
equal parts wilh one third suffering a reduction and in
some cases significant cuts or even suspensions, a third
with income relurning to pre-pandemic levels, and the
balance offering some level of Increase We do not expect
total income levels Lo teturn Lo pre-COVID-19 levels within
the current financial year atthough we do expect an
improvement relative to 2020/21

After allowing for the propased dividend, revenue reserves
will stll amount te 12.18p per share giving plenty of
capadty for the board to supplement the dividend again

In 2021/22. providing a return te pre-Covid levels can
reasonably be antiapated in the medivm term

ordinary Share Class Performance: Total Return over 10 years (rebased)

200 I Benchmark Totat Return [l TR Property Share Price Total Return . TR Property Net Asset Value Total Retum

Mar-10 Mar-11 Mar-12 Mar-13 Mar-14 Mar-15

Mar-16 Mar-17 Mar-18 Mar-19 Mar-20 Mar-21
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Chairman'’s Statement conted

NET DEBT AND CURRENCIES

foGednm Hluctyennd ronsa

donnstrates the senatt of to- Heshiliz,
seth o Bese dow el suparted b our fred
wodeht ond the mojanT, coresed Bricanh the
A sl s cnd Sapnsees et gh coatets
B it UFEsT)

ST EHVATSEETY

st g

Lanaer-toi

stetheg wocd gl

GOt e Far oo Se e
3 aral e e ed

RUELESE
rane Sk

o

DISCOUNT AND SHARE REPURCHASES

[T I A B R A

BT S | B I TR I RN !
b Froosm om el Jthe o :

T L ds L., v - P

" - o y hor St enn o ]

i f - Y S -
\ I P UTPRRA I SR I

[ N R : sl
teos] ot o

TR PROPIRT Y INUTSTMENT TRUST

Mo shars nus-hacks were made n he
anteees ide 2umroas panrts duning the e

st enrunderd g stocks wvere also troding onode
discaunts ond our marsaer focesed our ceniEcl G0 wrose

OppOTiLeites

THE BOARD
Femgateful to sy

SUTR for the s sdopors e omimeret ey e i

SRR I R TSI (T

s Aloved o

Boovd collecquss eed 1o the t2em

sl Lomn

cdoartuedl, oo neeesacr, Toongh

e T ooyt s
oo

all tone

at o
‘i“,lt“ll_r;

R

R TS T T S N TR TR I AN BTRR R RS IR I O
skills ardleamipiteienl o s

cort sy ceth g e

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
FACTORS ('ESG’)

P e e e fehe,

o B s !
1| |- R
A N HE A J
K L A
0 (TR [T froeo
| L .
& . O ' L ! :
It | R B PSS :
. 5 o - AT f
. . ' fe AL R



AWARDS

The Trust was the winner in the Specialist Equities
category of the Citywire Investment Trust Awards. This is
particutarly pleasing as we were in competition with Trusts
specialising in a broad range of equities and alternatives.

CITYWIRE
WINNER

INVESTMENT TRUST 2020
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Manager’s Report

b\

Marcus Phayre-Mudge
Fund Manager

Capital is clearly seeking real assets.
There has been several recent instances
of private equity acquiring listed
properties companies. This will continue
if public companies are undervalued.
Such market dynamics provides ys with
a strong valuation underpin.

TR PROPERTY |NVESTMENT TRUST

PERFORMANCE

The Net Asset Value tolal return for the year to 31 March
2027 was 20 7%, ahead of the benchmark total return of
15 9%. Al the inlenm stage, | reported that Continental
European property companies had significantly
outperformed their UK counterpadts {returns of 11 3% v
2.3%) The secand half saw the complete reverse. The UK's
performance 1n the second halfl was so strong thal the

12 month performance of 191% (in GBP) autperlormed
Continenlal Furope at 18 7% (in EUR).

The initial inpact of the pandemic on European real estate
equilies saw the benchmark fail 36% from the pre-Covid
peak of 19th February to the trcugh on 18 March 2020. Our
financial year therefore started close to these depressed
levels and the steady recovery since then 1s reflected i
the healthy figures for the year under review However it
is worlh noting that collectively the sector remains nearly
15% below the pre-Covid peak.

This exlraordinary year has clearly been like no other and

the qulf in perfermance of the different real estate sectars
{and Lher respective listed companies) fequires the same

adjective. The year can be neatly divided into pre and post
the vaccine announcement

From March o October investors focused on owning
sustainable, pandemic procf Income such as residential,
sypermarkets and healthcare alongside logistics,
warehousing and industnial where the underlying tenants’
businesses had remained open and 0 many cases

were thrwing Consumer facing sectors such as retal,
restaurants, hotel and leisure were shunred. wWe divide our
universe of pan European real estate companies nto 26
pespoke groups and over the 7 months from the trough on
18th March 2020 cur logistics / industaal group returned
+548  German residential +60%, healthcare -36% whilst
LK retail fell 45% and European retail returned just 1%
London retail aiso suffered falling 26% as tounsm levels
(both domestic and international} coliapsed

However, from November onwards we saw a complete
volte face as investors focused on the possibility of

a normalising economic outlook post the vacane
breakthrough In our worid that meant buying back into
the consumer facing sectors Stocks exposed 1o these



sectors had been standing al laige discounts given the
market’s expeclation of further assel value declines and
they enjoyed significant price recovery Stocks such as
Hammerson and Shaftesbury, who had both camed out
emergency capital raises (more on Lhis later), enjoyed
100% and 85% price appreciation from their respective
{pre-vacone announcement) capital raise prices.

The Trust was defensively positioned as we entered the
pandermic with overweights to Eurcpean PRS (private
rented sector) particularly in Germany, supermarkets

(UK and Nordics), healthcare (mainly UK) and logistics /
industrial across both the UK and Europe These exposures
drove much of the relative outperformance from March Lo
November,

London exposed stacks suffered particularly as affice
workers have not returned (we estimate office utilisation
rates at (25% versus a Continental average of over 50%)
and this combined with the coflapse in tounsm (both
damestic and international) has temporanly hollowed out
our global aity Qur UK office exposure was concentrated
in decentralised offices through 1S and Mckay whilst

we avoided London retail focused names such as Capco
and Shaftesbury as well as lhose businesses with short
occupational leases such as Workspace.

As the ‘relief / reopening / reflation’ trade gathered
momentum, I closed our underweight exposure 1o
European shepping centres, boughl back inte some Central
London retail and renewed our exposure to office markets
particularly those cities with the shorter commule times.
Essentially  was stll shying away from the largest twa
conurbations (Londaon and Paris) whilst adding Lo smaller
ones such as Madnd and Dublin and maintaining expesure
to decentralised office sectors in the UK, Sweden and
Germany

The pandemic has turned much ‘on its head” and in aur
corner of the equity market 1t was the peiformance ol
Swiss property companies which was much weaker than
history would have predicted Traditionally a safe haven,
these stacks did not iminially recaver from the March lows
with investors Tocused on the problematic retail exposure
of the largest listed companies. We continue to be
underweight the group.
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Another posilive surprise has been in self-storage which
reported very steady numbers through the worst of Lhe
year. Whilst our slock selection in the UK was correct
{(Safestore tolal return +27% versus Big Yellow +14%), the
runaway success was Shurguard, the Continental player
returning +48%, which we didn't own_ In our defence, the
stock enjoyed strong demand from index trackers as it
entered vanous benchmarks midyear

Most of 2020 was an understandably subdued

penod for MaA corporate acuvily with one particular
exception, Norwegian offices Entra (where we were a
top 20 shareholder) was the subject of 3 bidding war
between two Swedish listed players, Castelium and
samhallsbyggnadsbolaget (aiso known as SBB) Whils!
neither successfully gained conlrol, the share price total
return was 57%, our most successful investment in the
perod

ihe portfolio has some gearing This was reduced in
February and March 2020 but has subsequently returned
lo pre-pandemic levels. Why have geanng in volatile
limes? The Trust continues to take advantage of its

tlosed ended structure and holds a number ol ilhguid
small cap stocks. These well-run campanies {even when
exposed to outperforming subsectars) often suffer from
Iimited investor attention, being deemed too small. As a
consequence, i nsing markets they often underperform
therr larger brethren (in market parlance their 'beta’ is less
than one). Adding some gearing helps compensate for
these lower beta names. Qur expenence 1s that over ime
the underlying property fundamentals will be recogmised
and, if nat, then the market will take themn private or
merge them together. Our physical property exposure also
sits oulside our benchmark and additianal geanng ensures
that we are not underexpased to equities versus our
benchmark given that a proportion of capital 1s invested in
physical property.

OFFICES

Of all the segments of the commercial real estale
landscape, the future demand lor offices remamns the
hardest Lo forecast. The two undeniabie consequences of
the pandemic, for this assel dass, has been the realisation
that employees of corporates of alf sizes can work
remotely {for lang periods) 1f required and secondly that

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST 9
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Managet’s Report oot e

the next generation of ‘best in class’ office accommodation
will be ubhsed very differemtly with tenants having new
priorities Bullt into these demands will be the overarching
need for energy efficency, carbon neutrahity and
sustainatulity through the hfe cycle of the building.

The take up figures for the last year {across the 15 major
oitres we monitor) offers liltle comparative value given the
inabifity for businesses to physically relocate in many of
these markets fram March 2020 Taking London as a case
in point, Savills reported thal West End take up fell from
4.4 sg {Lin 2015 1o 17mwn 2020 Office wlilisation rates
through 2020 and into 2021 have vaned hugely. A broad
rule af thumb was that the darger the city {and the longer
the average commute time) the lower the office utibsation
rate. Generally the smaller ciies also had higher levels of
COmmuting by private transport or where workers were
usling overground public transport Scandinavian and Swiss
cities have seen almost narmalised utilisation rates whilst
London ard Paris remain sub 30%. Looking forward, what
15 Impartant to us 15 the amount of new space which was
scheduled to complete (construction was halted for very
shoit penods 10 most markets) and whether there are
signs of demand as we mave Into the post vacane pernod.

Looking acrass Furope as 3 whole, the combined effect of
reduced leasing activity and construction completions led
to 100bps increase 1n vacancy e an average of 6 9% (BNP
data) This single statistic clearty hides 3 wide range of
levels. Unsurprisingly, tondon and Paris have expernenced
the greatest increases from 5% Lo nearly 8% but Dublin
collects the wooden spoan wilh vacancy Increasing ta
over 9% This 1s a good example of a small market where
a (temporary) demand strike meets a number of large
completions and refurbishments However the historicaily
low levels of vacancy in many cities prior to the pandermic
have insulated most markets, with modest downward
movements in prime rents recarded across the German
BIg 6, Milan, Madnid, Oslo. Amsterdam and Stockholm

The detivery of new office buildings has aiso been
deferrad, particularly for tall buldings. The hew Landon
Architecture’s Annual Tall Buifdings Survey recorded

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

a3 27% decline in planning applications for buldings

over 20 storeys in 2020 when compared with 2015 We
were surpnsed that the fall wasn't larger but 73% of all
apphications were 1 the lalter part of the year and hints at
developer confidence regarding demand fer new build.

Investment demand has remained very resilient almost
regardiess of short-term weakness in occupaticnal
markets. The weight of capital seeking real assets is

a theme wiich will recur through this report. The nise

in the long end of the curve as the reflation theme
gathers momentym 1s proving very damaging for lixed
ceme structures High gquaiity offices - offering large lot
sizes - with secure income delivering 3.5-4% net yield

15 attracive versus negaiive yielding sovereign bonds,
Further up the nisk curve, opportumstic capital also remains
very active and hsted development specialists such as
Great Portland Estates and Derwent London have found it
hard 1o deploy capital amidst fierce competition

The 2021 CBRE EMEA Investor Intentions Survey highlights
Londen as still the most attractive cily for mvestment

In Eurcpe with an estimated €40-45bn of global equity
looking to be deployed into the market acioss all types
of buildings. This 1s the highest figure since the survey
starting tracking demand in 2012 Whilst transaction
volumes slowed last year, the first two months of 2021
{traditionally a guret time) have seen volumes reach
£875m greater than the same period in 2019. Part of the
London attraction 15 that yields didn't compress dunng
the Brexit uncertainly making the ¢ty look much cheaper
than other big European cities Post the EU-UK Trade and
Cooperation Agreement we expect this gap to narrow

RETAIL

The MSCI/ IPD data for the 12 months to March 2021 saw
all retarl property capital vaiues fall 12 8% with a serious
acceferation in the decline of shopping cenire values
which fell 25 5% ogver the last 12 months. In the intenms,

s commented that we felt the valuation commumity were
behind the times due to their requirerment to look at deal
evidence Essentially, in fast mowving markets the published
figures will already be out of date. Stock markets know



this and retail landlords across the globe have been
trading at very large discounts to their (no longer vatid)
last published figures

The woes of retail are well understocd The pandemic
has accelerated trends which were well established.
Reopening of econcries will see footfall return to
shopping centres but the levels of sustainable rents
remain the subject ol market forces. In the UK the ioss
ol a huge number of well known brands either through
bankrupltcy or retreat has resulted in average vacancy
levels i shapping centres reaching over 15% (MSCI data)

This means the negotiation boot remains firmly on the
tenants’ foot and we predict a further 15% falls in rental
values The one area where there are clear signs of price
stablisation 15 1n retail warehousing. Open air with plenty
of free parking, this type of retail asset sits well n an
amai-channel environment where retailer margins are
maximised through click and collect. Affordability 1s the
eternal watchword and whilst there are some parks with
very Migh rents {often [ashion retaller fed) the majonty will
see modest declines in rental values. Occupancy cosl ratios
are also not buidened by escalating service charges

Across Europe, the picture 15 more nuanced. Valuers are
even more conservative than their UK counterparts and
capitalisation rates are yet to move matenaily. In some
countries, retailers have been given huge amounts of
government support and as a result rental delinguency

15 generally lower than in the UK. In addition, many
shopping centres are anchored by hypermarkets (which
have remained open) and nol department stores {3 UK/
US concest no longer fit lor purpose beyond a handful

of tourist destinations such as Selfndges and Galernes
Lafayette) There have been lower levels of retaller
bankruptcy across Continental Eurgpe and we put

this down to two factors less overrenting and the UK
insolvency legislation On this latter point, a huge number
of UK retailers have taken advantage of the CVA (company
voluntary administration) to force landlords {generally a
farge credilor) to accept corporate reconstructions which
unduly damage their interests. A recent High Court ruling
involving the overly indebted relailer New Look, reinforced
thrs tenant friendly leqislation
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Investors remain very crcumspect towards Lhis assel class.
Income insecunty has resulted 1n investors requinng much
higher initial yields. CBRE estimate that UK prime shopping
centre yields have moved from 4.5% to 7% in the last

5 years with poorer secondary schemes in the high teens
or literally unsaleable. Retail warehousing has bucked the
depressing trend al least from an investor perspective
Investors are increasingiy confident that they are able

to measure tenant affordability and this is the key lo
detesmining pricing. In the 13st couple of months we have
seen competitive bidding for a number of retait warehouse
schemes, something not seen since 2018

DISTRIBUTION AND INDUSTRIAL

UK industrial and logistics take up hit a record 597m sg ft

In 2020 Whilst the pandemic suppressed demand in many
other parts of the property market, 1t clearly stimulated
logistics and business activity which utihsed industrial
property. Amazan again accounted for a sizeable {20%)
portion of the aclwly and it was this XL segment (250,000 +
sq ft) which was the major beneficiary of the surging online
demand The online share of retail sales rose from 19 2% In
2019 t0 27.9% 1 2020 hitting a new tugh of 36 3% in January
2021 as we returned to lockdown This will scale back as we
recpen but the boost to online scale and efficiency 15 here to
stay. Supply has responded but has been more than matched
by this demand As a consequence, supply has fallen ta
73.4m sq ft, down 6% on the year, and this tighteming has
occurred in every size brackel

Rental growth continues to match on but there has been
a broadening of growth rates across Lhe regions. Gieater
Lendon and the East Midlands recorded growth of aver
7% whilst average rates across the country at 3.9%. Such
strong rental growth, the secure income and the positive
outlook has driven both domestic and international buyers
to pay record peces for this sector whether 1t 1s last mile
urban units, XL big boxes or terraces of well located
industnal units. Pnme yields are 3 5 to 4% and even short
income 15 not deterring inveslors as evidenced by the sale
of our Bristol distribution umit at 4.5% imitial yield wath

3.5 years unexpired.

The same picture of rude health 1s evident across
Cantinental Europe. According to BNP Lake up increased

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST L1
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14% across the 6 fargest Furopean economies and vacancy
rates dropped to 5.5%, therr lowest and all against a
backdrop of a sharp contraction i GDP Again 1t was a
surge in e-commerce and home delivery which drove
demand. Pnme vyields across Europe tightened 250bps in
2020, matching the UK with no signs of decompression
even as the long end of the curve nses. Investment
demand 15 truly glabal with US and Asian institutional
capital competing with more domestic long lerm capital
all determined Lo participate n this structural shult

RESIDENTIAL

As expecled the sectar has remained highly resilient
duning the pandemic The majenty of our investments are
in German and Swedish housing where rents are subject
to state control. The remaining expasure 1s Finland and the
UK where rents are open-market. The former offer greater
security with rents bied to indexation whilst the latter
offers mare opportunity to capture markel growth but
with the commensurate nsk If vacancy rises and market
rents fali Dunng the cnisis, the secunty of income and very
high occupancy levels resylted in the sector retaiming its
populanty German housing has expenenced prce rnses in
virtuaily all its sub-markets

As explained earher, Berlin remained the oullier

as the State of Berhin imposed a 5 year rent {reeze
{(Mietendeckel) The subsequent Constilutienal Court ruling,
which confirmed Lhat rent controls are determined at the
Federal, nat State level, carme Just after the year end in
mid-April We are pleased with this outcome and the share
prices of both Deutsche wohnen {4 4% ¢f net assets) and
Phoenix Spree (2 5% of net assels) responded pasitively
Newr construction of apartments 1n Berlin had all but dned
up as developers awaited the gutcome of Lthe appeal
Berlin remains the cheapest capital aity in Western Europe
in which to rent an apartment (f you can find ane) The
desire of a feft-wing local authonty to keep 1t that way
regardless of the side effect of shutting out new migrants
through the consequential collapse in the supply of new
homes has been suitably rebufled

ALTERNATIVES

THis graup encompasses sectors that have thrived
(supermarkets, healthcare, setf-storage) 1n the crisis and

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

those which have not {student accommodation, hotels)
Share price performance was an amphfied 1eflection of
not only the underlying property performance but also
the dramatic shift in investor sentiment Self storage
share prices have traditionally performed poorly in
slowing econormic conditions s the income 15 considered
short term and volatile. However the pandemic has
focused investors’ minds on the emerging strength af
this sector where a small group of operalors (mostly
listed companies) have the finanaal muscle to dorminate
the price comparnison webhsites. Another emerging trend
has been the increasing business usage of a product
tiadibonally seen as the domain of private cusiomers,
Businesses have seen the ments of immediate, hassle free
access to short of longer term storage The supply chain
disruplion during the pandemic heightened the need for
space as the manltra became ‘a littte more Just In case and
a httle less just in time” Qur self storage group returned
+46% fram the low point (18th March 2020) to the end
ol Oclober. However, from November 2020 to the end of
Mareh 2021 they have collectively returned just <4.1%

A classic example of a switch in sentimenl as investors
rotated away from the ‘Covid relative winners’ group 1nto
the value names which had underperformed and lnaked
very cheap on histonc metncs

I another alternatives’ sub-sector we expenenced the
complete reverse Student accommodation businesses
suffered a collapse (n income and Unite (our only
exposure) led the fietd in refunding rents which was the
corfect PR strategy but depleted therr top ine. The well
documented difficulties for students through the last
two academic years and the complete inability for many
overseas students to enroll physically impacted investor
sentiment with the sub-sector falling 46% between 15th
Febiuary and 18th Marcn 2020 and then slaging a weak
recovery of just +17% from then to the end of October
Whilst this perfarmance compares poorly with self slorage,
since the beginnming of hovember the sub-sector has
rallied 30% as the hkelihood of the reopening of tertiary
education iImproved

Supermarkets have continued to attiact investor
attention Qur exposure s through Supermarket Income
REIT (UK} and Qbus (Sweden and Finland) Supermarket



Income REIT raised a total of £490m in three separate
transacticns through the year and now has a markel

cap of over £900im1 Qbus alsy 1aised captlal (SEK

S00m} i two tranches to make further acquisitions The
larger supermarket operators have been able Lo altracl
customers through their online netwoerk which the hard
discounters (Lidl, Aldiy are not able to offer. volumes

and margins will normabise post the pandemic but these
operators have had the opportunity o prove the resilience
of their omni-channel model which ulilises fast mile
distnibution from their network of stores. It 1s one of the
few parts of the retarl landscape where physical stores are
truly integral to the online joumey.

DEBT AND EQUITY MARKETS

Properly companies remained busy on debt refinancings
throughout the pandermic and the huge amount of central
bank support and government stimulus ensured a healthy,
hquid market where pricing did not weaken. According to
EPRA, €15.2bn was raised in 2019 at an average coupon of
1.8% and 2020 saw €15 6bn at a cost of 1.6% These figures
are not directly comparable as the mix of debt offenngs in
each period was different but they are a clear indicator as to
the health and price stability in the debt markets. German
residential companies were aga:n busy with Yonovia raising
€2.5bn in four transactions barrowing 10-year money al 1%.
Later in Qctober, Gecina, Europe’s largest office REIT raised
€200m 10 2 2034 term bond at 0.86%.

Early in the crisis, we saw a number of strong businesses
trading at premiums raise equity capital for opportunistic
expansion. This was in sectors with clear underlying
demand. namely healthcare (Assura, Aedifica, Primary
Health Properties), self-starage (Big Yellow), logistics/
industrnial (LondonMetric, Seqra, VGP ), supermarkets
{Supermarket Incomne REIT, Cibus) and German residential
{vVonovia, ADQ Properties, LEG). The Autumn saw
opportunisiic raises in Sweden and Norway (Balder,
Klovern and Norwegian Properties} a regien which had
experienced low levels of lockdown restriclions. More
recently in February and March this year we saw renewed
activity in the UK, as the vacane rollout improved
sentiment, with raises from Target Healthcare, LXI, Tritax
Furabox and Supermarkel Income REIT again. Continental
European raises in 2021 have so far been confined to
healthcare (Cofimmma) and student accommodation (Xior)
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Post the summer we saw the beginning of an expected
surge of more defensive raises as companies finally
came under cashflow and valualion pressure. In the end
it was Just a handful of retail focused names who had
been mismanaging their balance sheels long before

the pandemic Hammersen's £600m raise effectively
recapitalised Lhe balance sheet with a 24 for 1 nghts 1ssue
accompanted by the (previously announced) departure ol
the CEO completing the overdue C-suite shuffle of Char,
CEQ and CFO In late Oclober, Shaftesbury announced 2
£300m placing and open offer. Looking back their timing
was spectacularly unfortunate as the announcement of the
first vaccines came less than a fortnight later,

These game changing announcements iImmediately
altered expectations and there 1s nowhere better to
illustrate the point than the corporate saga at Unibail-
Rodamco-Westfield {URW). URW had announced a €9bn
‘Reset’ plan comprising €3.5bn capital raise, dividend
cancellation and a planned €4bn of disposals A group

ol aclivist sharehelders lead by Leon Bressler (the CEQ

of Unibail from 1992 lo 2006) launched a campaign to
oppose these AGM proposals and launch an alternative
strateqy which did not include a deeply discounted capital
raise. They proposed the sale of the US {ex Westlield)
portfolio and a relurn Lo their roots as an owner of
prime European shopping centres. Their iming was
fortunate, with the 16th Novernber AGM coming just
after the vaccine announcement and Lhe improvement in
investoi senliment even for deeply indebted businesses.
Essentially convinaing investors that they didn't need

lo put ‘good money after bad” and that the self help
strategy would succeed They were successful in therr
campaign and shareholders voted against the 'Reset’
plan This led to the departure of the Chairman, CEQ

and CFQ and the promotion of existing senior managers
to the Board. The share price, which had troughed at
€35 per share, subsequently doubled amidst the closing
of short posiiens This corporate tale neatly encapsulates
the dramatic change 1n mvestor senliment (and pricing
of previously unloved businesses) which we saw fiom
November onwards.

INVESTMENT ACTIVITY - PROPERTY SHARES

Turnover (purchases and sales divided by two) totalled
£462m equaling to 36% of the average nel assets over
the period. This was broadly in ine with last yvear’s

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT JRUST 13
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We increased the capacity on our ICBC loan facility duning
the year and the remaining loans were renewed al
existing levels, We did see small increases on margins
on some renewals. We also focked at the potential to
take out new or extend our fonger-term debl Our Euro
denominated loan nate 15 due for repayment 1n 2026 and
the Sterling note in 2037, however Lthe flexibility of the
short- term facilities is valuable in more volatle markets
and has certainly worked well for us in the current year.

We continue to explore new oplions i all markets.

OUTLOOK

As economies emerge [rom the gnp of the pandemic,
Investors have focused on assessing whether the damage
{or growth} was lemporary, longer lasting or permanent.
Resl estate investars are no exception and the range

of premiums / discounts to net asset values of listed
companies highlights the breadth of expectations acrass
the property spectrum The difficulty 1s that there s no
precedent far the profile of recovery in tenant demand
across so much of this asset class Clearly existing
structural shifts have been accelerated and new ones have
emerged which may prove more permanent than the
markets currenthy expect All of this uncertainty leads us o
focus on wncome sustainability and those markels where -
if demand does return - supply 1s constrained

Whilsl tenant demand 15 hard to gauge we do benefit
froam a benign financing environment Debt markels are as
accommodating as they have ever been, even if the long
end of the curve 15 11sINg We see no reason for margins to
widen 1n the neai term. Inflationary pressuses are bullding
and hixed income asset values reflect these expectations
Property offers income which 1s ted either directly
{index-linked) or indirectly (rental growth) to economic
expansion Qur intention 1s to remain focused on areas
where that income 1s hoth sustainabie and where It offers
growth

In the near term, we aIm to maintain the exposure to the
ofivate rented residential sector (particularly in Germany
and Sweden) as the market continues o undervalue not
aniy the quatity of those earmings but also the steady
growth profile. There 1s sk - in Germany - that a left
wing coaliton government would amend the current

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

federal law resulting n local cities getling more control
gver rents. However the rent freeze in Beriin (over the
last 18 months) resuited in a reduction i the number of
avallable apartments as well as a slowing in the pace of
new apartment delivery We trust lhat common sense
will prevail aver politicat dogma. Elsewhere, undervalued
Income streams are evident in supermarkets and in

parts of the healthcare market Alongside index-linked
sustainability we will also maintain exposure to the
greatest growth opportunities. The structural shifts in
retail behaviour are still angoing. Evolution in the speed
of delivery and post pandemic supply chain dynamics

will drive growth across the logistics landscape from big
box"to 'last mite” We will continue to own the developers
where we see increases in the value of landbanks as well
as growing development margins Investor demand for the
end product shows no sign of abating

Office markets will remain volatile Businesses will spend
tme working out their requirements in a post pandemic
world Interaction and collaboration will drive office usage
Tasks that can be fulfilled without physical interaction will
be timetabled for remote working A new balance will
develop with one sure fire certamnty, the premium being
attached to bestin class newly bullt space with complete
envirgnmental credentials, Developers will respond to
this demand and we expect an acceteration in buldings
being dentified for refurbishment earlier than previously
envisaged Obsclescence of the existing office stock will
accelerate

Post the year end In early May, St Modwen Properties
annaunced that an offer af 5420 per share from
Blackstone, a 24% premium to the last published hNAV
had the support of the board This company has 3 large
strateqgic landbank, a tugh quality logistics portfolio and
a growing housebulding unit and whilst it was trading
lose to 1ts asset value, private equity clearly feelsitis
undervalued This is a remunder, as stated 1n a number of
previous reports, that the depth of both equity and debt
availability underpins histed company valuations

Marcus Phayre-Mudge
Fund Manager

3 June 2021



Portfolio

Distribution of Investments @
as at 31 March g
b iral 201 2020 2020 b
£'000 % £000 % a
UK Securities E
- quoted 395,644 28.3 352,188 30.4 3
UK [nvestment Properties 83,071 5.9 94,510 81
UK Total 478,715 34.2 446,698 385
Continental Europe Securities
- quoted 921,801 65.8 708,597 611
investments held at fair value 1,400,516 100.0 1,155,295 996
~ CFD (creditor)/debtor’ (141) - 8,698 07 Bl UK Securities
- TRS creditor? - - (3,808) (0.3) I UK Property
Total investment Positions 1,400,375 100.0 1,160,185 100.0 . Continental Europe
Investment Exposure
as at 31 March
20 2021 2026 2020
£000 % £'000 %
UK Securities
~ quated 395,644 25.6 352,188 28.9
~ CFD exposure? 45,441 2.9 32,257 2.6
- 1RS exposure* - - 6,598 0.5
UK investment Properties 83,071 5.5 94,510 78
UK Total 524156 34.0 485,553 398
Continental Europe Securities
- quoted 921,801 59.5 708,597 58.2
- CFD exposure? 100,560 6.5 24,471 20 B Eauities
Total investment exposure® 1,546,517 1000 1,218,621 100.0 8 UK Property

Portfolic Summary
as at 31 March

plirql 2020 2019 2018 2017
£000 £000 £000 £'000 £'000

Total investments £1,40N £1,155m £1,291m £1,316m £1,145m
Net assets £1,326 £1,136m £1,328m £1,256m £1,18m
UK quoted property shares 28% 31% 3% 3% 29%
Overseas quoted property shares 66% 61% 59% 62% 63%
Direct property (externally valued} 6% 8% 8% 7% 8%

Net Currency Exposures
as at 31 March

W0 20 2020 2020

DRV RO T ET d Company  Benchmark

% % % %

GBP 279 28.3 270 268
EUR 51.2 50.9 53.0 531
CHF 67 6.6 79 79
SEK 12.9 129 1.0 13
NOK 13 1.3 11 0.9

Net uniealised (less)/gain on CFD contiacts held as balance sheet {creditor)/debtor

Net uniealised loss on total relurn swap (TRS) contract held as balance sheet creditor.

Gross value of CFO positions.

Gross value of TRS position.

Total investments illustrating market exposure including the gross value of CFD and TRS positions. TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST 17
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Investment Portfolio by Country
as at 31 March 2021

Market Market
value value
% %
Austria
CA Immobilien 9,092 0.6 Sweden
9,092 0.6 Kungsleden 36,061 2.5
Wihiborgs 23,390 17
Belgium Cibus 18,201 13
Warehousing and Distribution de Pauw 24,171 18 fabege 17,594 1.2
Aedifica 16,502 1.2 Castellum 16,805 1.2
Cofinimmo 13,677 1.0 Fastighets Balder 16,216 12
vGP 8,070 0.6 Nyfosa 12,008 09
Xior 5,926 0.4 Catena 8,933 0.6
Care Property 4,841 0.3 Samhalls 3,737 03
Montea 2,329 0.2 Pandox 2,690 0.2
Intervest Offices & Warehouses 1,923 01 155,635 H1
wereidhave 47 -
78,286 5.6 Switzerland
N PSP 41,999 30
Finland 41,999 3.0
Kojamo 17,500 12
Citycon 2,170 0.2 United Kingdom
19,670 1.4 SEGRO 60,357 43
T Derwent London 33,584 24
France Safestore Holdings 32,193 23
Argan 53,987 39 Landsec 31,327 22
Geqina 24,036 17 Stenprop 30,477 2.2
Covivio 13,457 10 Phoenix 25,213 18
Klépierre 10,364 0.7 Unite Group 25,143 18
Altarea 1,351 0.1 Sirius 22,241 16
103,195 74 Picton 21,330 15
LS Holdings 20,077 14
Germany Ltondonmetric Property 19,903 14
Vonovia 145,982 104 McKay Securities 18,104 13
LEG 63,904 46 Secure Income REIT 15,551 11
Deutsche Wohnen 54,499 39 Supermaiket Income REIT 9,614 07
Aroundtown 39,306 28 Tritax Eurobox 7,634 05
ViB vermoegen 37,980 27 PRS REIT 6,189 0.4
TAG Immobilien 33,294 24 Assura 5,194 0.4
Alstria 8,81 0.6 Target Healthcare 4,118 03
Deutsche Euroshop 5283 04 primary Health Properties 3,848 03
389,059 278 Alrato Capital 1,468 01
Capital & Regional 1,062 01
ireland Capital & Counties 77 0.1
Hibernia REIT 20,998 15 395,644 28.3
Irish Residential Properties 2,990 0.2 )
3,988 17 Direct Property 83,071 59
Netherlands CFD Positions (141) 0.0
Eurocommercial Properties 25,077 18 {included in cutrent liabilities) _ )
Unibail-Rodamco-Westfield 14,499 16
NSt 4,099 03 Total Investment Positions 1,400,375 100.0
43,675 31 -
- Companies shawn by country of fisting.
Norway
Entra 16,199 1.2
. 16,199 1.2
Spain
Arima Real estate 21,102 15
Merlin 19,901 14
41,003 29

18 TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST



Twelve Largest Equity Investments

VOINOVIA

1. VONOVIA {GERMANY)

31 March
2020

SEGRO

2. SEGRO (UK}

31 March EE3RLELR
201 2020

LEG

3. LEG {GERMANY)

31 March
2020

Shareholding value  £146.0m {£144.4m)
% of investment

portfolio! 9.4%  {11.8%)
% of equity owned 0.5% (0.7%)
Share price €55.70 (€44.86)

Shareholding value £67.8m (£38.7m)

% of investment 4.4% (3.2%)

portfoliot
% of equity owned 0.6%  (0.5%)
Share price 938.0p (764.0p)

Shareholding value £63.9m  (£75.3m)

% of investment 41% (6.2%)

portfalio?
% of equity owned 0.9% {1.2%)
Share prite €122 (€1027)

Vanovia is a German listed residential
company and the largest real estate
company in Cantinental Europe by market
capitalization.

At the end of 2020, the company owned

a portfolio of EURSE.8bn split between
Germany (84%), Sweden (11%) and
Austria {5%;. Vonovia has developed a
large in-house craftsman organization
which allows the company to run a
strategy facusing on modernizing its
portfalio. The company is invoived in the
whole value chain of the residential sector
via its rental business {81% of group
EBITDA), its value-add branch (energy

and multimedia related services, 8%),

its third-party development business

(6%) and its recurring sales program
(5%). Finally, the residential sector is
subject to strict requlations in Germany

in particular. Vonovia's managerment has
been particularly pro-active with public
authorities, complying with regulations
and assuming a sacial rele which should
allow them to benefit from critical palitical
goodwill in the future. In 2020, Vonovia
delivered again strong results in absolute
and relative terms. The company delivered
a +17% total accounting return {computed
as the growth in NAV + dividend paid over
the year) against +14% on average for the
main listed residential peers. The like for
like rental growth at +3.1% was resilient
and one of the highest in the residential
sector despite the impact of the Berlin
rental freeze which implied a negative
rental adjustment in November 2020. The
total shareholder retuen since listing in
July 2013 has been +314%.

Notes,

Segro has become the largest UK REIT by
markel cap, and is the largest operator
of logistics and industrial property Hsted
in the UK, with a total portfolio of £13bn
(split 53% in the UK, 47% in Continental
Europe, with 66% urban warehouses,
32% big baxes and 2% other uses}. In
the UK, the group is mainly exposed to
Greater London industrial and fogistics.
Rental growth in these markets has
been extremely strong as there remains
an acite supply-demand imbaiance,
fuelled by tenants’ requirements {o

deal with the growth in e-commerce.

In Europe, Germany and France are the
group’s largest markets with italy third;
these markets have a lower, but stiil
positive, rental growth outlook (and are
geographically tess space-constrained)
but centinue to see yield compression
as investors have paid keener yields for
access to strong income. The logistics
sector has preved particulary resilient
during the COVID crisis, with high

rent collection. Segro has extensive
development exposure that it manages
1o fargely pre-let and develop at yields
significantly in excess of investment
values (c.6-7% yield on cost vs. an EPRA
net initial yield of 3.8% at FY20). We
expect this to drive both earnings and
NAV growth, as well as high shareholder
total returns. The five-year total
shareholder return has been 177%.

LEG is a German residential company
focused on the economically strong
region of North Rhine-Westphalia. It is
one of the largest real estate companies
in Germany with more than 144,000 units
under management and a combined
value of €14.6bn. In addition to the
strong focus on NRW, the company

is exploring opportunities on B and C
locations in adjacent states with the view
to leverage their market access as well
as their existing platform still within strict
and conservative financial criteria. The
company has a distinct advantage to be
less exposed to regulatory risk than peers
with & Berlin exposure and to benefit
from a relatively high share of state
subsidised tenants (25% of the total).
The very low average rent per sqm al
EURS5.96 as well as the reiatively low value
per sqm of EUR,1503 make the company
particularly well suited to weather any
potential macro-economic shock. in
addition, the company has shown over
the years a copservative management

on the liabilities side which continued to
be the case in 2020 with a LTV of 37.6%
{maximum farget set at 43% for 2021},

an average debt maturity of 7.4 years (8.1
years in 2019} and a net debt to adjusted
EBITDA of 11.8x. In 2020, LEG delivered

a strong 1otal accounting return of 20%
ahead of the sector average at 14%. The
five-year total shareholder return has
been +106%.

> The penertage of investment portfolio positions set out above include exposures through CFD for both the individual pesitions and the portfolio
=The Investment Portfelio by Country pesitiors set out on page '8 ate the physical holdings only mcluded n the investments held at fair vatue in the Balarce Sheet The
profit of loss pasitions on the CFD contracts (1e not the mvestment exposure) are also shown on page 18 and 4re inciuded .n the Balance Sheet a5 debtofs or creditors

in the Current assets
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4. DEUTSCHE WOHNEN
{GERMANY)

31 March
2020

IMARGAN

5. ARGAN (FRANCE)

31 March
s 2020

Shareholding value  £54.5m  (£36.4m)
% of investment

portiolio’ 3.5%  (3.0%)
% of equity owned 0.5% {0.3%)
Share price €39.78  (€34.7)

gectna

6. GECINA (FRANCE)

31 March
2020

Shareholding value £54.0m (£46.8m)
% of investment

portfoliat 3.5%  (3.8%)
% of equity owned 3.5%  (3.5%)
Share price €80.4 (€676)

Shareholding vaive  £53.9m  (E47.5m)
% of investment

portfolio* 3.5%  {3.9%)
% of equity owned 0.7% (0.6%:}
Share price €174 (€1207)

Deutsche Wohnen is Germany’s second
largest residentlal company with the bulk
of its exposure to Greater Berdlin (76%

of the total portfolio Fv). The company
owns 3 high-quality portfolio consisting of
more than 155,000 units with a combined
value of €26bn. In addition to the rental
business, the company is present in the
Nursing and Assisted Living business
which areund represented 12% of the
Group EBITDA in 2020 {target to get to
15% in the medium-term).The company
benefits from its development exposure
with a total investment cost of EUR6.9bn
{27% of GAV) split between buitd-to-hald
(EUR4.3bn, 62% of the pipeline) and build-
to-sell (EUR2.6bn, 38% of the pipeline).

In a cantext of the implementation of

the rental freeze in Beglin, the company
shawed a resilient financial performance
in 2020 with a total accounting return of
14% in line with German residential peers.
The Greater Berlin portfolio was vatued

at EUR2,853 per sgm on average which
leaves significant upside potential in the
future. As expected, post FY2Q results we
had the positive unequivocal decision
from the court that the rental freeze

was anti-constitutional and therefore
cancelled. The five-year total shareholder
return has been +62%.

Nates

Argan is a French company, created in
20600 by jean-Claude Le Lan, which has
beer listed since 2007. The objective

of the company has been to build 2
partiolio of premium logistic assets which
guarantee a stable and high accupancy
rate at around 100%. The company is
vertically integrated and has full control
of the entire value chain by identifying
future needs of prospective and current
tenants and developing assets on their
behalf. Therefore, Argan is able to capture
the develaper margin while having little
to no fisk on the (etting side. In 2020,

the portfolio value amounted t EUR3bn
(106% exposed to France, 27% exposed to
Greater Paris region, 16% to the North of
France and 13% around Lyon).

The company delivered solid 2020 resuits
with an EPRA NRY per share up 19%

YoY and 2 DPS up 11%. The funding of

the company is based on a conservative
mix of 90% amortizable mortgage loans
with an average maturity of 8 years

and 10% of bonds. The relatively low
dividend payout at below 50% allows the
tompany ta retain cash and reinvest in
new development projects while repaying
debts. the management of the company
has been assumed by its founder Jean-
Uaude Le Lan who owns alongside family
members 40% of the share capital which
is a strong guarantee of alignment. The
five-year total sharehoider return has
been +307%

Gecina is the largest office landiord in
Eurape with 3 portfolio of mare than
€14bn focused almost exclusively on

the Paris region {97% of the total office
value) and with a high share in Paris city
(60% of the total office value). it owns
also a partfolio of €3.6bn of residential
assets (of which EUR367m in student
housing) predominantly located in

the Paris region. Finafly, the company
owns a portfolio of exclusive high

street retail assets for a value of €1.6bn
located in Paris city. The management is
capitalizing on a development pipeline
of more than €3.5bn (17% of GAV) to be
delivered in the next five years. This is a
continuation of the total return strateqy
which has been implemented by the
company over the last cauple of years:
in essence, redeveloping assets where
the management sees value creation
potential and dispasing mature assets

to crystalize capital gains. Since the end
of 2014, the company has delivered 30
projects and generated EUR1.1bn of value
creation (EURTS per share). In 2020, the
company showed resilience with 99% rent
collection, stable portfalio valuation and
Like far like rental growth of +2.3%. The
financial position of the company is very
solid with an LTV at 35.6% and an average
debt maturity of 7.1 years.

The five-year sharehelder total return has
been +21.6%.

= Ihe percentage of .rvestrert portto .0 posit-ors set out zbove ‘nclLce expesuies threugh CFO for both the irgvidue postors arg the portfelic
>Theirvestment Portfoic by Courtry pes tors set gul or page 18 ¢re the physica. howdings ofly iIrcudec ¢ the investrrents hed at far vaiue i the Baance Sheet The
pioft or 0ss positiors on the LFD contiacts (e not the svestrrent exposcre} are a'sg showr or pege “8 anc are rcivded in the Ba ance Sheet ay ceblars o1 cred tars

nthe Cuerrert assets
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7. KLEPIERRE {(FRANCE)

safestiare

8. SAFESTORE (UK)

31 March [ERNIEIE
2021 2020

ISP

Swiss Property

9. PSP (SWITZERLAND)

31 March
2020
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iili&! 31 March

2020
shareholding value £51.3m {Nil)
;g;ﬂ:fs"“em 3.3% (0%)
% of equity owned 1.0% {0%)
Share price €19.89  (€17.57)

Shareholding value £44.0m (£279m)
% of investment

portolio! 2.8%  (2.3%)
% of equity owned 2.6% {1.9%)
Share price 796p {64p)

Shareholding valve  £42.0m (Em)
% of investment

portfoliat 2.7% (2.3%)
% of equity owned 1.0% (0.6%)
Share price €115.20 (€120.70)

Klepierre is a European shopping

center operator, managing around 140
centers with a total portfolio valuation
of EUR22bn. The main exposures are

in France/Belgium (39% of total), Italy
(18%), Scandinavia {(17%) and tberia
{10%). The company, like the rest of
shopping center owners, was impacted
by the COVID crisis in 2020 and therefore
reported an EPS down 27% YoY and an
EPRA NTA per share down 15% YoY. On
a relative basis, the company benefits
from its focus on Continental Europe
where shopping centers are anchored
by food retatlers contrary to UK of US
centers anchored by department stores
which have been undergoing significant
chaltenges {parlly driven by enline
competition). The financial position ot
the company is also more sofid than its
direct peers with an LTV of 41.4% and

a net debt 1o EBITDA ratio of 10.8x. The
beard benefits from the experience of
David Simon (Chairman of the Supervisory
Board), Chairman and CEQ of Simon
Property Group which owns a 21%
stake in Kieppierre. The five-year total
shareholder retusn has been -34%.

Notes

Safestore is the UK's largest seif-starage
operator, owning ¢.125 UK stores,
weighted towards London and the South
East (¢.60%). In addition the company has
a large footprint in the Paris market and
has recently been expanding into new
European cities (through both jV structures
and outright ownership) taking footholds
in Holtand, Spain and Belgium. Safestore
has a best in class operating platiorm
which, alang with peer Big Yellow, allows
it to dominate the UK storage market,
particularly in terms of online search.

The company has driven consistent
earnings growth beth organically (through
like-for-like occupancy and rate growth,
opening new developments) and through
acquisitions, a trend we expect to
centinue over the medium termy; the self-
storage market has proved remarkably
resilient during the COVID-19 pandemic.
The five-year total shareholder return has
been 172%.

PSP Swiss Property is one of Switzerland's
leading reat estate companies owning
properties valued at around CHF8.6bn.
These are mainly office and business
premises in prime jocations in
Switzerfand's key economic centers.
Zurich represents 51% of the company's
exposure (Geneva at 14%). Vacancy rate
has consistently trended downward from
a level at 8.5% in 2018 to an historic

low of 3.0% at FY20. The company
reported solid resuits in 2020 with EPS
{excl revaluation) stable and NAY per
share growing by 3%. The company will
benefit from a development pipeline
adding EUR34m of rents {11% of current)
in the next three years. The pipefine is
mostly exposed to Zurich (85% of total
investment} and has a current pre-let
ratio of 77%. The financial profile of the
company is very conservative with an LTV
of 35%, average cost of debt of ¢.47% and
a loan maturity af 5.5 years. The five-year
total sharehoider return has been 48%.

> The peicentage ab investinent porticlio pasitians set out dbove Include expesuies through CFD for btk the indiwidudl positions and the poftfolio
»The Investrnent Portfalio by Countiy positions set it on page 18 are the physical holdings only included in the investments hetd at fair value in the Balance Sheet The
profit or Joss pasit:ons on the CHD cortracts (e not the investmenl exposure) are alsa shawn on page '8 and are included in the Balarce Sheet as cebtors or creditors

In the Current assets
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k  AROQUNDTOWN **

10. AROUNDTOWN (GERMANY)

V‘B Vermogen AG

11. VIB VERMOEGEN (GERMANY)

31 March
2020

DERWENT
LONDON

12. DERWENT LONDON (UX)

31 March
2020

ﬂE!EH 31 Maich

2020
Shareholding value £39.3m  (£20.3m)
:x;{;;fﬂmem 25%  (17%)
% of equity owned 0.5% {0.3%)
Share price €6.07  (€4.55)

Shareholding value £38.0m {£22.9m)
% of investment

portfolio" 2.5%  {19%)
% of equity owned 5.5% {4.1%)
Share price €29.25 (€22.80)

Shareholding value  £37.6m {Nil}
% of investment

portfoliot 2.4% (0%)
% of equity owned 1.0% (0%)
Share price 3228p (3270p)

Aroundtown is a diversified German-
based property company that awns a
EUR24.5bn pertfolio. it has a diversified
commercial portfolio with exposure to
Office (60% of the commercial portiolio),
Hotels (28%), Retail (9%) and Logistics
{3%). The majority of its exposure is

in Germany and the Netherlands (86%
together). The compaay is also exposed
1o German Residential (14% of total GAY)
through its 39% holding in Grand City. The
portfolio has grown sigaificantly since
Aroundtown was listed in 2015, through a
series of deals, in particular, the takeover
completed in early 2020 of listed German
peer TLG Immabilien. Ms Yakir Gabay
(advisory board deputy Chairman) who
founded the company, still owns a 10%
stake in the company via its vehicle Avisco
Group {down from 27% pre TLG deal). In
2020, the company closed EUR2.3bn of
disposals at a +3% margin to book value.
This year, the company will continue to
streamline the portfolio with a disposal
pipeline of EURS00m while buying

back shares for a maximum amount of
EUR500m. The five-year total sharehoider
return has been 58%.

“oles

VI8 is a2 German company developing,
buying and hotding commercial
praperties, primarily in the high-growth
regions of Southern Germany. The
company pursues a develap or buy

and hoid strategy aiming at growing

its earning base while maintaining a

salid financial structure. The real estate
portfolio (EUR1.4bn) includes logistics and
light industrial properties (70% of total
rents), garden centers and DIY stores
{11%), grocery and discounters (7.5%). The
company benefits from a higher vielding
pertfolio than peers at 6.8% implying

a superior EPS yield and more potential
for yield compression and therefore NAV
growth in a mid to long-term horizon, The
vacancy rate has averaged 1.26% over the
last five years. Between 2016 and 2020,
FFO per share increased by 41%, NAV per
share increased by 42% and DPS increased
by 36%. in 2020, the company maintained
a solid mamentumn with EPS growing by
+3% and NAV per share growing by 5.
The five-year total sharehalder return has
been 93%.

Derwent London is a tondon Office

owner and developer, with a £5.4bn
portfolio covering ¢.5.5m sq ft, focused
primarily in the West End and “tech beit”
(0ld Street, Clerkenwell etc.) areas of
London. 2020 has been a difficult year

for office landlords following the impact
of COVID-18, which bath brought the
transaction market and occupier market
to a hait, and left ongoing uncertainty
over future office use as the necessity and
popularity of werking from home grew.
We believe the role of the office remains
important howeves, and think that
Derwent London is the best placed London
office landlord to weather the COVID-19
storm given a) its vesy defensive balance
sheet (LTV 18%), b) the ongoing spread
between prime office yields in London
and other European cities (c.100bp), which
we believe wilf support valuations even
as ERVs soften and ¢j the company’s high
quality development capabilities which
continue to create value as schemes like
Scho Place, The Featherstone Building and
19-35 Baker Street complete. The five-year
total sharehoider return has been 18%.

> Tre percenfage of nvestirent portfalio pos 1 ors set aut abave ncuce exposures thiough CFD for both the rewidia posificrs and the paitfoio
=The investment Pertfcl'c by Courtry positicns set out or page 18 are the physica hio dings niy noivdec . the ovestmerts teic at far value n the 32 ance Sheet The
profTor gss positicns cn the CED cortracts | @ rettre neestment exposure) are 35¢ sTOWr Gf page "8 3rd ale roucec in the 34 ¢nce Sheet e debtors of cred tors

i the Current gssets
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Investment Properties
as at 31 March 2021

spread of Direct Portfolio by Capital Value (%)
as at 31 March 2021

Residential
and
o . L . Retail Industrial ~ Ground Rents
West £nd of London 42.9% - 14.5% 0.6% 58.0%
Inner London™ 1.6% 31.2% - - 32.3%
South West - 9% - - 9.2%_
Total o 44.5% 40.4% 45%  06% 100.0%
"inner London defined as inside the Naorth and South Circular.
Lease Lengths within the Direct Property Portfalio Contracted Rent
as at 31 March 201 as at 31 March
Gross rental income o
0to5years o o 4%  Year £3,000,000
510 10 years 7% Years 2-5 £10,000,000
10 to 15 years 53% Years 5+ - . ) £19,000,000
15 to 20 years 0%
20+ years 6%

VALUE IN EXCESS OF £10 MILLION

Ferrier Street Industrial Estate,
Wandsworth, London SW18

The Colonnades, Bishops Bridge
Road, London W2

iy

Mixed Use

VALUE LESS THAN £1¢ MILLION

10 Centre, Gloucester Business
Park, Gloucester GL3

T it

B TR

Sector Sector industrial Sector tndustrial
Tenure Freehold Tenure freehold Tenure Freehold
Size (sq ft} 64,000 Size (sq ft) 36,000 Size (sq ft} 63,000
Principal ~ Waitrose Ltd, Graham & Green, Principal Kougar Tool Hire Ltd Principal infusion GB
tenants Happy Lamb Hot Pot, tenants Page Lacques tenants

1Rebel, Specsavers

Lockdown Baker

The property comprises a large mixed-
use block in Bayswater, constructed
in the mid-1970s. The site extends to
approximately 2 acres on the north
east corner of the junction of Bishops
Bridge Road and Porchester Road,
dose to Bayswater tube station and
the Whiteleys Shopping Centre. The
commercial element was extended
and refurbished in 2015 with a new
20 year lease being agreed with
Waitrose.

Site of just over an acre, 50

metres from Wandsworth Town
railway station in an area that is
predominantly residential. The estate
comprises 16 small industrial units
generally let to a mix of small to
medium-sized private companies.
Pianning permission granted in
December 2019 for a mixed-use
employment led redevelopment.

The 10 Centre comprises six industrial
units occupied by two tenants and sits
on a 4.5-auie site. Gloucester Business
Park is located to the east of Junction
1A of the M5 and one mile to the
east of Gloucester City Centre. The
property also has easy access to the
A417 providing good links to the m4
via junction 15.
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Investment Objective and Benchmark

The Company’s Objective is to maximise shareholders’ total return
by investing in the shares and securities of property companies
and property related businesses internationally and also in
investment property located in the UK.

The benchmark is the FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed Europe
Capped Net Total Return Index in Sterling. The index, calculated
by FTSE, is free-float based and as at 31 March 2021 had 105
constituent companies. The index limits exposure to any one
company to 10% and reweights the other constituents pro-rata.
The benchmark website www.epra.com contains further details
about the index and performance.

Business Model

The Company’s business model foliows that of an externally managed
investment trust.

The Company has no employees. Its wholly non-executive Board of Directors
retains responsibility for corporate strateqy; corperate governance; fisk and
control assessment; the overall investment and dividend policies; setting limits
on gearing and asset allocation and monitoring investment performance.

The Board has appointed BMOD Investment Business timited as the Alternative
Investrnent Fund Manager (“AIFM”) with portfolio management delegated to
Thames River Capital LLP Marcus Phayre-Mudge acts as Fund Manager to the
Company on behalf of Thames River Capital LLP and Alban thonneur is Deputy
Fund Manager. George Gay is the Direct Property Manager and Joanne Elliott the
Finance Manager. They are supported by a team of equity and portfolio analysts.

Further information in relation to the Board and the arrangements under the
investment Management Agreement can be found in the Report of the Directors
on pages 411to 43,

In accordance with the Alternative investrnent Fund Managers Directive
("AMIFMD™), BNP Paribas has been appointed as Depositary to the Company.
BNP Paribas also provide custodial and administration services to the Company.
Company secretarial services are provided by Link Company Matters.

The specific terms of the Investment Management Agreement are set out on
pages 53 and 54.
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Strategy and Investment Palicies
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Key Performance Indicators

The Board assesses the performance of the mManager in meeting the Trust’s objective against
the following Key Performance Indicators ("KPIs”):

KP!

Net Asset Value Total Return relative to the benchmark

The Oirectors regasd the out-performance of the
Company’s net asset value total return in performance
In companson with the benchmark as being an overall
measure of value delivered to the shareholders’ over the
longer-term,

Board monitoring and ouicome

The Board reviews the performance in detail at each
meeting and discusses the results and outlook with the
Manager.

QOutcome
1year 5 years
NAV Totai Return™ (Annualised) 207%  77%
Benchmark Total Return (Annualised) 159%  43%

" NaV [otal Retutr 1s calculated by re-investing the dividencs in the assels and
the Company fram the relevart ex-dwidend date Dividerds are deerned to be
re-invested on the ex-divicends date for the benchimark

Delivering a reliable dividend which is growing over the lenger term

The principal objective of the Company 1s 3 tolal retum
objective, however, the Fund Manager aiso aims Lo
deliver a reliable dividend with growth gver the longer
term

The Board reviews staternents on income recelved to date
and income forecasts at each meeling,

Outcome
1year 35years
Compound Annual Dividend Growth” 4%  M2%
Compound Annual RP 15%  2.6%

* Tre finai dvidend in the time series divided by the imital dwvidend in the
perac {aised 10 the power af 1 divicec by the number of years 11 the series

The Discount or Premium at which the Company’s shares trade compared with Net Asset Value

Whilst expectation of investment performance 15 a key
dniver of the share price discount or prermium o the Net
Asset Value of an investment trust over the longer-term,
there are penods when the discount can widen. The
Board 15 aware of the vulnerability of a sector-speciahist
trust 10 a change of investor sentiment towards that
sector, or to periods of wider market uncertainty, and the
impact that can have on the discount

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

The Board takes powers al each AGM o buy-back and
1ssue shares When considering the menils of share buy-
back or 1ssuance, the Board looks at a number of factors In
addition to the short and longer-term discount or premiym
1o NAV to assess whether action would be beneficial to
shareholders overall. Particular attention i1s paid Lo the
currenl market seniment, the potential impact of any
share buy-back activity en the liquidity of the shaies and
on Ongaing Charges over the longer term

Qutcome
1year 5years
Average discount” 0.2%  6.3%
Total number of shaies repurchased Nil 150,000

“ Average daily discount througheut the period of share price to
NAY with incomme, Souice B comberg



KPI
Level of Ongoing Charges

The Board 15 conscious of expenses and aims to deliver 3
balance between excellent service and costs

The AIC definition of Ongoing Charges includes any direct
property costs in addition o the management fees and
all other expenses incurred In running a publicly hsted
company. As ng other investment trusts hold part of then
porifalic 1n direct property (they either hold 100% of their
portfolic as property securities or as direct properly), in
addition to Ongoing Charges as defined by the AIC, this
statistic 1s shown without direct property costs to allow

a clearer compansen of overall administration costs with
other funds investing 1n secunties.

The Board monitors the Ongoing Charges, in companson
to a range of other Investment Trusts of similar size, both
property sector specialists and other sector specialists

Board monitoring and outcome

Expenses are budgeted for each financial year and the
Board reviews reqular reports on actual and forecaslt
expenses throughout the year.
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Outcome
1year 5years

Ongoing charges excluding

0,
performance fees 0.65%

0.65%

Ongoing charges exduding performance

0.62%
fees and Duecl Property Costs ’

0.63%

The ongoing charges are competitive when compared to
the peer group

investment frust Status

The Company must continue t¢ operate In order to meel
the requirements for Section 1158 of the Corporation Tax
Act 2010

The Board reviews financial information and forecasts at
each meeting which set out the requirements outlined In
Sechion 1158

The Directors believe thal the condilions and ongoing
requirements have been mel in respect of the year to
31 March 2027 and that the Company will continue
meet the requirements

The KPls aie considered to be Alternative Performance Measures as defined laler in the Annual Repaort
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Principal and Emerging Risks and Uncertainties

In delivering long-term relurns to shareholders, the Board must also identify and monitor the nsks that have been taken
in order to achieve that return The Board has included below details of the principal and emerging risks and uncertaintes
facing the Company and the appropnate measures taken in order to mutigale these nisks as far as practicable

The Boaid also considers new and emerqing nsks adding appropnate momitonng and mitigation measures accordingly

The impact of the €OVIB-19 pandemic, the response of financial markels, the unknown duration of the pandemic and
ongoing impact on economies around the world together with operational changes m 1esponse 0 government guidelines
conunues to ingrease some of the nisks listed below in comparison with prior years

Risk Identified Board monitoring and mitigation

Share price performs poorly in comparison to the underlying NAV

The shares of the Company are histed on the London - The Board monitors the level of discount or premium at
Stock £xchange and the share price is determined by which the shares are trading over the short and longer-
supply and demand The shares may trade at a discount term

or premium to the Company’s underlying NAV and this

discount of premium may fluctuale over tme. The Board encourages engagement wilh the shareholders.

The Board receives reparts at each meeting on the activity
of the Company’s biokers, PR agent and meetngs and
events allended by the Fund Manager,

The Company's shares are availlable through the BMO
share schemes and the Company participates 1n the active
marketing of these schemes. The shares are also widely
available on open archuteciure platforms and can be held
diectly through the Company’s reqistrar

The Board takes the powers to buy-back and to 1ssue
shares at each AGM.

Poor investment performance of the pertfolio relative to the benchmark

The Company’s portfolio 1s actively managed. In addition  « The Manager's objective 15 Lo outperform the benchmark.
to investment secunties the Company also mvests 1n The Board reqularly reviews the Company's long-lerm
comnmeraal property and accordingly, the portfolic may strateqy and investment guidetines and the Aanager’s
not follow or outperform the return of the bencnmark relative pasitions against these

The mManagement Engagement Committee reviews the
Manager's petformance anaually The Board has the
powers to change :he Manager If deemed appropnate
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Risk Identified

Board monitoring and mitigation

Market risk

Both share prices and exchange rates may mave rapidly
and adversely iImpact the value of the Company's
portioho,

Although the portfolio is diversified across a number of
geographical ieqions, the investment mandate 15 facused
on a singte sector and therefore the portfolio will be
sensitive towards the property sector, as well as global
equily markets more generally.

Properly companies are subjecl Lo many factors which
can adversely affect therm investment performance, these
include the general economic and financial envirenment
in which therr tenants operate, interest rales, availability
of investment and development linance and requlations
1ssued by governments and authonties

Although we have now exited the Furopean Union the
structure of our future relationship with Continental
Europe 15 still evolving and there could be an impacl on
gccupalion across each sector,

The COVID-19 global pandemic dominated the financial
year This has changed the way we live and work,
crealing unprecedented uncertainty regarding the impact
on economies and properly markets around the werld
both in the short and longer term

Any sirengthening or weakening of Sterling will have

a direct impact as a proportion of our Balance Sheel 1s
held in non-GBP denominated currencies The currency
exposure 1s maintamned in ine with the benchmark and
will change over time As at 31 Maich 2027, 72 1% of the
Trust’s exposure lies to currencies other than GBR

The Board recerves and considers a regular report from
the Manager detailing asset allocation, investment
decisions, currency exposures, geanng levels and rationale
in relation (o the prevailing market conditions

The report considers the potential impact of Brexit and the
Manaqger's response N positioning the portfolo

The report considers the current and potential future
impact of the COVID-19 pandemic and the ongoing
imphcation for the property market and valuations overall
and by each sector.

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

29

w
=
5
=
m
a
(2]
-
m
-
Qo
=
wy




Principal Risks and Uncertainties continued

Risk ldentified

Board monitoring and mitigation

The Company is unable to maintain dividend growth

Lower earmings in the underlying portfolio putling
pressure on the Company's ability Lo grow the dividend
could result from a number of factors

lower earnings and distributions in investee
companies Companies 1n some property sectors
continue to be negatively impacted by the COVID-19
pandemic. Companies In some sectors cancelled or
reduced dividends dunng the last finanaial year as a
precaulionary measure to pratect therr balance sheets
in the short term. Although most have returned to
paying dividends, some are al a lower level than
previously and others are continuimg to withhold
dividends,

prolonged vacancies in the direct property portfolio
and lease or rental renegotiations as a result of
COVIDG;

strengthening Sterhng reducing the value of overseas
dividend receipts in Sterhng terms The Company

has seen 3 malenal increase in the level of earnings
In recent years A significant factor in this was the
weakening of Sterling following the Brext deasion
Sterhing strengthened in the last quarter of the
financial year. This may continue of reverse agam

in the near of medium term as the longer term
imphcations of Brexit and the COVID-19 pandemic and
the wmpact on the UK and European ecanomies are
understood Strengthening of Sterling would 'ead o a
fati in earmings,

adversa changes in the tax treatmeni of dividends o
other income recewved by the Compary, and

changes in the hming of dividend receipts from
investes comoames

The Board recelves and considers eqular income
forecasts.

Income farecast sensitivity (o changes in FX rales 15 also
moritored

The Company has substantial revenue reserves wiich can
be drawn upon when required

The Baard will continue to monitor the impact of COVID-19
and the long term implications for income generation
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Risk Identified Board monitoring and mitigation

Accounting and aperational risks

Cisruption of failure of systems and processes
underpinning the services provided by third parties and
the nisk that these suppliers provide a sub-standard
service

The impact of the COVID-1$ panderic and the
operational response from the manager and service
providers has been ¢losely monitored

Third party service providers produce pericdic reports (o
the Board on their conlrol environments and business
continuation provisions on a reguiar basts,

The management Engagement Committee considers the
performance of each of the service providers on a regular
basis and considers their ongoing appointmeant and terms
and conditions.

The Custodian and Depository are respensible for the
safequarding of assets. In the evenl of a loss of assets
the Depository must return assets ol an idenlical type
of corresponding amount unless able 1o demonstrate
that the loss was the result of an event beyond therr
reasonable control

Monitoring the quality and timeliness of service as
service providers respond to COVID-19 requlations and
guidelines, 1 particular with widespread home working
and consideration of the durability of the arrangements
Many organisalions are now planning to ncorporate
home working inte their operaticnal structure as 3
permanent feature,

Financial risks

The Company’s investmenl activities expose 1L to a
variely of financial nisks which include counterparty
credit nsk, hguidity nsk and the valuation of financal
instruments Any impact of the COVID-19 pandemic has
been considerad

Details of these nsks together with the polices for
managing these risks are found in the Notes to the
Financial Statements in the full Annual Reports and
Accounts

Loss of Investment Trust Status

The Company has been accepted by HM Revenue &
Cusloms as an investment trust, subject ta continuing
to meet the relevant elgibility conditions. As such the
Company 1s exempt from capital gans tax on the profits
realised from the sale of investments.

Any hreach of the relevant ehgibility condilions could
lead to the Company losing investment trust statys and
being subject to corporation tax on capital gains realised
within the Company’s portfolio

The Investment Manager monitors the investment
portfolio, Income and proposed dividend levels to ensure
that the provisions of (TA 2010 are not breached. The
results are reported to the Board at each meeting.

The income forecasls are reviewed by the Company’s tax
advisor through the year who also reports ta the Board
on the year-end tax position and reports on CTA 2070
comphance.

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties continued

Risk Identified Board monitoring and mitigation

tegal, regulatory and reporting risks

Fallure to comply with the London Stock Exchange
Listing Rutes and Disclosure Guidance and Transparency
rules, failure to meel the requirements under the
Alternative Investment Funds Direclive, the provisians
of the Companies Act 2006 and other UK, European
and overseas legisiation affecting UK companies.
Failure to meet the required accounting standards ar
make apprapriate disclosures in the Intenm and Annual
Reports

The Board receves reqular regulatory updales from
the manager, Company Secrelary. legal advisors and
the Auditors. The Board considers these reports and
recormmendations and takes action accordingly

The Board receives an annual report and update from the
Depositary

Internal checklists and review procedures are in place at
sefvice praviders

Inappropriate use of gearing

Geaning, either through the use of bank debt or through
ihe use of derivatives may be utilised from ume to time.
whilst the use of geanng 15 intended Lo enhance the NAV
total return, 1t will have the appesite effect when the
return of the Companys investment portfolia is negative
or where the cost of debt 15 tugher than the return from
the portfolio.

The Board receves reqular repotts from the Manager on
the levels of geanng in the portfolic. These are considered
against the geanng limits set in the Investment Guidelines
and also n the context of current market conditions and
sentment The cost of debl is maonitored and a balance
sought between term, cost and flexibility

personnel changes at Investment Manager

Loss of portfolio manager or other key stalf

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

The Chairman conducts legular meetings with the Fund
Management team,

The fee basis protects the core infrastiucture and depth
and quality resources The fee structute inceniivises
outperformance and s lundamental 1 the ability to retamn
key staff



Viability Statemnent

in accordance with provision 31 of the UK Corporate
Governance Code, which requires the Company to assess
the prospects of the Company over the longer term, the
Directors have assessed the prospects ol the Company
ovel the coming five years. This penod 1s used by Lthe
Board duning the strategic planning process and the Board
consider this penod of hime appropnate for a business of
our nalure and size

This assessment takes sccount of the Company's current
positicn and the pohaey and piocesses for manaqing the
principal and emerging nisks sel out on pages 28 to 32 and
the Company’s ability lo continue 10 eperation and meet its
habiliies as they fall due over the period of assessment.

In making this statement the Board carned cut a robust
assessment af the prinapal and emerging nsks facing the
Company, including those that might thiealen 1S business
model, future performance, solvency and hquidity.

In reaching their candlusions the Directors have reviewed
five-year forecasts for the Comnpany with sensitivity
analysis to a number of assumptions; mvesles company
dividend growth, interest rate, foreign exchange rate, tax
rate and asset value growth

In the assessment of the viability of the Company
the Directors have noted that:

The Company has a long-term investment strategy
under which it invests mainly in readily realisable,
publicly listed secunties and which restncts the level of
borrowings

0f the current portfalio, 50% could be hquidated within
five trading days and 69% within 10 trading days

On a Group basis, Current assets exceed current
liabilities at the Balance Sheel Date

The Company Invests in real estate related companies
which old real estate assets, and invests m commercial
real estate diectly. These investrnents provide cash
receipts in the form of dividends and rental income

The Company 1s able Lo take advantage of its closed-
ended Investment Trust structure and able to hold a
proportion of its portfolio in less lrquid direct praperty
with a view 1o long-term outperformance,

At the Balance Sheet Date the Company had
£35 million undrawn on its fevolving foan faclities.

The structure has also enabled the Company to
secure long-term fimancing EUR 50 mithon loan notes
Issued 0 2016 are Gue W tnalute dl par i 2026 and
GBP15 million loan notes issued on the same date are
due to mature at par in 2031

The impacl of COVID-1% on the UK and Eurapean
commercial property markets remains a consideration.
This resulted in a reduction in dividend receipts from
Investee companies in the year ta 31 March 2021 with
some companies withholding ar reducing dividends
The majority of companies have returned to paying
dividends, although some at lower fevels than before
the pandemic. As a result an impravement in income
1s anticipated i the forthcoming year. The longer
term impact on same sectars 1s stll difficult to assess,
howevel the company has low exposure to these
sectors

The direct property portioho has been well positicned
in respect of the COVID-19 ¢nsis and rental collection to
date has been robust We have very imited exposure
1o retarl and some smaller occupiers N the hospitahity
sector, however, overall the expecled drop In income
from the direct portfolio in 2020/21 was not matenal
and likewise 1s not expected to be in the forlhcoming
year

The expenses of the Company are predictable and
modest in companson with the assets. Reqular and

robust monitonng of revenue and expenditure forecasts

are undertaken throughout the year. The Company
could suffer a reduction in earnings of 95% and still be
able 1o meetits habilities as they fell due

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT FRUST
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Viahility Statement coitnued

The Company has no employees and conseguently
does nol have redundancy or other employment
refated liabihes or responsibilities,

The Company retains ttle to its assets held by the
Custodian which are subject to further safequards
imposed on the Depositary.

The smpact of Brexit and COVID-19 have been
considered in terms of the potential elfect on Sterfing
72% of the portfolio 15 exposed to currencies other than
Sterling.

The following assumptions have been made in
assessing the longer-term viability:

Real Estate will continue ta be an invesiable sector of
international stock markels and investors will cantinue
to wish to have exposure (o that sector.

Closed-ended Investment Trusts will continue to be
wanled by investors and requlation or tax legislation
will niot change (o an extent to make the structure
unattractive in comparnsen o other investment
products

The performance of the Company will continue 1o be
satisfactory Should the performance be less than the
Board deems 1o be salisfactory, it has the appropriale
powars to replace the Invesiment Manager.

The Board has concluded that the Company will be
able to continue in operation and meet its liabilities
as they fall due over the coming five years. The
Company’s business model, capital stiucture and
strategy have enabled the Company to operate
over many decades, and the Board expects this to
continue into the future.
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Corporate Responsibility

Appreach

Envirenmenlal, Socal and Governance ("ESG”) laclors

can present both opportumities and threats to the
performance we aim to deliver to our shareholders. The
Board is therefore committed 1o laking a responsible
approach on ESG matters This cavers the Company's own
responsibilities on governance and reporting and, the most
matenal way in which the Company can have an impact,
through respensible ownership of the investments that are
made on 1ts behalf by 1ts Manager.

As a long-term inveslor, governance and sustainability
consideralions have always been embedded in aur
Manager's Investment Process. ESG nsk assessments
and considerations are integrated into the detailed
fundamental investment research and analysis that takes
place on any polential invesiment before it 1s considered
for inclusion in the partfcho and continues on an ongoing
basis for all investiments held

This appraach 1s in line wath the defimtion of an Article
& Fund under the EU's Sustainable Finance Disclosure
Reqgufations. Whilst this is currently Eurcpean not UK
regulation it 1s nonetheless a widely stihsed definition.

There are two fundamental ccnsiderations to investment
It property companies: the assets themselves and their
management The Manager seeks to invest In sustamable
assets which are managed by quality teams in a well
governed corporate strocture As a result, there has

been a long-standing and strong culture of stewardship

in the Manager's investment approach. The Manager
believes thal engaging with companies is best In the
firstinstance, rather than simply divesung or excluding
Investment opportunities However, there are instances
where governance matters have driven a decision not to
mvest 1 a company. As one of Lthe largest teams investing
In Pan-turcpean real estate equilies, our Manager meets
with a significant number of the management teams of
investee and potential Investee companies each year and
nas a robust record of engagement with an agenda of
reducing nisk, improving performance and encouraging
best practice Whilsl likely an elevated number reflecting
the impact of Covid, over the course of the year, our
management team zarticipated in 380 individual or group
meetings with companies and their management teams

Corperate Governance disclosure requirements have
Increased transparency enogrmously in recent years
and ensbled informed engagement, with social and

employment praclices also gaining increased (ocus and
disclosure. Environmental measures are now (apidly
coming to the fore and with vader disclosure requirements
being placed upon our inveslee companies, as a resull Lhe
Manager is able to scrutinise more easily other measuies
such as chmate change and sustamability policies and
autcomes
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{ompany Corporate Governance and Reporting

The Board also recognises the importance of the
Company’s own Gavernance and disclosures |he
Company’s compliance with the revised AIC Code of
Corporate Governance 1s detailed in the Corporate
Governance Statement on page 44 of this Annual Repart.

Under Section 414 of the Companies Act 2006 Lhere 15 the
requirement to detall information ahout employee and
human nghts; including mformalion about any policies

It has in relation to these matters and elfecliveness

of these policies. As the Trust has ng employees, this
requirement dces not apply. The Company 1s not within
the scope of the UK Modern Slavery Act 2015 because 1t
has not exceeded the turnover threshold and 15 therefore
not obhiged ta make a slavery and human trafficking
statement The Dureclors are satished thal, to the best of
their knowledge, the Company's principal suppliers, which
are histed on page 108, comply with the provisions of the
UK Modefn Slavery Act 2015

The Board currently comprises three male Directors and
two female Directors. The activities of the Nomination
Commuttee 1n 1elalion to the board changes are referred
to 1in the Nomination Commutlee Report on pages 51 and
52 The Board's diversity policy 1s suthned 1n more deta
i the Corporate Governance Report. The Manager has an
equal opportumity policy which 1s set out on its website
wwyy bmo com

Governance of Investee Companies and Exertise of
Voting Power

The Board has approved a corporate governance voting
policy which, 10 1ts opinion, accerds with current best
practice whilst mamntaiming a pnmary focus on financial
refurns.

The exercise of voling nghts altached to the portfoho
has been delegaled to the Manager Where practlicable,
all shareholdings were voted at all company meetings
it the finanaial year in accordance with BMOGAM's
own corporate governance poliaes This ensures thal

4 strong, consistent approach 1s taken to proxy voting
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Corporate Responsibility i)
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As can be seen in the charl above, the fund’s portfolio
weighted carbon mtensity was broadly in ine with thal of
the benchmark, whilst significantly lower than the wider
global equity index  1his reflects the fact that for property,
this 1s largely measurning the impact of ongoing ermissions
fiorm runming a bullding whereas the wider index includes
operating companies with manufactunng capabilities and
the need Lo distribute goods worldwide,

For the property seclor, the locus is currently on the
onergy officiency of buildings once they are owcupied,
but we expect in time more attention will be paid to
the carbon emitted In getting them built and eventually
dismantled which accounts for a large proportion of 2
building’s emissions over its lilespan.

The message is that this is stili an area where 1L1s dilficult
to make fully informed deasions. The assessments from
the various data providers reach different conclusions

as they do not all score In 3 consistent way We expect
this to improve and change but it will be a jousney Qur
Manager Is dedicating a lot of resource to the analysis

ol the information available and also has the benefit

of the knowledge of BMOs award winning Respansible
Investment Tearn. As data coverage Impraves, our
fManager will in turn be able to engage with our invesiee
companies on envirenmental matters and report to our
shareholders in more depth

Direct Propersty Portfolio

The Management team recognises the importance of
sustainability m our business and in the duecl properly
assets which we invest in, hald and manage on behalf of
our investors  Froperty impacts upon the environmert,
the health and wellbeing of occupiers, and the
communities 1n which they are situated. Speailic issues
relevant to physical property investment portfoho include,
for example, responsible and sustainable refurbishment
practices, efficient use of resources throughout their
operation, and design and services to support the health
and wellbeing of occupiers and local communities

Environmental Audits are conducted on all our bulldings
prior ta purchase The Company will take remedial

action or enforce Llenant cbligations to do so wherever
appropniate. In managing Environmental, Socal and
Governance 15sues across the direct portfolio - our
Manager engages with accuplers, exlernal managers and
supphers  As a responsible steward of the Company's
assels. our Manager 1S committed fo 1Improving
suslanability charactenstics through snterventions that are
carelully planned and executed
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Our Manaqger has strong, direct relationships with
occuplers and 1s committed Lo working with them to
develop the data, measurement tools and resources (o
set and achieve meaninglul sustainability targets for the
assets in the portfolio. As part of this, and warking with
the portfolio property managers, a Sustainability Roadmap
1s being implemented which targets biodiversity net gain
across the portfalic by 2025, improving energy, waler and
waste effloency, transitioning to 100% renewable energy
and reducing greenhouse gas emissions in line with
cimate scrence

By order ol the Boaid

David Watson
Charrman

3 June 2021
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Directofs

DAVID WATSON

KATE BOLSOVER

SARAH-JANE CURTIS

Chairman Non-Executive Director Non-Executive Director
Appointed: Appointed: Appointed:

April 2012 October 2019 January 2020
Experience: Experience: Experience:

David became Chairman following
the retirement of Hugh Seabormn on
28 july 2020. Since 30 September
2018 David had served as the Board’s
Senior independent Director when he
simultaneously handed Chairmanship
of the Audit Cornmittee to Tim, 2
position he was appointed to on 1
January 2013. He spent 9 years as
Finance Director of M&G Group pic,
where he was a director of four
equity investment trusts, and more
recently at Aviva plc as Chief Finance
Officer of Aviva General Insurance.

He is a Chartered Accountant and

has had a distinguished career in the
Financial Services Industry.

Kate previously worked for Cazenove
Group and ).P. Morgan Cazenove
between 1995 and 2005 where she
was Managing Director of the mutual
fund business, and latterly director of
Corporate Communications. Prior to
this, she worked extensively in the
investrnent fund industry and was
managing Director of Baring’s mutual
fund group. Kate was also previously
a non-executive director of JPMorgan
American Investment Trust plc until
2016, Senicr Independent Director of
Montanaro UK Smallter Companies
Trust until 2019 and Chairman and
Trustee of Tomorrow’s People until
2017

Sarah-Jane is a Member of the Royal
Institution of Chartered Surveyors.
Sarah-Jane was previously Business
Director at Bicester Village for Value
Retail. Before this, Sarah-Jane was
Director, Covent Garden for Capital
and Counties PLC. She has also
waorked for Grosvenor for 24 years
including as London Estate Director
(retail/Residential) and Fund Manager
for LiverpoolONE.

Skills and Contribution to the Board:
Throughout his executive career, David
has accumulated relevant skills in
finance, audit and risk management
and experience in the investment
industry. His experience as SID and
Chair in a number of boards have built

From her executive experience, Kate
contributes significant and relevant
skills of the investment industry to
the Trust. Kate’s role in various boards
also gives her the relevant experience
in investor and shareholder

skills and Contribution to the Board:
Sarah-Jane has gained extensive
experience during her varied

career, particufarly in the retail, and
experience sectors and for Fund and
investment management activities.

significant experience in shareholder engagement.
and investor engagement.
Other Appointments: Other Appointments: Other Appointments:

David is currentéy Chairman of
Aegon Asset Management UK plc
and he is a Director and Chairs the
Audit Committee at the Prudential
Assurance Company.
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Kate is currently Chairman of

Fidelity Asian Values PLC and Senior
Independent Director of invesco Bond
Income Plus Limited. She is alsc 2
non-executive Director of Baillie
Gifford & Co Ltd.

Sarah-Jane is currently Property
Director of Bicester Motion as well as
3 consuitant to Value Retail PLC.




SIMON MARRISON
Senior Independent Director

TIM GILLBANKS
Chairman of the Audit Committee

Appuinled: Appointed:
September 2011 January 2018
Experience: Experience:

Simon joined the Board of the
Company on 28 September 201 and
became Senior Independent Director
on 28th July 2020. He has over 30
years' experience in the Furopean
property investment industry. He is
currently senior advisor for European
Real Estate at KKR (Kohlberg Kravis
Roberts). Prior to this he spent 19 years
at Lasalle investment Management
where he was European CEO for 12
years with responsibility for 2 portfolic
of over €20 billion across Europe.
Simon has been based in Paris since
1990 having started his career in
London. Until 1997 he was a partner
at Healey & Baker (now Cushman &
Wakefield) and from 1997 to 2001 he
was at Rodamco where he became
Country Manager for France. He joined
LaSatle in 2001 as Managing Ditector
for Continental Europe.

Tim is a Chartered Accountant, with
30 years’ experience in the financial
services and investment industry.
Most recently he spent 13 years at
Columbia Threadneed|e Investments,
initially as Chief Financial Officer, then
Chief Operating Officer and finally as
interim Chief Executive Officer.

Skills and Contribution to the Board:
simon brings in a wealth of
experience, particularly in the
European property market. He has
gained leadership and management
skills in his executive roles and
relevant skills in investment
management.

skills and Contribution to the Board:
Tim brings a wide experience,
particufarly in financial services

and investment management. His
previous financial experience during
his executive career informs him in
his role as the Chairman of the Audit
Committee.

Other Appaintments:
Senior advisor for European Real Estate
at KKR (Kohlberg Kravis Roberts)

Other Appointments:

Tim is currently a Non-Executive
Director for Henderson Global
lnvestors Limited and Henderson
Group Holdings Asset Management
Limited. He is also Vice-Chair of the
Board of Trustees of Blood Cances UK.

All directors are independent of the manager and are members of the Audit Commitiee
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Managers

' L

MARCUS PHAYRE-MUDGE

JO ELLIOTT

Marcus Phayre-Mudge, Fund Manager, joined the
Management team for the Company at Henderson Global
Investors in January 1997, initially managing the Company’s
direct property portfolio and latterly focusing on real estate
equities, managing a number of UK and Pan European real
estate equity funds in addition to activities in the Trust.
Marcus moved to Thames River Capital in October 2004
where he is also fund manager of Thames River Property
Growth & Income Fund Limited. Prior to joining Henderson,
Marcus was an investrent surveyor at Knight frank

(1990) and was made an Associate Partner in the fund
management division (1995). He qualified as a Chartered
Surveyor in 1992 and has a B5c (Hons) in Land Management
from Reading University.

A?L

GEORGE GAY

George Gay, Direct Property Ffund Manager, has been the
Direct Property Fund Manager since 2008. He joined Thames
River Capital in 2005 3s assistant direct property manager
and qualified as a Chartered Surveyor in 2006. George was
previously at niche City investment agent, Morgan Pepper
where as an investment graduate he gained considerable
industry experience. He has an MA in Property Valuation and
Law from City University.
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Jo Hiiott, Finance Manager, has been Finance Manager
since 1995, first at Henderson Glabal Investors then, since
January 2005, at Thames River Capital, when she joined
as CFO for the property team. She joined Henderson
Global Investors in 1995, where she maost recently held
the position of Director of Property, Finance & Operations,
Europe. Previcusly she was Corparate Finance Manager
with Londen and Edinburgh Trust plc and prios to that was
an investment/treasury analyst with Heron Corporation
plc. Jo has a BSc (Hons) in Zoology from the University of
Nottingham and qualified as a Chartered Accountant with
Ernst & Young in 1588. jo is a Non-Executive Director and
Audit Committee Chair of Polar Capital Global Financials
Tryst ple.

ALBAN LHONNEUR

Alban Lhonneur, Deputy Fund Manager, joined Thames
River Capital in August 2008. He was previously at Citigroup
Glabal Markets as an Equity Research analyst focusing on
Continental European Real Estate. Prior to that he was at
Societe Generale Securities, where he focused on transport
equity research. He has a BSc in Business and Management
from the ESC Toulouse including one year at the Brunel
University, London. He also attended CERAM Nice High
Business School. In 2005 he obtained a post-graduate
Specialised Master in finance in 2005 from ESCP-EAP




Report of the Directors

The Directors present the audited fiinancial statements of
the Group and the Company and their Strategic Reporl
and Report of Cirectors for the year ended 31 Maich

2027 The Group comprises TR Property Investment Trust
plc and 1ts wholly owned subsidiaries As permitled by
legislation, some matters normally mcluded in the Report
of the Directars have been included in the Strategic Reporl
because the Board considers them to be of strateqic
importance Therelore, lhe review of the business of the
Company, recent events and outloak can be found on
pages 4 to 35,

STATUS

the Company 1s an invesiment company, as defined
Section 833 of the Companies Act 2006 and operates as
an investment {rust in accordance with Section 1158 of Lhe
Corporation Tax Act 2010.

The Company has a single share class, Ordinary shares.
with a nominal value of 25p each which are premium
listed on the Londen Slock Exchange

The Company has received confirmation from HM Revenue
& Cuslems that the Company has been accepted as

an approved mvestment trust for accounting periods
commencing on of after 1 Apiil 2012 subject to the
Company conlinuing to meet the eligibility conditions of
Sectian 1158 Corporation Tax Act 2010 and the angoing
requiremnents for approved companies in Chapter 3

of Part 2 invastment Trust (Approved Company) (Tax)
Requlations 2073 {(Statutory Instrument 2011/2999).

The Directors are of the opimon that the Company has
conducted and wall continue to conduct 1ts affais so as

lo maintain investment trust status. The Company has
also conducled its affairs, and will conlinue to conduct

its affairs, in such a way as ta comply with the Individual
Savings Accounts Regulations. The Ordinary shares can be
held in Individual Savings Accounts (ISAS).

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

At 31 March 2027 the nel assels of the Company amounted
to £1,326 mullicn {2020- £1136 millon). on a per share
basis 41797p (2020 358.11p) per share.

Revenue earnings per share for the year amounted fo

12 25p (2020 14.62p) and the Dueclors recommend the
payment of a final dwidend of 900p (2020- 8 80p) per
share bringing the total dividend for the year to 14.20p
(2015 14 00p). I armving at thewr dividend proposal, the
Board also reviewed the mcome forecasts for the year lo
March 2022

Performance details are set oul in the Financial Highhights
on page 2 and the cutcome of what the Directors consider

to be the Key Performance indicators on pages 26 and 27
The Chairman’s Statement and the Manager’s Report give
full getails and analysis of the results for the year.

SHARE CAPITAL AND BUY-BACK ACTIVITY

Al 31 March 2021 the Company had 317,350,980
(2020 317.350,980) Ordinary shares in 1ssue.

Al the AGM in 2020 the Directors were given power (o
buy back 47,570,911 Qrdinary shares Since this AGM the
Directors have not bought back any Ordinary shares at
the nominal value of 25p each under this authonty. The
outstanding authonly 1s therefore 47.570,911 shares.

This authority will expire at the 2021 AGM. The Company
will seek to renew the power (o make market purchases
of Ordinary shares at this year’s AGM.

Since 1 April 2021 to the date of this report, the Company
has made no market purchases for cancellation The Board
has nol set a speafic discount al which shares will be
repuichased.

PAANAGEMENT ARRANGEMENTS AND FEES

Details of the management arrangements and fees are
set out in the Report of the Management Engagement
Commitiee beqinning on page 53. Total fees paid

1o the Managerin any ane year (Management and
Performance Fees) may not exceed 4.99% of Group
Fquily Shareholders’ Funds Total fees payable for the
year {0 31 March 2027 amount 10 1.2% (2020 0.8%]) of
Group Equity Shareholders’ Funds. Included in this were
performance fees earned in the year ended 31 March 2021
of £9.659.000 (2020 £2,683,000).

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING AND IFRS

The Group and Company finanoal statements for the year
ended 31 March 2021 have been prepared on a going
cancern basis in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards {IFRS}, which comprise standards and
interpretations approved by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB), together wath interpretations

ol the International Accounting Standards and Standing
inlerpretations Committee approved by the International
Accounung Standards Commuttee {JASC) that remain in
gffect, to the extent that they have been adopted by the
turopean Union and as regards the Group and Company
hinancial statemenls, as apphed in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Acl 2006

The accounting policies are set cut in nole 1to the
financial Slatements on pages 73 to 77
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Repart of the Directors o

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company’s Financial Instruments comprise 1ts
investment portfolio, cash balances, borrowings and
debtors and creditors that anse directly from its operations
such as sales and purchases awaiting settlement, profit

ar loss balances on derivative instruments and acciued
income and expenses The financal nsk management
objectives and policies arsing trom its finanaal
instruments and exposure of the Company Lo risk aie
disclosed in nete 1110 the financial statements.

GOING CONCERN

The Directors” assessment of the longer-term viability of
the Company 15 set out on pages 33 and 34.

In assessing Going Concern, the Board has made & detalled
assessment of the ability of the Company and Group to
meet its Iabilities as they fall due, including stress and
liguidity tests which considered the effects of substantial
falls in investment valuations, substantial reductions

n revenue recerved and reductions in market liquidity
including the effects and potential effects of the continued
economic impac! caused by the Coranavirus pandemic The
Board 15 satisfied with the operatignal resihence of service
providers despite COVID-19 and continues to monrtar therr
performance throughout the pandamic.

In light of testing carned out, the overall levels of the
mvestment hauidity held by the Company and the
significant net asset poitfolio position, and despite the
small net cuirent hability position of the Parent Company
ang Group, the Directors are satisfied that the Company
and the Group have adequale fnanaial resources to
continue tn operation for at least the next 12 months
following the signing of the financial statements and
therefore 1115 appropnale 1o adopl the going concern basis
ol accounting

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group'’s
systems of internal controls and tor reviewirg their
effectiveness The Partfolio Manager 15 respansibie for the
day to day irvestment management decisions on behalf
of the Group Accounting and company secretanal services
Fave both been autsourced

The internal controls aim to ensure thal the assets of the
Group are safequarded, proper accounting records are
maintained, aad the finanaal informatian used sithin

the business and for publication s rehiabte Cont:or of the
nsks identified, covering finanaial, operauanal, comphiance
and nisk management, 15 embedded in the controls of

the Group by a series of reqular iavestment performance
and attribution statements. financial and -1sk anaiyses,
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AIFM and Portfolio Manager reports and quarterly control
reparts. Key nsks have been identified and controls put in
place to mitigate them, including thase not directly the
responsibility of the AlFM or Portfolio Manager The key
nsks are explained n more delaihin the Strateqic Report
on pages 28 to 32,

The effectiveness of each third party provider's internal
controls 15 assessed on a conlinuing basis by the Compliance
and Risk departments of the AlFM and Portfolio Manager,
the Admimistrator and the Company Secretary Each
maintains its own system of internal controls, and the Board
and Audit Committee receve regular reports from them.
The control systems are designed to provide reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance against matenal misstatement or
lass and to manage, rather than eliminate, nsk of fallure ©
achieve ohjectives

As the Company has no emplayees and its operational
functions are undertaken by third parties, the Audit
Commiltee does not consider it necessary for the Company
to establish its own internal audit function. Instead, the
Audit Commiltee relies on internal controf reports receved
from #ts pnncipal service providers to satsfy itself as lo the
controls in place.

The Board has established a pracess for identifying,
evaluaung and managing any major risks faced by the
Group The Board undertakes an annual review af the
Group's system of internal contiois 1IN ine with the Turnbull
guidance Business risks have also heen analysed by

the Board and recorded in a nsk map that 1s reviewed
regularly Each quarter Lthe Board receives a formal
report from each of the AIFM, Portiolio Manager, the
Adrministrator and the Company Secretary detailing the
steps taken te monitor the aieas of nisk, including those
that are not directly their 1esponsibility, and which report
the details of any known internal control failures.

The Board also considers the flow of information and the
interaction between the third party service providers and
the controls i place to ensure accuracy and completeness
of the recording of assets and income The Boaid recerves
a report from the Portfolio Manager set'ing out the key
controls in epeiation

The Board also has direct access t¢ compary secretanal
advice and sefvices prowided by Link Company Maiters
which, through 1ts nominated representative, 1s
respansible for ensuning that the Boarg and Commiiiee
procedures are followed and Lhat applicable requigtions
are complied with

These contrass have been in place tnroughodt the penod
under review and up to the date of signing the accounts



Key nsks identified by the Audiors are considered by the
Augit Commuittee to ensure robust internal controls and
rmonitonng procedures are 0 place n respect of these
risks an an cngoing Sasis

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (THE “AGM™)

The AGi will be held on 27 July 2021 at 2 30pm at the Royal
Autornobile Club, 83/91 Pall Mall, London SW1Y SHS. The Notice
of AGM I1s set out on pages 100 and 101 The full text of the
resolutions and an explanation of each 1s contaned in the
Notice of AGM and explanatory notes on pages 104 1o 107

MATERIAL INTERESTS

There were no contracls subsisting during or at the end

of the year in which a director of lhe Company Is or was
matenally interested and which 1s or was significant in
relation to the Company’s business. No Director has a
contracl of service with the Company. Further detasls
regarding the appointment letters can be found on page 52

DONATIONS

The Company made no political or charitabie donations
durning the year (2020. £nil}

LISTING RULE DISCLOSURE

The Company confirms that there are na items which
require disclosure under Listing Rule 98 4R 1n respect of
the year ended 31 March 2021.

VOTING INTERESTS

Rights ang Obligations Attaching to shaces

Subject to apphcabie statutes and other sharehoiders’ nghts.
shares may be 1ssued with such fights and restictions as
the Company may by ordinary resolution decide, o1 (if there
15 N@ suCh resolution or so far as 1t does not make speafic
provision) as the Board may deade Subject W the Arlicles,
the Companies Act 2006 and other shareholders” nights,
umssued shares are at the dispesal of the Board

Yoting

At a general meeting of the Company, when voting 15
undertaken by way of a poll, each share affords (ts owner
one vote

Rastrictions on Yobing

no member shali be entitled to vote 1f he has been
served with a restnction notice (as defined in the Articles)
after faiture to provide the Company with information
concerning interests 1n those shares required to be
provided under the Companies Act 2006

Deadlines for Voting Rights

votes are exercisable at the general meeting of the Company
in respect of which the business being voled upen is being

heard. Yotes may be exercised In person, by proxy, or in
relation to corporate members, by corporale representatives,

The Articles provide a deadline lor submission of proxy
forms of nol less than 48 hours (or such shorter ime
as the Board may delermine) befare the meeting (not
excluding non-working days).

Transfer of Shares

Any shares in the Company may be held in unceruficated
form and, subject to the Articles, btle to uncertficated shares
may be transferred by medns of a relevant system. Subject
to the Articles, any member may transler all or any of his
cerlificated shares by an instrument of transfer 1n any usual
form o0 any ather form which the Board may approve.

Significant Voting Rights

At 31 March 2027, no shaieholders held over 3% of voting
rghts on a discretionary basis However, al 31 March 2021
the following sharehalders held over 3% of the voling
nghts on a non-discretionary basis:

Shareholder
Brewin Dolphin ttd

Retail Investors - UK

Interactive Investor Share Dealing Services 74%
Rathbone Investment Management Ltd 5.1%
Hargreaves Lansdown Asset Management Ltd 5%
Quilter Cheviot Investment Management Ltd 3.9%
Investec Wealth & Investment {td 3.8%
Charles Stanley Group pkc 3.0%

" see ghove tor further nformatior on the votirg nghts of Ordinary shares

Since 31 March 2021 to the date of this report, the
Company has not been informed of any notifrable changes
with respect to the Grdinary shares

Articles of Assodation

The Campany’s Articles of Association may cnly be
amended by 3 speqal resofution at a General Meeting of
the shareholders

Amendments lo the Articles of Association will be
proposed al the 2021 AGM and further details are set out
on page 106 to 107

Lofpeiate Govarnanoe
Full detalls are qiven in the Corporate Governance Report

on pages 44 to 50. The Corporate Governance Report faims
part of this Directors” Report.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board of Directors 15 accountable to shareholders for
the governance ol the Company’s affairs

This statement describes how the prinaiples of the 2018
edition of UK Corporate Governance Code ("the Code”)
1ssued by the Financial Reporting Councit (the "FRC™) 0
2018 have been applied to the affairs of the Company The
Code can be viewed at www frc org uk

Application of the AIC Code’s Principles

tn applying the principle of the Code, the Directors

have also taken account of the 2019 Code of Corparate
Governance published by the AIC {the "AIC Code”), of which
the Company 15 a member The AIC Code establishes the
lramewaork of best practice specifically for the Boards of
investment trust companies Fuithermaore, the AIC Code
has full endorsement of the FRC, which means Lhat AlC
members who reporl against the AIC Code, on the whale,
meet their abhigations under the Code and the related
disclosure requirements contamed in the Listing Rules The
AIC Code can be viewed al www theaic.co.uk

The Directors believe that during the period under review
they have complied with the main prinaiples and relevant
provisions of the Code, insofar as they apply 1o the
Cornpany’s business, and with the provisions of the AIC Code

Comphance Staiemant

The Directors note that the Company did not comply with
the foliowing provisions of the Code in the year ended

31 March 20271

Provision 9. Due Lo the nature and structure of the
Campany the Board of non-executive direciors does not
feelit 1s appropnate Lo appoint a chief executrve.

Provision 24. The Board believes that all Direclors,
including the Chairman, should siton all of the Board's
Committees

Provision 26 As the Company has no employees and its
operational functions are undertaken by third parties, the
Audit Committee does not consider 1t appropnate for the
Company ta establish its own internal audit function The
Company’s service providers provide assurarce of ther
effective internai processes and controls

Provision 32 The Board ¢aes not have a separate
Remuneratior Commuttee The functions of a
Remuneration Committee are caried out by the
Management Engagemert Committee

TR FROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

¢nmposition and independence of the Board

The Board currently consists of five directars, all of whom
are non-execulive, The Board's independence, including
that of the Chairman, has been considered and all of the
Directors are deemed (o be independent in character and
have no relationships or aircumstances which are hkely to
affect therr jJudgement

The Board subscribes to the view expressed in the AlC
Code that long-serving Directors should not be prevented
from forming part of an independent majonity 1t does not
consider that the length of a Qirector’s tenure, 1n 1solation,
reduces his or her abibily to act independently The
Board's policy en tenure 1s that continuity and experience
add significantly to the strength of the Board although
the Board believes in the merits of an ongomg and
progiessive refreshment of its composiion

Diversity

The Board recognises the benefit of diversity and as of the
dale of this report the Board consists of three men and
two women

Diversity 15 laken into account as part of the recrutment,
appointment and succession planning process and

the Board 15 also aware of the developing corporate
governance with regard Lo ethnicaly of indraidual

Directors. The Board 1s coammitied ta appointing the most
appropnate candidate, 1eqardless ol gender or other forms
of diversity and therefore no targets have been set agamst
which to report

Pawers of the Direciors

Subject to the Company’s Articles of Asscaiation, the
Companies Act 2006 and any direcions given by special
resolution, the business of the Company 1s managed

by the Board who may exercise all the powers of the
Company, whether relating to the management of the
business of the Company or not In particular, the Board
may exercise all the powers of the Compary o borrow
morey and 1o martgage o charge any of 1ts undertakings,
pioperty, assels and uncalled capital and to 1ssue
debentures and other securilies and to give secunly far
any debt, tiability or cbhgation of the Campany to any thid
party

There are no contracts or arrangements wath tied parties
which af‘ect, alter or terminale uzon a change of contros
of the Companry



DIRECTORS

The Chairman 1s Mi Watson and the Senior Independent
Direclor 1s Mr Marnson. M watson succeeded Mr Seaborn
as Chairman when he retired [rom the Board of Directol
following the AGM an 28 July 2020 Mi Marnson succeeded
Mr Watson as the Senior Independent Director on this
date. The Directors’ biographies, an pages 38 and 39,
demanstrate the breadth of investment, commercial and
professional experience relevant to their positions as
Directors of the Company.

Directors’ retirement by rotation and re-election 1s subject
to the Articles of Association. In accardance with the Code,
all directors will be subject to annual re-election.

Ms Bolsover, Ms Curtis, Mi Gillbanks, M Marrison,

Mr Watson will all retire at the forthcoming AGM i
accordance with the Coade and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election All Directors are regarded as
being free of any canflicts of interest and no ssues in
respect of independence anse The Board has concluded
that all Directors cantinue to make valuable contnbutions

BOARD MEETINGS

and believe that they remain independent in character
and judgement

Directors are not compensated by the Company for loss of
olfice in an event of & takecver bid

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established an Audit Commuttee, a
homination Committee and a Management Fngagement
Cornrmittee, which also carries aul the functions ol

a Remunerabion Committes. All the Direclons of the
Company are non-executive and serve on each Committee
of the Board. It has been the Company’s palicy to

include all Directors an alt Committees This encourages
unity, clear communication and prevents duplication of
discussion between the Board and the Commitiees.
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The roles and responsibiliies of each Commuitlee are set
out on the individual Committes reports which foilow. Each
Committee has written terms of reference which clearly
define its responsibiliies and duties These can be found
on the Company’s website, are available on request and
will also be available for inspaction at the AGM

The number of meetings of the Board and Commuttees held dunng the year under review, and the attendance of

individual Direclors, are shown below-

David Watson 6

6
Tim Giflbanks 6 6 2
Simon Marrison 6 & 2
Kate Bolsover 6 6 2
Sarah-Jane Curtis 6 6 2

2 1 1 1 1
2 1 1 1 1
2 1 1 1 1

2 1 1 1 1

In addiion to formal Board and Commitlee meelings, the Directars also attend a number of informal meetings to
represent the inlerests of the Company, and to discuss operational markets and succession planning

THE BOARD

The Board s responsible lor the effective stewardship of the Company's affairs Certain strateqic 1ssues are monitored

by the Board al meetings against a framewaork which has been agreed with the Manager Addiional meelings may

be arranged as required. The Board has a formal schedute of matters specificatly reserved for its decision, which are
categonsed under various headings, including strategy, management, siructure, capital, finanaal reporting, mternal
controls, geanng, asset allecation, share price discount, contracts, investment pohcy, finance, nisk, investment restniclions,
performance, corporate governance and Board membership and appointments

In order to enable them to discharge their responsibilities, all Directors have full and timely access to elevant infermation
At each meeting, the Board reviews the Company's Investment perfaimance and considers financial analyses and other
reperts of an operational nature. The Board monitors comphance with the Company’s objectives and is responsible for
setting asset allocation and investment and geanng limits within which the Portfolio Manager has discretion to act and
thus supervises the management of the investment portioho, which 1s contractually delegated to the Portfolio Manager
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Coiporate Goveinance Report o

The Board has responsibility for the approval of
investrments 1n unquoted investments and any
Investments in funds managed or adwised by the Portfolio
Manager. It has also adopted a procedure for Directois,

in the furtherance of then dulies, to lake independent
prolessional advice at the expense of the Company

CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

I fine with the Companies Act 2006, the Board has the
power to authonse any potential conflicts of interest that may
arise and impose such limits or condiions as 1t thinks fit A
register of potential conflicts 1s mantained and s reviewed at
every Board meeting 1o ensure all detaiis are kept up-to-date
Appropriate authosisation will be sought prior to the
appointment of any new Director or 1f any new confhicts anse

RELATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

Shareholder relations are gqiven ugh prionty by the Board,
the AIFA and the Portiolic Manager The pnme medium
by which the Company communicates with shareholders
15 thiough the Interim and Annual Reports which aim to
provide shareholders with a dlear understanding of the
Company’s aclivities and ther results, This information 1s
supplerrented by the daily calculation of the Net Asset
Value of the Campany s Ordinary shares which s published
on the tondon Stock Exchange.

This information 15 alsa avallatle on the Company's
websile, www trproperty com together with a monthiy
factsheet and Manager commentary

It 15 the intention of the Board that the Annual Report and
Accounts and Notice of the AGM be 1ssued to shareholders
sa as to provide at teast lwenty working days’ notice of
the AGM. Shareholders wishing to lodge questions in
advance of the AGM, or (o cantact the Board at any other
ime, are Invited to do so by witing to the Company
Secretary al the registered address given on page 103

General presentations are given o both sharehalders and
analysts following the publication of the annuat results
All meetings betwean the Manager and shaieholders are
reported to the Board

SECTION 172 COMPANIES ACT 2006

Section 172 of the Companies ACt 2005 requites Clrecors
lo actin good faith and 1t a way that 1s the most Ikeiy
‘o promote the success of the Company In accordance
with the requirements of the Companies (Misceiianecus
Keporting) Keguiations 2018, below, the Company
explains how the Direclors kave discharged their duty
under sechon 172 durirg the reporting penod Fulfiting
this duty naturally supports the Company i acnieving s
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Investment Objective and helps o ensure that all decisions
are made in a respansible and sustainable way

Upon appomntment, Directors’ are provided with a detailed
induction outhming their duties, legally and regulatory, as

a Durector of a UK public hmuted company and continue ta
requiarly receive relevant technical updates and training
Under their letter of appaintment, the Directors also have
access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary,
and when deemed necessary, the Direclors have the
opportunity to seek independent professional advice m the
furtherance of therr duties as a director, at the Company’s
expense The Company has a schedule of Matters Reserved
for the Board which clearly descnbes the Board’s duties
and responsibilities. In addition, there are also the Terms

of References of the Board's Cammuttees which autline

the responsibilities that are delegated from the Board

The Terms of References aie reviewed at least annually (o
consider any requiatory and best prachce developments

DECISION MAKING

The importance of stakeholder considerations, in
particular in the context of decision-making, 15 regqularly
brought 'o the Board's attention by the Company
Secretary and taken into account at every Board
meeting. and a paper reminding Duectors of that is
tabled at the start of every Board meeling. The Board
considers the impact that any matenal decision will
have on afl relevant stakeholders to ensure that it 1s
making a decision that promotes the long-term success
of the Company, whether this be, for example, 1
relation o dividends, new investment opporiunities or
the Company's forward strategy, In addition, the Board,
along with the Manager, hold a meeling focused on
stiategy on an annual basis 1o fook ahead in the market
and anticipate potential scenanos and how this may
impact the Company’s stakeholders

STAKEHOLOERS

The Board recognises the needs and importance of

the Company’s stakehciders and ensures that they are
considered duning all its discussions and as part of its
decisiar-making Since the Company 1s an investment
trust that s externally managed, the Company does
not have any empioyees {the Directors have a Letter of
Appomntrrent and are not empioyees of the Company),
nor does it have a direct impacl on the community

or enyvironment in ine convenlional sense The Board
recagnises its key slakeholders and explains nelow
wny tnese stakeholders are considered important to
tne Company and the actions taken o ensuie that ther
INterests are taken 1L accourt



stakeholder Group and why

they are important

: Shareholders

Shareholder support is
essential to the existence of
the Company and delivery
of long term strategy of the
business.

The Company has over 3,000 Sharehalders, includiﬁg institutional and retail investors. The

Board is committed to maintaining epen channels of communication and to engage with
Shareholders in a manner they find most meaningful in order to gain an understanding of
their views. These include the channels below:

+Annual General Meeting - the Company welcomes and encourages attendance and
participation from Sharehalders at its AGM. Sharehalders have the opportunity to meet the
Directors and Manager and to address questions to them directly. The Manager attends the
AGM and provides a presentation an the Company's performance and the future outlook. The
Company values any feedback and questions it may receive from Shareholders ahead of and
during the AGM and takes action or makes changes, when and as appropriate.
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Publications - The annual and half year reports are made available on the website
and sent to shareholders. These pubiications provide information on the Company and
its portfolio of investments and a better understanding of the Trust's financial position.
This is supplemented by daily publication of the NAV on the Stock Exchange and
monthly factsheets on the Company’s website. The Company is open to feedback from
sharehalders to improve its publications.

Shareholder meetings - The Manager meets with shareholders periodically and often and
feedback is shared with the Board.

- Working with the Brokers - The Manager and Brokers work together to maintain dialogue
with shareholders and prospective investors at scheduled meetings. The Board is provided
with regular updates at meetings and outside meetings if required.

- Shareholder concerns - in the event that Shareholders wish to raise issues or concerns
with the Board, they are welcome to do so at any time by writing to the Chairman at the
registered office. The Senior Independent Director is alse available to Shareholders if they
have concerns that contact through the normal channel of the Chairman has failed to resolve
or for which such contact is inappropriate.

The Manager

Holding the Company’s

- shares offers investors a
liquid investment vehicle
through which they can obtain
expasure to the Company’s
diversified portfolio. The
Investment Manager’s
performance is critical for
the Company to successfully
deliver its investment strategy
and meet its objective.

Maintaining a close and constructive warking relationship with the Manager is crucial, as
the Board and the Manager both aim to continue to achieve consistent, long-term returns in
lime with the Company's investment objective. important companents in the collaboration
with the Manager, representative of the Company’s culture include thase listed below.

Encouraging open, honest and collaborative discussions at all levels, allowing time and
space for original and innovative thinking.

Ensuring that the impact on the Manager is fully considered and understood before any
business decision is made.
Ensuring that any potential conflicts of interest are avoided or managed effectively.

The Board holds detailed discussions with the Manager on all key strategic and operational

topics on an ongoing basis. In addition, the Chairman regularly meets with the Manager to
ensure a close dialogue is maintained.

TR PROPERTY INVESEMENT TRUST 17
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 Stakceholder Group and why

they are important

External Service Providers, particularly the Company Secretary, the Administrator, the Registrar and the

Depasitory and the Broker

A range of advisers enables
the Company to function as
an investment trust and a
constituent of the FTSE 250 to
ensure it meets its relevant
obligations,

Lenders

Availability of funding and
liquidity are crucial to the
Company’s ability to take
advantage of investment
opportunities as they arise.

Board engagement

_

The Board maintains regular contact with its key external providers and receives regular
reporting from themn through the Board and committee meetings, as well as outside of
the reqular meeting cyde. Their advice, as well as their needs and views are rautinely
taken into account. The Management Engagement Committee formally assesses their
performance, fees and continuing appointment at least annuaily to ensure that the

key service providers continue to function at an acceptable level and are appropriately
remunerated to deliver the expected level of service. The Audit Committee reviews and

|

The Board needs to demonstrate to lenders that it is a well-managed business, capable of
consistently delivering long-term retumns.

evaluates the control envirenments in place at each service provider as appropriate.

Regulators

-

The Company can only
operate with the approval
of its regulators who have
@ legitimate interest in how
the Company operates in
the market and treats its
shareholders.

Investee Companies

Partfolio companies are
ultimately shareholders
assets and the Board
recognises the importance
aof good stewardship and
communication with investee
companies in meeting the
Company’s investment
objective and strategy.

The Boaid reqularly considers how it meets various requlatory and statutory obligations and
follows voluntary and best-practice guidance, including how any governance decisions it
rnekes can have an impact on its stakeholders, both in the shorter and in the fonger-term.

]

The Manager communicates regularly with portfolio cumpan}es and is an engaged
shareholder (on behalf of the Company).
The Board monitors the Manager’s stewardship arrangements and recejves regular feedback

on meetings with the management of portfolio companies and voting at their general
meetings.

The Board 1s always mundful of the requirement ta act in
the bestinterests of sharebolders as a whole and to Fave
reqard (o other applcable section 172 factars which farm
part of Board's deaision-making process The following
key deaisions faken by the Board duning the year ended
31 Maich 2021 are examples of this

GEARING

During the finanaal year, the Compary cortinued Lo utilise
its existing revolving annual loar facilities and followirg

a revievy of the avallable options each were renewed on
Sroadly similar terms as the renewsss el due throughout the
year The Board 1s keen to maintain a wide range of banking
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refationships to ensure that it kas access 1o a diverse 1ange
of terms and 1s not rehant on any one provider The faolties
armvide Hlexolity and complenent the langer-term prvate

placerment fixed term debt thats 1n place

Usirg revende reserves 1o support the dividends peld
to sherenoiders

Subect to sharebolder aporoval of the proposed fimal
dividend. the Company paid a 1013l drvidend of 14 20p for the
linangal vear, 1epresenting an increase of 140% compeared
ta the previous yeas The finanaa. vear was a enod of
uncertainty, when many companies, particlarky within e
UK and Furope, either cut, postponec or cancefled therr



dividends The Board recognises the importance of dividends
to shareholders and after careful review of the Company’s
revenue forecasts and reserves together with the investment
outlook with the Manager, the Board deaded that,
notwithstanding the excepticnal market conditions, 1t would
draw on the 1evenue reserve to support the divigend

PORTFOLIO MANAGEMENT
Dunng the vear the Board continued o focus on the

performance of the Manadger i achieying the Compary 3
Investment objective wathin an appropriate nsk framewaork.
Fotlovang the emergence of the COVID-19 pandemic in March
2020, the focus widened to consider the potentiat impact of
COVID-19 on the Company (including porticlio activity, nsks and
opportunilies, geanng, revenue forecasts and the operations
of ather third party providers) Lo ensure that the portfolio had
sufficent resiience together with the Company’s operationat
structure ta meet the unprecedented crcumsiances

DIRECTORATE

The Board's policy on tenure was reviewved dunng the
year The stability of the Board dunng one of the most
challenging periods was considered important particularly
as appointments had been made to the Beard In October
2019 and january 2020 Therefore, na changes were made

to the Board composition during the financial year However,

rhe Board 15 mindful of the importance of kaving a suilable
succession plan especally as David Walson has served on
the Boald since 2072 and Sunon Marnsen since 2071

CULTURE AND BUSINESS CONDUCY

The Board s 10 agreement that having @ good corporale
culture, particularly inits engagement with the fanager,
shareholders and other key stakeholders will aid delivery
of 1ts tong lerm strategy. The Board promates a culture
of openness, in ine with this purpose tarough ongoing
engagement with 1ts service providers and the Manager

The Directors agree that establisiung and mantainimg

a healthy corporate colture within the Board and i its
interaclicn with the Manager, Sharehoiders and other
stakeholders will support the delivery of 1ts purpose, values
and strategy The Board seeks o promole a cultuie of
openness, debate and mtegnty thiough ongoing dialogue
ang engagemert wilh its service providers, pnncpaly the
Manager The Board sinves to ensure that its culture 1s 10
line wih the Company's purpose, values and strategy

The Company has a number of policies anc procedures
N slace to assist wall mairtainng a culture of good

governance including those relaling o diversty,

Dueclors’ confhicts of interest and Drrectais” Jealings in

the Campany’'s shares. The Board assesses and momtors
cormnphance with these palicies as well 35 the general
cuiture of the Board ieqularly through Board meetings and
in particular dunng the annual evaluation pracess which s
undertaken by each Director (for more information see 17e
Board evaluation section on page 51},

The Board seeks to appont the best possible service
providers and evatuates heir service on a 1reqgular basis
as described on page 33. The Board considers the cuituie
of the ranager and other service providers, including
therr pohicies, practices and behaviour, through reguiar
reporting from these stakehalders and in particutar during
the annual review of the perfarmance and continuing
appointment of all service providers

EMPLOYEE, SOCIAL IMPACT AND WIDER
COMMUNITY

The Baard recognises the requirement under the Companies
Act 2006 to detail information about human nights,
employees and community 1ssues, including information
about any poitcies it has in relatior 1o these matters and
the effectiveness of these policies These requiremerts,
pracucally, are not applcabie to the Company as 1t has no
employees, all the Directors are non-executive anc It has
outsourcad all operanonal functions to third-party service
providers. Therefore, the Company has not reported furthes
in respect of these provisions

DIRECTORS INDEMNITY

Directors’ and Officers” habihity insurance cover is n
place in respect of the Directers The Campany's Articies
of Asspaation provide, subject ta the provisions of LK
ieqislation, an indemnity for Cirectors in respect of costs
which they may incus relating to the defence of any
proceedings brought against them ansing out of therr
posiions as Directors, in which they aie acquitted o
Judgement is given in therr favour by the court

To the exient permitted by law and by the Company’s
Articles of Association, the Cempany has entered mto
deeds of indemnity for the benefit of each Drecior of
the Company in respect of liabihties which may attach to
them in their capacity as Direclors of the Company. These
provisions, which are quahifying third party indemnity
provisions as dehined py section 234 of the Companies
ACL 2006, were intiocduced 10 January 2007 and carrently
remain i lorce

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST
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DIRECTORS STATEMENT AS TO DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION TO AUDITORS

The Direciors who were members of the Board at the time
of approving the Ditectors report are listed on pages 38
and 39 Having made enquines of fellow directors and of
lhe Company's auditars, each af these Directors conlirms
‘hat

to the best of each Director’s knowledqge and beliel,
there 15 no information (that 1s, formation needed by
the Company's auditers 0 connection with prepanng
their report) of which the Company’s audilors are
unaware, and

each Director nas taken all the stens a Director might
reasonably be expected to have taken to be aware of
relevaat audit information and 1o establish thal the
Company's auditars are aware of that information

This infermation 1s gqiven and should be interpreted in
accoidance with the orowisions of Section 4'8 of Lhe
Companies Act 2006

3y arder of the doard

David Watson
Crarrmean

3 June 207"
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Report of the Nomination Committee

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Chairman i Watson

KEY RESPONSIBILITIES

Review the Board and its Commitlees and make
recommendations in relation te stiucture, size and
composition, the balance of knowledye, expenence
and skill ranges,

Consides succession planmng and tenure policy and
oversee the development of o diverse pipeline,

Consider the re-election of Directors; and
Review the oulcome of the board evaluation process

The Nominalion Commitlee meels at least on an annual
basis, and more frequently as and when required and last
met in March 2021

ACTIVITY DURING THE YEAR

The Commttee discussed succession planning of the
Board, the tenure and diversity pohcies

The Committee annually reviews the size and structure

of the Board and will continue Lo 1eview succession
planming and further recruitment and take nto account the
recommendations of external Board evaluations

BOARD EVALUATION

Following the engagement ol Tim Stephenson of
Stephenson & Co, to facilitale an independent evaluation
of the effectiveness of the Board, its commultees ard
the perfarmance of each directer for the year ended

31 March 2020 The annual evaluatior for the year endeq
37 Maich 2027 was carmed cul by the Company. This
took the form of questionnaires loilowed by discussions
to 1dentfy the effectiveness of the Board's activities,
Including 1ts Commuttees

The Chairmar also reviewed with each Director their
individual performance, contribution ang commitment.
The appraisal of the Chairman followed the same farmat
and was led by Simon Marnson The results of the
evaluation process were preserted to and considered by
the Board There were no significant acuons ansing from
the evalualion process and 1t was agreed that the currert
composition of the Board and s Committees reflected a
stitable mix of sialls and expenence. and that the Board
as a whole, the indiidual Directors and its Commnutlees
were functioning effectively

Atter carelul consideration, particularly of the Board's Policy
Governing Boaré Members’ Tenure and Reappaintment, all
of the dinectors, will be offenng themselves for re-election
at the forthcoming AGK 1L1s considered thal eacty of them
mert re-election by sharehalders Furthes information on

each directers’ skitls anct thewr contnbution to the Board are
outhned n the ditectors’ biographues on pages 38 and 39

In accordance with the provisions of the Code, it 15 the
mtention of the Board to engage an external faciitalor o
assist with the performance evalualion every three years
and the rext externatl evaluation will be carned cul for
the year ended 31 Maich 2023 The Board will continue to
compiete an inteinal board evaluation annuaily within the
Intervening years

BOARD'S POLICY ON TENURE

In ine with the updale of the Code in 2018, the AIC has
updaled its Code of Corporate Governance in 201% The AIC
recommended, under Provision 24, a different approach to
tenure 10 relation to invesiment companies, considering
how they differ to chairs of operating companies, where
the Board does not have a chiel executive 1he Board tock
into consideration the approach and ntroduced the "Policy
Governing Board Members' Tenure and Reappaintment’
Thus pohcy outhnes the Company’s approach to tenure and
reapporntment af non-executive directors. It fughlights the
Board's belief that the value brought thiough continuity
and expenence of Direclors with longer penads of service
15 nol only desiranle, sut essentizl 10 an investment
company 11e Board did not feel that it would be
approprate o set a specific tenure fimit for indrvidual
Cnectors or the Chairman of the Board or 1ts committees.
[nstead, the Board will seek to recruit a rew Directar on
average every three vears so as requiarly to bring the
challenge of fresh thinkung into the Board’s discussions.
ensuring that on eacn occasion that the Board enlers nio
new nvestment commitments, at feast half the Board
members have direct personal expenence ol regotialing
pievious commitments with the Manager

DIRECTORS TRAINING

When a new Director 1s appainted, he/she 1s offered
training to suit tneir needs Directars are also provided
with key information or the Cormpany s activilies on

a regular basis. ncluding regulalory and statutory
requirements aad internal contiols Changes atfecling
Directors’ responsibilities are advised to the Board as they
anse. Directors ensure that tney are updated on regulatory,
statutary and induslry matters

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST
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MANAGEMENT FEES

The fee for the penod under 1eview was a fixed fee of
£3,745,000 plus an ad valorem fee of 0 20% pa based on
the net assel value (determined in accordance with the
AIC method of valuation) on the last day of March, June,
September and December, payable quartesly m advance

The fee arrangements have heen revtiewed by the Board
for the year to 31 March 2022 and the fixed element of the
‘ee and the ad valorem rate will remain unchanged

The Board continues Lo consider that the fee structure
aligns the interests of the shareholder and the Manager as
well as being highly compelilive

The fee arcangements will continue to be reviewed on an
annual basis

PERFORMANCE FEES

I~ acdiion to the management fees, the Board has agieed
to pay the Manager performance relaled fees in 1especi of
an accounting penod il cerlain performance objectives are
achieved

Aperformance Tee 1s payable 11 the tolal retuin of adjusted
~et assels (alter deduction of all Base Management
Fees and other expenses), as defined in the A,

31 March each year outperforms the toial return of the
Company's henchmark plus 125 {the "hurdle rate”), this
outperformance {expiessed as a percentage} 1s known
as the percentage outperformance” Any fee pavable
will be the amu.ant equivalent to the adjusted net assels
at 31 March each year multphed by the percentage
outperformance, then multipsed oy 15% The maximum
performance ‘ee payanle for a pernod is capped al 15%
of the adjusied net 2ssets kowever f the agjusied

net asse's at the end of any penod are less than al the
beginning of the peniad. the maximum per‘oTrance fes
pavanle will be mited to 1%y of the adjusled net assels

if the total resarn of sharenoiders’ lunds for any
performance penad 1s iess thar the benchmark for the
evanl oerlor mance penad, such J-darperformance

HMESSEC 25 4 perteagel Wil he camed forward o

foare petforrance penods

el il ne carred ‘onserd and

feapressad as 2 percentag

apoied tg offsel any perceiage anderper’n mance

in future peformence penods 0 e svent that the
SENCNMAa <13 estescad o0t e hardle s rot, e
autperfnimerce of the penciratk car be used 10 0¥sel

025t or futue sadermeforance These 4mnunts can
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be used for offset purposes only and therefore cannot
have the e'fect of creating a fee 1n a year where a [ee
would ret otherwise be payable or increasing the fee
In that year At 31 March 2027 there 1s a carry forward af
outperformance of 18% (2020 18%:)

No fee will De payable urless the adjusted nel assets
outperfarm the hurdle rate, after taking nto account

any accumulated percentage underperloimance

brought ferward at the beginning of the inancial year
Performance fees earned 1n the year ended 31 Maich
2077 were £9,659,000 (2020 £2.683,000) Tolal fees

paid to the Manages in any one year (Management and
Performance Fees) may not exceed 4 99% of Group Fquity
Shareholcers” Funds Total fees payable for the year to 31
March 2027 amount to 1 2% (2020 0 8%;) of Gioup Equity
Shareholders’ Funds

DEPOSITARY ARRANGEMENTS AND FEES

BNP Paribas was appainted as Depasttdary or 14 july 2074
In accordance with the AIFMD The Oepasitary’s
respansibilities include cash monitonng, segregation and
safe keeping of the Company’s finaacial mstiuments, and
monitoring the Company’s campliance witn investiment
and leverage requirements The Depositary recenesy
forits services a fee of 2 0 basis peints per annum on
the list £150 mibon of the Company's assels, 14 pasis
pAIFES Par annum on assets abave £156 mitiicr and
below £500 mithon and G 75 basis points on assels ahove
£500 million

REVIEW OF THIRD PARTY PROVIDERS' FEES
Custody anc Administ-ation Services are provided by

BNP Panbas and Company Secretanal Services by Link
Company Mallers. The tees for these setvices are charged
directy lo the Compary and are cantained within

oter administrative expenses disc'osed inno'es to the
ACcounts

David Watson



Directors’ Remuneration Report

INTRODUCTION

The Board has prepared ths report and the Directors’
Rernuneration Policy, 1n accordance with the requirements
ol Schecule 8 of the Large and Medium Sized Companies
and Groups {Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2013 An
ordinary resolution for the approval of this report will be
pul lg the members at the farthcorming Arnual Genelal
Meeting

The law reqiires the Company's Auditors, KPMG LLP

o andit certain of the disclosures provided where
disclosures have been audited, they are indicated as such
The Auditor's opiion 1s included 0 the ‘Independent
Auditor’s Report’

ANMUAL STATEMENT FROM THE CHAIRMAN OF
THE COMMITTEE

The MEC 1netin March 2021 and considered the results
and feedback from the hoard evaluation alongside
other factors The MFC aiso considered the irequency of
remuneration increasas for the Trust, feedback from the
market and nvestors or the level of frequency and the
current impact of the outbreak of oronavirus (COVID-19)

Following the MEC meeting in March 2027, 1t was agreed
that the current fevel of remuneration for the Board of lhe
Irast remained approprate. 1t was also agreed that the
Non-executive Director’s fee would remain at £35,000 pei
annum with effect from * Apnl 20271, 1t was further agreeg
that the Directors holding the role of the Audit Committee
Charrman and Senlor Independent Direcior would continue
to recerve an additional £5,000 to reflect the increase in
therr responstbiliies Moreaver, 1t was adreed that the
Chairman’s remuneralion would reman al £70,000,

DIRECTORS REMUNERATION POLICY

The Company's pohcy 1s that the fees payable to the
Directors should reflect the ume spent by the Board on
the Campany’s affairs and the responsibihfies borne by the
Oirectors and should be sufficient to enatble candidates of
nigh cahbre to be recruted The policy s far the Chairman
of the Board, the chairman of the Audit Committee and
the Seniar Independent Directol Lo he paid higher fees

than the other Directors in tecogition af their more
onerous roles This policy was approved by the members
dat the 2020 AGM, and the Dureclors”intention 1s that this
will continue for the year ending 31 March 2023

The Directors are temunerated in the form of fees,
payable monthly in arrears, 1o the Director personally or
to 3 third party speafied by that Diector. There are no
long-term incertive schemes, share option schemes or
pension arrangements and the fees are not sperificatly
related to the Directors’ performance, erther indivdually or
collectively

The Board consists entirely of Non-executive Directars.
who are appointed with the expectation that they will
serve for a period of three years Directors’ appaintments
are reviewed formally every three years therealler by the
Board as a whole None of the Directors have a contract
of service and a Direclor may resign by notice in writing
to the Board at any Ume, there are ne notce penads The
terms of their appointment are detailled 1n a letler to them
when they join the Board As the Cirectors do not have
service contracts, the Company does nat have a policy on
termimation payments

There 1s no notice pencd and no payments for loss of
office were made dunng the penod The Company’s
Articles of Association currently nrmit the total aggregate
fees payable to the Board to £300.000 per annum,

sharehoiders’ views i respect of Directors remureration
are communicated at the Campany's AGM and are laken
inte account i formulating the Directors remuneraton
policy. At the last AGM, over 99 6% of shareholders voted
for the resolution approving the Directors” Remuneration
Report (0 4% against) At the 2020 AGM, over 9% voled
for the resolution approving the Direclors” Remuneration
Poicy (0 4% aqainst). showing significant sharenolder
support.

The components of the remuneration package for
Non-executive Directors, which are compnsed in the
Directors’ remuneration policy of the Company are sel out
below, with a description and approach (o determiration
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- Fixed Fees ! Additional Fees Expenses Fees ﬂher
The aggregate limit for the Additional fees may be paid  The Directors are entitled Board members are not
Fees for the Board as a whole to any Director wha fulfils the to be paid all reasonable eligible for bonuses, pension
is £300,000 per annum, in role of the Chairman, who expenses properly incurreg benefits, share options,
accordance ta the Articles of  chairs any committee of the by them attending meetings  long-term incentive schemed
Association, which is divided  Board or wha is appointed with shareholders ar other or other non-cash benefits or
between the Directors as as the Senior Independent Directors of otherwise taxable expenses.
they may deern appropriate.  Director. in connection with the
Annual fees are set to These fees will be set d1-scharge of their duties as
reflect the experience of at a competitive level to Directors.
each board member and retlect experience and time

time cornmitment required commitment.
by Board members to carry

out their duties and is

determined with reference to

the appeintment of Directars

of similar investment

companies.

ANNUAL REMUNERATION REPORT

For the year enced 3% March 2021, Direcloss fees were pard at the annual rates of Chairman £70,000 (2020 £70.000)
and all otner directois £35,000 (2020 £35,600) An addittonal £5,000 15 paid per anrum for each of the roles of Audit
Commitlee Chairman and Serior Independent Giector The actual amounts paid Lo the Directors duiing ine inanaal year
under reviewr are as shown below

AMOUMNT OF FACH DIRECTOR'S EMOLUMENTS {AUDITED)

The fees payable in respec: of each of the Directors who served duning the finanoal yea: were as follows

m B
£

David Watsont” 60,461 40,000
Simon Marrisen'd 38,410 35,000
Tim Gillbanks 40,000 40,000
Kate Bolsover 35,000 17,500
Sarah-Jane Curtis 35,000 6,372
Hugh-Seaborn® 23,333 70,000
Total T 7 3,204 208,872
all fees are at a lixed rate ard there 15 1o vanape eruneranns Fees are prg-aled »nere 3 change takes slace cuning

300 € [here are no

0n the anle at

EARrdve o axer e drectons

3 nancie year Thets were no payments o thud peraes indludes in the fees e'e1 ¢

lumrer ‘eas 10 Cistinse as t1e Corrpany 1as 1o 2P

AREOTIEN gt (he it e™ or 28 Ly 400
SApGteT as Serof roepercenl Greon o A Ly ALl

etizczs Smarma o 78 L v AGIC
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Directors’ Remuneration Repart - 0oy

COMPANY PERFORMANCE

The graph below compares. [of the ten yeais ended

31 Maich 2021, the percentage change over each period

in the share pnce tolal return to shareholders comparad

lo the share price lolal retuin of benchmark, which the
Board considers to be the most appropriate benchmark

for investment performance measurement purposes An
explanation of the perfermance of the Company 1S gqiven in
the Chanman’s stalement and Manager’s Report,

Performance Graph - $hare Price Total Return for
Ordinary Share Class

4000
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500

Mat-Tl M1 MaeT Mar Maris Mards war17 Mar-il Mar Mar20 Mar

[l 1R Property Share Price Tolai Retuin  #8 Benchmark Tolal Return
share Prce tetal Retuim assurming 'avestment of £7,000 on 31 Maich 2€17 and
rervestirent of all divicencs (excludiry dealing expenses) (Scurce: 1hames
Rver Laptal)

Benchinark 1otel Return assumirg netional investment irte the index of £7,.000 on

31 March 2017 (Source Tharmes R wer C2p-tal)
DIRECTORS INTERESTS IN SHARES {(AUDITED)

The interests of the Directors In the shares of the
Company, at the beginning and at the end of the year. or
date of appointment. If later, were as fo'lows.

Ordinary shares of 25 pence

David Watson 36,083 35,692
Simon Marrison 43,367 42,326
Tim Gillbanks - -
Kate Bolsover 2,360 2,360

Sarah-jane Curtis - -

Since 31 March 2021 1o the date of this report. there have
been no subsequent changes to the Cirecrors interests i
the shares of the Company

Relative Importance of Spend on Pay

£'000
Dividends paid 44,429
Directors’ fees

Five year change comparison

232

2020
£000 Change
43,794 1.4%
1.0%

209

Over the last five years. Directors’ pay has increased as set

out 1A the table below

N

£000

Chairman 70,000

Audit Committee

Chairman 40,000
Senior Independent

Director 40,000

35,000

Director

For and an behall of the Board

David Watson

3 June 2021

2016
£'000 Change
70,600 0%
35,000 14.3%
35,000 14.3%

30,000

16.7%
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Report of the Audit Committee

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Chairman- fr Gillhanks

KEY RESPONSIBILITIES
+ Review the intermal financial and non-financia: conltrols,

Review reporls lrom key thid party service providers,

- Consider and recommend to the Board for approval the
contents of the draft Intenm and Annual Reports,

+ Rewview accounting policies and significant financial
reporting judgements,

Monitor, together with the Managel, the Company’'s
comphance with financial reporting and requlatory
requIrements;

« The review and subsequent proposal to the Board of
the wtenimn and hinal dvidends, and

- Lopsidenng the impact of pinviding nan-audil services
on the external Adcitors 1ndependence and ohjectivity

Representatives of the Manager's intermai aucit and
comphance departmerts -nay attend these commitiee
meetings at the Commutlee Chairman’s request

Representatives of the Compary’s audiior attend the
Cominittee meehings at whick the drait Intenim and
Annual Report and Accounts are reviewed, and a.¢ gluer
the opporiuriy to speak Lo the Commitles nembers
without the preserce of the epresentatives ot the
Manager

The Board recagnises the reque ment for the Audd
Commiee as 4 wnole 1o have competence relevant
to the sector and at least one meTber with recent and
refevant financial expenence The Chairmar and Mr
Watson are Chasterad Accountants vith extersive and
recent expenience in the Firaroal Seqvices Industry The
other nembers of the Commities rav2 a corairanon of
property. [inarcial, mvestmeat and husiness exserience
th:augh semor posiions held throughout their careers

ACTIVITY DURING THE YEAR

Dunieg the
membe

Comderatmr o' the Ris< Liag, a":, renges o the
<2 thGoC ormpart of risks and covsecyenial

Cmanges reTunras 10 304 s Wanien g and mlgauan

Corsiceranor of any, ~ew o7 emergirg
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nsks and inclusion in the Rrsk Mapf appropoate This
has inctuded considesation of the ongaing COVID-19
pandemic and impact acoss a range of nsk calegories,

The Groups Internal Controls and consideration of the
Repors thereon,

The ISAE/AAF ard SSALTG reporls or ther equivalent
from 3M0 and BNP Panbas,

Whether the Company should have 1ts own mtemnal
audit function,

The Exlemal Auditor's Planning Memorandum seiting
out the scope of the annual audit and proposed key
areas of focus,

The reports from the Auditors cancerring then audit
of the Finanaal Statemenss of the Company and
Consideration of Signaficant issues 1n relation to the
Finaraal Statements,

The appiopratensss ol, and any charges o, the
accounting policies of the Company, including the
reasonasleness of ary judgements requued ny such
policies,

The Viability Staterment enc consideration of the
preparation of the Financial Stalements an 4 Geing
Cancesn Basts taking account of inrward looking incomre
forecasis, the hquidity of the invesiment portioiio and
deb piofile,

The firancial anc other disclosures 11 the Finangal
Staterents;

The information presenied 1~ the Irtenm and Arnual
Reparts 10 assess whether, taker as a wnole tre
Reports are fan, balanced and understarcable and the
irformator presented will enasle e shareholders to
assess the Comoary's cosiion, peiformaice, business
Tocel and sirategy:

The pe-formance of te externe’ gditors, to apoione
Irew gt lees anc rorgder Ine assessmer: of

Al e oesrd of

Tre reaenel 7 the Comyptes’s Termis of Reloie
ensd Ing they remalr app oonate and comp iail wih
2 8 L« Cornorate GoLe ~ance Code



Report of the Audit Committee cortrued

INFERNAL CONTROLS AND MANAGEMENT OF
RISK

Ihe Board has overali responsibility for the Group’s system
of Internal Contiots and for reviewang their effectivensss
Key nisks identified by the Auditors are considered by the
Audit Comimitlee Lo ensure that robust internal controls
and monitonng proceduores in respect of these are n piace
on an ongoing basis Further details can be found on

page 28 to 32

The Audit Committee recerved and considered reports on
Internal Contrals fram Lhe key service providers No areas
of concern were highhghted.

The Company's Risk Map was considered to identify any
new nsks and whether any adjustments were required 1o
existing nsks, and the controls and mitigation measures
in place i respect of these risks. The impact of COVID-1S,
the response of financal markets, the ongoing impact

on economies around the world and operational changes
made by aur service providers In response to governmer
guidehnes were considered and the nisk map adjusted
accordingly

Based on the processes and contiols n place within the
BMO Group and other significant service providers, the
Board has concurred that there 1s no current need for the
Company to have 4 dedicaled internal audit function

SIGNIFICANT ISSUES IN RELATION TO THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Commutiee has considered this ieport and financial
staternents and the Viability Statement on pages 33

and 34 The Committee considered the Audilol’s
assessment of sk of matenal misstatement and eviewed
the internal controls in place n respect of the key areas
identified and the piocess by which the Board monitors
each of the procedures to give the Committee comfort

on these nsks on an ongoing basis These risks are also
highlighted in the Company's Risk Map

Carrying amount of listed investments (Group
and Parent Company) - The Group's Investments aie
naced for the daily RAV by BNP Panbas The qualed
assets ale priced by the Administrators Global Priang
Platform which uses independent external pnang
sources The contiol process suirounding this s set
out It the BNP Panbas AAF 01/26 Internal Contials
Repart and testing by the reporting accountant lor the
penod reported 10 31 December 2020 did not revedl
any significant exceptions The quarteny control resort
to the Board lioim B8NP Panbas coverng the penad up

to 31 March 2071 had no significant issues to report
In addition the Manager estimates the NAY using
an alternative pnang source on a daily basis as an
independent check.

The Auditors agresd 100%: of the listed invesiments
aof the portfolo to externally quoted prices and
independently recerved third party confirmations from
mvestment cuslodians and found the carrying value of
listed investiments to e acceptable.

valuation of Direct Property Investments {(Group
and Parent Companyy) - The physical property
portfolio 1s valued every six months by prafessional
independent valuers

Knight Fiank LLP value the portfolic on the bas:s of
Farr Value in accordance with the RICS Valuation -
Professional Slandards VPS4 {1 5) Fair Value and VPGA
1valuations for Inclusion in Financai Statements,
which apply the definition of tair value adopted by
the internabional Financial Reporting Standards IFRS 13
defines Fan Value as-

“The amount for which an asset could be exchanged. a
lrability settled, or an equity instrument granted coutd
be exchanged, between knowledgeable. willing parties
i an arm'’s length transachion”

i undertaking their valuation of each property, Kmight
Frank make then assessment on the basis of a collation
and anatysis of appropriale comparable investments,
rental and sale ransactions, logether with evidence

of demand wathi the vicinity of each property This
wformation is then applied to the properties, taking
mito account size Iocation, terms, covenant and other
material factors

the board has rewiewed reports from the Mandager and
the external valuer and determined the valuation to be
reasonable

The Auditors have sel out they detailed testing and
procedures i respedt of Uhe Direct property valuation
and concluded that they found the Company’s valuation
af investment properhes to be acceptabie.

There has been nothing brought to the Cammittee’s
attention in respect of the finanaal statements for the vear
ended 31 March 2027, which was matenal ar significant or
that the Cormmittee felt should he brought 1o sharehalders’
attention

IR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST



AUDITOR ASSESSMENT AND INDEPENDENCE

The Company's external audilon KPMU LLP was
appointes as the Company’s auditors al the 2016 AGM
The Comrillee expects ta iepeat a lender process ro
later than 2026 10 respect of the audit far the following
31 March year end, 1n ne wath the latest Corporate
Governance provisions

Dunng the year, KPMG presentec ther Audit Plan for

the vear end at the intenm Commiliee meeting and the
Committee considered the audit process and fee proposal
The Commitiee also reviewed KPMG'S independence
pohaes and procedures including quality assurance
procedures. Il was tonsidered thal \hese policies are il
for purpose and the Directars are salishied that KPMG are
Independent

Tolai fees payable (o the Auditor in respect of the audit [or
the year to 31 March 2021 were £80.000 (2020 £80,000),
which wete approved by the Audit Commiltee

The Commuties has approved and implemented a poiicy
on the engagement of the Auditor to suppiy non-audit
services, [aking into account the recommendations of
the Accounting Practices Board wilh a view 1o ensunng
that the extenal Auchtor does rol provide ron-audit
services tial have the potenhial 10 1mpan of appeal 1o
impar the incependence of ther audit 1ole 'n additior,
the Conmittee reviewed the actions pul in Jlace by the
Auditor to ensure there was a clear separation betweer
audil and advisary services The Committee does rot
believe teie to oe any 1mpeciment to the Auditol's
objecuvily and independence

The fees for non-audit services for (e vear to 31 Mardy
2027 were i (2023 mi)

Fall detais of the Auditar’s fees a7e provided in note 6 7o
R atcous or 2age 7%

Tne Boarg nowec that M Kelly, tre currenl partnes, vwas
aoparrted for the 2077 year-g~¢ audit 2no il continae

as partrer iy U e Conc usinT of e 2027 vear-2ra
JuCt MY

fort=e 20227 ;eare~d audit M iercrant s considerabie
serercaan the Frrgroal Sercas sec

WURerchar o ceslace o Kelly as aude patiner
I7wesirer: Trust Comparies

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

P3¢ the audi o

Following each audit the Commuttee reviews the audit
nrocess and considers its effectiveness and the gualty
of the services pravided (o the Compary within this
process, Lhe Commutiee takes into consideration therr
own assessment, the sell-evalugtion of ihe audrtor and
the Audit Quality Review Report produced by the FRC N
arder to momtor the pregress of the Auditor's pedfarmance
comparable with 1ts peer and the targels set by the FRC
Ihe review following the complehor of the 2020 Audit
concluded that the Commuliee was sahshied walh the
Auditor's effectiveness and perfoimance

The Commitiee felt that KRG had run an effeclive

and efficient aucit process wiih appropriate challenge
Subsequently, a resolution Lo re-anppomt KPMG LLP as
the Campany’s Auditor will be pul to shareholders at the
forthcoming AG

Tim Gillbanks

3 June 2021



Statement of Directors’ responsibilities in relation to the

Group financial statements

The direclors are responsible for prepaning the Annual
Report, the Strategic Report, the Directors Report and the
finanaal statements In accardance with applhcable law and
requlatians

Company law requires the directors to prepare Group
and Parent Company linangal stalernents for each
financial year Under that law they are required to
prepare the Group hnanaal statements 1n accordance
with inlernationai accounting standards in confarmity
with the requiremnents of the Companies Act 2006 and
applicable law and have elected to prepare the Parent
Company financial statements an the same hasis In
additien the Group hinanaial statermens are required under
the UK Disclosure Guidance and Tiansparency Rules (o
be prepared n accordance with :nternational Financial
Reporting Standards adepted pursuant to Requlation (£C)
No 1606/2002 as 1t apphes in the European Union

Under company law the direclors must not approve the
financial statements unless they are satisfied that they
give a tiue and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group and Parent Company and of the Group’s profit or
loss for that penod In piepanng each of the Group and
Parent Company financial stalements, the directors are
required 1o.

selecl suitable accounting policies and then appy therm
consisiently,

make judgements and estimates that are reasonable,
relevant and reliable,

state whether they have been prepared in accordance
with snternational accounting standards in conformity
with the requirements of the Companies Acl 2006 and,
as regards the group financial staternerts, International
Financial Reporting Standards adepted pursuant to
Regulation (EC) No 160672002 as it apphes in the
European Union,

assess the Group and Parent Company's ability {o
conlinue as 4 gomg concern, disclosing. as applicable,
matlers retated w0 going cancern, anc

use the going corcern basis of accounting Jnless they
either irtend ta hguidate the Gioup or the Parent
Company ar to cease operatons, of have no rzalistc
alternative but te do so

The dieclors aie responsile for keeping adequate
accaunting records that aie sufficient to show and expiain
the Parent Company’s transacticns and disclose wilh
reasonable accuracy at any ume the financial posiion

of the Parent Company and epable them to enswie that

its financial stalements comply with the Companies Act
2006 They are 1esponsible for such internal contral as
they determune 1s necessary to enable the preparation
of limanaal staternents that are free fram matenal
misstaternent, whether due lo fraud or error, and have
general responstbility for taking such steps as are
reasonably open to them to safeguard the assels of
the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other
lrequianties

FINYNUEIADD

Under apphcable law and regulations, the directors are
alsa respansible for prepanng a Strategic Report, Directors’
Report, Direclors’ Remuneration Report and Corparate
Governance Statement thal complies with that law and
those regulations

The directors are responsible for the mainlenance and
mtegnty of the corporate and finanaal information
included on the Company s website {egislation in the
UK governing the preparation and dissemination of
linangial statements may differ frem legislation m other
Junsdictions.

RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT OF THE DIRECTORS
IN RESPECT OF THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

Fach of the ditectors confirms that to the best of Ltheir
knowledge

the finanial stalements, prepared IR accorgance win
the apphcahle set of accounting standards, give a tige
and fati view of the assets, labiities, finanaial posiion
and profit or loss af the Group and Parent Company and
the undertakings included i the consohdation taken as
a whale; and

the strategic report Inciudes a fais review of the
deveiopment and performance of the husiness and the
position of the 1ssuer and the undestaiings ncluded

In the consalidation laken as a whole, together with a
description of the prinaipal nisks and uncertainties thal
they face

The Directors consider the annual report ard accounts,
taken as a wnole, 15 fain, balanced and understandatle
and provides the infarmaticn necessary far shareholders
to assess the gioup’s positon ard performarce, busiress
madel and strateqy

By oider of the Board

David watson

3 June 2021
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KPMG

Independent auditoi’s report

to the membess of TR Praperty Investment Trust plc

1. OUR OPINION IS UNMOODIFIED

We have audited the financial staternents of TR Froperty
Investment Trust Plc ("the Company ) for the year ended
31 march 2021 which comprise the Group Staternent of
Comprenensive Income, Croup and Company Siatements

ol thanges m Equity, Gioup and Company Balance Sheels,

Group and Company Cash Flow Statements
notes. Including the accountng policies in note 1

In our opwan:

— The firanaal staterments giue a true and fair view of
the state of the Company's affairs as at 31 March 2021
and of the Groups return for tre yeai then ended,

— The Group financal statements have beer: property
prepared in accordence vath Uk-adopted international
accoualng standaids,

— The Parent Company financial statements have heen
propelly prepared i accordance vath UK-adopted
Internationa: accounting starca,ds and as apphed in
atrmdm(e with the provisions of the Campanies Act
2806, ant

— lhe financiat statemerts hive deen orepared i
accoidance with the requirements Of the Companies
ACT 2006 and, as regerds the Gloun finanaal
slaterents, Articie 4 0% tne
Appitahe

and the related

(A4S Regulatio™ to lre extert

Basis for opinion

We canducted our audilin accordance with Intesnatignal

standards on Audining (UK) ("15As {UK)") and appiicabie

lave. Our responstbihiies are desenibed below We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is a sufficient
nd appropnate basis for cur oomon Our audit optmon 1s

consistent with our report to the audit commtiee

_

Materiality: £14.9m (2020:£12.5m)

Financial statements 19 (2020: 1%) of Tatal Assets

as a whaole

Key audit matters vs 2020

Recurring risks valuation of direct
property investments L1
Carrying amount of listed
investments “

We were st appointed as auditor by tne Diectors on
2 Noverrber 2016 The penad of 1otal uninieriunted
engagement is for the 5 dnancal years enced 31 March
2027 We have fulblled our ethical responsibilibes
unde:, ard we remain independent of the Company 1
accordance with, UK ethical requirements incuding the
FRC Flhira! Standard 2s apohed to bsted public inieres:

2. KEY AUDIT MATTERS: INCLUDING OUR ASSESSMENT OF RISKS GF MATEREAL AMISSTATEMENT

fnaraal staternents and 1mciude “he maost sig1icant
frzud) wlennhied by gs ncluding fhose which nad
[eseurces e the qudit, ard diecting re 2farts of the e
(urchanged fram 20200, 0 decreasing arde: of auci signifi
our ke

007 BuIpnse 0F o auck of tre fngens siae

cansecuent.; are iraden gl g hat guirior, and .
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v audit metiers ate thase matters that i our professioal juidcement, were of mast sigrihica e o
assessed sks of ™

aurit procedures to address those maress and. as ecired for pubwc e
25D, ATD GUF FE5U TS A 3

o fgnot oinads &5

Eeni leam e samin

[ S~ R R

entities o non-dudit services srohibiea by that standard
were provided
tre agon of e
Atenal missiatament due o
bor U 3" audil staied 5CatIon 9

the ke aucit maress
302U DDIrIar ebave, mgethel vatr
SNTNeS, QUl 125,05 10 1 0ss
adires uncertaken an e comled
‘le*g\ Jr0pInian theteon, ard

i thesa mattass

a7se helgy:

1 At
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Independent auditot’s repart « 3o Lo

Valuation of direct
property investments

{(Group and Parent
Company)

(£83 1 muliion,
2020 £94.5 milhion)

Refer to pages 58 o 60
(Audit Commuttee Report),
page 74 and 75 {accounting
policy), and note 10 an
pages 82 o 85 (Iinancal
disclosures)

Subjective valuation:

569 {2020 75va) of the Group's
total assets (Dy value) are heid in

investmert praperties

The tonr value of each property
requiras sigahicant estimaton,

in garticubar waith regand o
the key estimaled sental
valug and yield assumplions
The key assumptions eall be

impacted by a number of factors
including qualty and cendition

oi the building and tenant
covenant strenqath

The etfect of these matters
15 Hal, as part of aur aisk
assessment, we detemined

that the vatuation of mvestment
properlies has a high degiee of
eslimation uncartamty, wath g
polental tange of reasonable

autcosnes greater than our
matenality for the finaroal
statements as awhole The

financial statemerts (note 10}
disclase the sensitraty esliratad

by the Group.

We

performed the detaled tests below rather than

seeking to rely on controls, because the nature

o

the balance s such that we would expect tn

ohtam audit evidence primanly through the ditarled
procedures describer

Qur procedures mdduded

— Assessing valuer’s credentials: Using cur oven

pioperty valuation specialist, we evaluated the
compelence, experience and Independence of the
external values,

Tests of Detail: Wwe compared the information
provided by the Group toits exteenal property
valuer for a sample of properties. such as rental
Income and tenancy data to supporling documents
mncluding lease agreements,

Methodology choice: ‘We held discussions with
the Group’s exteinal properly valuer o dJetermine
the valuation methodology used. We included ow
owWn property vatuation specialist to dssist us m
crinically assessing the results of the valuer's report
by checking tal the valustions were 10 accardance
wth the RICS Yaluation Professional Standards

‘the Red Book” and IFRS and that the metnodology
adopted was appropnate by reference 1o
acceplable vauation practice,

Benchmarking assumptions: \With (e
assislance of onr awn property valuation speciahst,
we held discussions with the Group’s extemal
property valuer o understand movements i1
pioperty valugs Fora sample of properfies. we
assessed lhe key assumnptions used by the valuer
upon which the valuations are based, including
those relating to estunated renlal value and yield,
by making a companson to our own understanding
ol the market and to inaustry berchmarks,

Assessing transparency: ‘e 2lso considerzd the
adequacy of the Group’s disclosures about the degree
of estimatian and sensitnty 1o key assumption made
when valuing the direct procerty insestments

Our results:

we found the waluation ob investiment properles o
bee acceptabie (2020 acceptable)

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

53



1

i

Carrying amount of listed
investments

(Group and Parent)

(£1,317.4 mukion,
2020 £1,060 " miihon

Refer to pages 58 Lo 60
(Audit Committee Repart),
page 75 {accounting policy)
and note 10 on pages 82
ta 85 (financal disclosures)

The risk
Low risk, high value:

The Group’s perifolio of guoted
level Vinvesime mls makes up
82 20 (202@ a4 4vuy of the
Group's total assets (by value)
and s une of the key drivers of

restits We do nat consider these

nvestments to he at a flugh yisk
of sigmificant misstatement, af
to be subject to a significant
level of udgement because
thew comprise guid, quoted
Investments However, due (o
thewr matenahty wn the contest
of the hinancal stalemen's as d
whale thes are considered to
be one of the areas which had
the greatest effect on our averall
audit stratagy and allocation

of resaureas it plannimy Jdnd
completng aur audit

Our response

Wwe performad the detalled tests below rather than
seeking Lo reky an controls, hecause the nature of

the bakance 15 such that detaded testing s determined
to be the most effe wnrer of abtarmng

audi evidence.

e

Our procedures nclyded

— Test of detail: Agreeing the valuation of 1002.0f
tevel 1listed nvestments in the portfolio to
externally guoted prices, and

- Enquiry of custodians: Agreeing 100% of [evel
1 hstechimeestment holdings i the particho to
independantly recavad third party confirmations
from investment custodians

Our results

= We found the carryiag amount ol isted
vestments 10 be acceptable 12020 acceplable)

3. OUR APPLICATION OF MATER#AUTY AND AN
OVERVIEW OF THE SCOPE OF OUR AUDIT
Maenaity for the financal stalements as a whole was
set al £149m (2020 £12 5m). delermined with reference
1o a benchmark . of which itiepresents
0% (2020 10%)

of total asset

statenality for he Paienl Compam hinanoal staterments as
awhale was al £14 0 (2020 12 0im) determined as 0 9%
of *ne toia' assets of the parent company (2020 0 5%;)

'nline wath our audit methodology, our procedures on
INCivIdua) accourt Daances ana disclosuses were performed
a lower thieshaold, performance matenialy, so 45 1o redoce

to an acceptabie evel the nsk that ndividually Immatenal
misstaternents in indraduai account balances add up 10 3 matenal
amount across the finanaal statements as 4 mo\e Perioimance
matenalty was set at 75% (20°9- 75%;) of materaity for the
financial statements as a wwhole, which equates o E 17 (20210
£5m) for the Gooup and £105m (2020 E90m) o the Pae
lw*w, e apoiied this percentage in our Setermmauon of

eormante malenalry because we did ~ol ident’y any fCors
~gicating ar 2les zlec level of risc

N acaon
2m

o7, we andhe

and

'matenatly ¢
De‘fur mance Tatenalit,
oonyestTert INcoTe, glner UJC‘E’IHC‘, Ircome,
rertdl Inco e serdce charge nco™me ang net
elrns o cootact for b e he
misstaierents of lesser am maenadty (o

GUrS trgn
the fina~ta stalemsnis as 3 whole cand reasonanly

I
3
I
y
/

BraCes o
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pe expected lonfluence the Company's members’
assessment of the linancial performance of the Company

We agreed to report (o the Audit Commities dny coirected of
uncorrecied idenlified musstatemenrts exceeding €0 75m
(20200 £0.63m) 0 acdition Lo other identfied misstatements
that warranted renorting on Guantalive grounas

Our audr: of the Company was uidertaken o the
matenalry ievel specified above and was performed by a
single audit team

The audil tearm nevformen the audit of the Group as i 1 was
a single aggregatec set of inarash nformation This approach
15 uncnanged from the poor year, The audit of the Group was
perfaimed Jsing the Group matenality level set oul above

Total Assets
£1,491m (2020. £1,256m)

Group Materiality
E£14.9m (2020 £12 5m)

£14.9m

Whtole firarciar
staterrents eatenaity
2020 £12 5m)

£14.1m

Parert Cormrpany
Materiality
{2020, £12 O

£0.75m Misstaterrerts
reported to the auoit
committee (2020,

£0 63rr]




Independent auditor’s report i od

4. GOING CONCERN

The Directors have prepared the financial statements on
the going concedn basis as they de not intend to liquidate
the Group or Company or lo cease s aperations, and

as they have corcluded that the Group or Company's
financial position means Lhat this is realistic. They have
also concluded that there are na matenal uncertainties
that could have cast significant doubt gver 1ts abihty to
continue as a qoing concern foi al least a year from the
date of approval of the financial slatements ("the going
concern perod”)

Wwe used our knowledge of the Group, its industry, and the
general economic enviranment to dentify the inherent
risks to1ts business model and analysed how those nisks
might affect the Group or Company’s inancal resources

or ability o continue cperations over the going condern
senod The risks that we considered most likely to
adversely affect the Group or Company's available financial
resources and 1ts ability to operate over this penad were.

— Theampact of a significant reduchion in the valuation
of investrments and the implications for the Group or
Company’'s debl covenants,

The hquidity of the investment portfolio and its ability
to meet the habiities of the Group as and when they
fall due, and

— The operational resilierce of key service organisations

We considered whether hese nsks could plausibly affect
the hquidity 1IN the going concern penod by assessing the
degree of downside assumption that, indradually and
collectively, could result in a higuidity 1ssue, taking inlo
account the Group or Company’s current and projected
cash and hquid investment positicn (and the resulls of
their reverse stress testing)

we considerad whether the going concerr disclosure in
note 1 1o the financial statements gives a full and accurate
description of the Directors’ assessment of going congern,
inclucing the idenlified nisks and related sensitivities

Our conclusions hased on this work

— We consider that the Cirectoss use al the going
cancern basis of accountuing 11 the preparation of the
financial statements 1s appropriale,

— we have notdentified, and concur with the Directors’
assessment that there 15 not, a matenal uncertainty
related to events or condiions that, mdradualiy or
collectively, mav cast sigmiicant doubl on the Group or

Company's ability 1o continue 4s a going concern for
the going concern penod,

Wwe have nothing matenal 1o add or draw altention lo
in relabian to the Directors’ stalement in note 1 1o the
financia' slatemnents on the use of the going concern
basis of accounting with no matenal uncertainties that
may cast signihicant doubt over the Group of Company’s
use ol that basis for the going concern penad, and

we found the qoing concein disclosure 10 nele 1t be
acceplabie; and

— The related slatemenl under the Listing Rules set out
on pages 41 and 42 15 matenally consistent with the
financial statements and our audit knowledge

However, as we (annot predict ail fulure events of
conditions and as subsequent events may result in
outcomes that are inconsistent with judgements that
were reasonable at the time they were made, the
above conclusions are not a guarantee thal the Group or
Company will continug 1IN operation

5. FRAUD AND BREACHES OF LAWS AND
REGULATIONS - ABILITY TO DETECT

Identifying and responding to iisks of material
misstaterment due to fraud

To identify nisks of material misstatement due to fraud
{"fraud nsks™y we assessed events or conditions that
could indicale an incentive or pressure to commit fraud
o1 provide an opportunity to commit fraud. Our nisk
assessment pracedures incfuded.

-- Enguinng of Disectors as o the Group's high-tevel
policies and procedures Lo prevenl and delect fraud, as
well as whether they have knowledge of any actual,
syspecled o alleged fraud,

— Assessing the segregation of duties in place belween
the Directors, the Administrator and the Group's
Investment Manager, and

— Reading 8oard and Audi Committee Tunutes

As required by auditing standdrds, we perform procedures
to address the nsk of managerrent overide of controls,

in particular to the nsk that management may be

a position to make inappropnate accounting enties

Wwe evaluated the design and implementation of the
controls over jouraai entries and other adjustments and
made inquines of the Administrator about inappropriate
or unusual actrity relating to e processing of journal
entnes and olher adjustments We substantively tested all
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matenal posi-ciosing entries and, based on the results o
our nsk assessment procedures and understanding of the
process, including the segregation of duties between the
Directors and the Administrator, no further high-risk journal
entries ar ather adjustments were identified

On this audit we h sbutted the fraud nisk related

fo revenue recognrion because the revenue 1s non-
judgemental and straightforward, with mited oppor tunity
far manipulation We did not wdentily any sigmficant
unusual transactons or addiional fraud s«

ave ig

identifying and responding to risks of material
misstatement due to non-compiiance with laws and
reguiations

We denufied areas of iaws and regulabiors that could
reasonabiy be expected 10 have a inatenal effect on the hinanoal
stalernents from our genesal commerdial and secior expelience
and through discussion witr the Directars, the Investment
Manager and the Adminstratar (3s recured by auciing
standards) ard discussed with the Directars the pohaes and
procedures segarding compliance with laws ard requlations

T-e potertal effect of these laws and requlations on the
finanaial statements vanes considerably

Firstry, the Company 1s subject Lo laws and requlations
thal directly ai‘edt “he firanadl staternents Inciuding
Anancial cegorting legislation (includirg relaed companies
teqislalion), distnbutable proins legislator, ang its
cuallication as an Ipvestrent Trost unde- LK Laxation
legislanion, any breach of which could tead to the Grour
05Ing vartous deductions and exemplionrs ‘om UK
corporation tax, and we assessed (he extent of omphance
wilr these laws anc regquiations as part of our procedares
n the re'ated financian statement items

Secondly, the Group s subjeci to maiy other laws and
requlations where the consequences ¢f non-comphance
couid nave a matenal effect on amaounts or disc'osures

In the firaraat statemers, forinstance though Ihp
ITLGSIION G f7es or JSE'IO” We identi 1k-d he foilowing
Areas as tmose most ke y o have such an eftect money
fqumgening, az2ta arotechion, brnary and mffJ";th:-.*
fedistation n"d Cerl2ir asnecs of (omnd, eIsIeuan
rzcogausing ihe hnangia natiure of 5

TJPS CiIes
ardts 2qa Lmeecured
audit pracecares taicent®y, ~on-campnante
‘a NS A :ng!ano st 2ngwiry of the Duecinrs ard e

ator a~d 1mspection of regulaior, ang e
SlaI v} [ an, Theaforeafl a b i
FEQUANONS 1S T C|S(|L)‘:ed ooy or eaden fiom
S0audi i tal detec thal

TOACIING $1AnCaTIS \l

JOTdencE,

Cu
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Context of the ability of the audit to detect fraud or
breaches of law or requlation

Owing 1o the inherent imitations of an audit, there 1s an
unavoldable nsk that we may not have delected some
matenal misstatements In the finangial statements, even
though we kave pioperly planned and performed our
auditin accordance with auditing standards For example.
the furthei removed non-compliance with laws arc
requlations s from the events and transachions reflected
in the finanaial stalements, the less hikely the inherently
imited piocedures required by auditing standards would
identify it

In addition, as with any audit, there remamead a igher sk
of non-detection of fraud, as these may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional amissions, misrepresentations, or the
overside ol internal controls Our audit procecures are
designed 1o detect matenal misstatemeant We are not
responsibie for preventing nen-compliance or fraud and
cannot be expected to detecl non-compliance with all
laws and regulations

6. WE HAVE NOTHING TO REPORT ON THE OTHER
INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORF

The Directors are responsibie for the other information
prese 2ot together with the hinancial
statemenis Our opinien of the financal stalements coes
nol cover ke othe information and, according'y, we do
nob express an audit opimon or, excent as exphaltly stated
below, ary form of asswance conclusion thereon

Our ~esponsibility s w0 read the other nformation are

1 domg 5o, constder whether based on ow hinanoa
staternants audit work, the mfoma tion tharein s
matenally misstated or inconsistert with the hinarcial
statements or our audic knowledge Based solely an that
work we have rotidentlies matena? missiaemeants in the
other nforrmation

Strategic report and Directors’ report
Based sule’y om vorwok on e other inlormais?

we have not wlentfied matenal mysstatements 17 the

Strateqic «eport and the Direciors’ /eport
— N QU7 om0 the T T ehea Gher 10 NgsE 1200l
or e naniel Le3n 1y (onshiet T ke fnanaal

— T OUr DMOT Tr05E 18
accoisarce Sk the Corpanies At 2956




Independent auditor’s report .2t 00

Directors’ remuneration report

I our opimion the part of the Directors’ Remuneration
Report to be audited has heen properly prepared i
accordance with the Companies At 2006

Disclosures of emerging and principal risks and
longer-term viability

We are required to perform procedures to identify whether

there s a matenal inconsistency between the Direclors’
disclosures in respect of emetging and principal fisks and
e viability statement, and the hinandial stalements and
our audit knowledge

Based on those pracedures, we have nothing matenal to
add o draw atiention loin relation 1o

the Direclors’ confiimation within the Viabihity Staterment
on pages 33 and 34 that they have camed oul a robust
assessment of the emerging and pnnapal nsks facing the
Group, including those that would threaten its business
model, future performance, solvency and iguidity;

— the Principal Risks and Uncertainties disclosures
descnbing these risks and how emergeng risks are
identilied, and explaining now they are being managed
and mitigated, and

— the Directors” explanation in the Viability Statement of
how they have assessed the prospects of the Company,
over whal penod they have done so and why they
considered that penod to be appropnate, and their
statement as to whether they have a ieasonable
expectation thal the Group will be able to continue
in operation and meel 15 habihties as they fall due
gver the period of therr assessment, ncludmg any
related disclosures deawing attention to any necessary
qualifications or assumptions

We are also requirec to review the Yiabihly Slatement, set
out on pages 33 and 34 under the Listing Rules. Based an
the above procedures, we have cancluded that the above
disciosures are matenally consistent vath the firancial
slatements and our audit knowledge

Ourwork s hruted Lo assessing these matters 11 the
context of only the knowledge acquired dunng our
financial statements audit As we cannot predict all future
evenls or condiions and as subsequent events may

result In gutcomes that are inconsistent with judgemeris
that were reasonable at the ime they were made, the
absence of anyihing to reporl on these statements 15 Not 3
quarantee as la the Company s longer-lerm viability.

Corporate governance disclosures

we are 1equired 1o perform proceduras to 1denufy whether
there 15 a material inconsislency belween the Directors’
corporate governance disclasures and the financal
staterments and our audit knowledge

Based on those procedures, we have concluded that each
of the following 1s matenally consistent with the finanaal
slatermnents and our avdil knowledge

— the irectors’ statement that they consider that the
annual report and hinancial statements taken as a
whole 15 fair, balanced and understandable, and
provides the information necessary for sharehalders to
assess the Group’s position and perfarmance, business
madel and strategy,

— the section of the annual repart descnibing the work of
the Audit Commuttee. including the significant 1ssues
that the audit commitiee cansidered in relation to
the financial statements, and how these 1ssues were
addressed, and

— 1the section of the annual report that desaibes
the ieview of the effectiveness of the Group's risk
management and internal contral syslems

We are required Lo review the part of Corporate
Governance Statement refating to the Group's comphance
with the provisions of the UK Corperate Governance Code
specified by the Listing Rules for our review We have
nothing to report in this respect

7. WE HAVE NOTHING TO REPORT ON THE OTHER
MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO
REPORT BY EXCEPTION

Under the Companies Acl 2006, we are required to 1epor!
to you i, 1IN our eprion.

adequate accounting records have not been kept. or
ielurns adequate for aur audic nave not been receved
from: branches aot visited by us, or

— the hnanaal statements and the part of the Directors’
Remuneralion Repart to be audited are not 1n
agreemnent with the accounting records and returns, or

- centain disctosures of Directors temuneration specified
by law are nol made; or

— we have not1eceved all the in‘ormation and
explanations we 1equire for our audit

We have nething o report in these 1espects
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EX

8. RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES

Directars’ responsibilities

As explained more fully In thelr stalement set out an
page 67, the Direclors are responsible for the preparation
of the finanaial statements including being satistied 1hat
they give a true and fair view, such internal contral as
they determine 1s necessary to enable the preparation

of inancial statements that are free from matenal
misstatement, whether due to fraud o error, assessing
the Coinpany's abilily o continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicabie, matters relaled g going concern;
and using the going concerm basis of accounting uriless
they either intend to iquidate the Company of lo cease
operations, of have no iealstic alternative but to da so

Auditor’s responsibilities

Our ohiectives are Lo obtawn reasonable assuiance about
whether the linanoal staterments as a wioe aie free Irom
matertal misstatement, whether due to fravd or error, and
[0 1550 our opimion n an auditor’s report Reasonable
assutarce 15 a high level of assurance, but does nat
quarantes that an sudit conducted 10 accorcance with ISAs
(UK) wiill always detect a material misstatement when 1l
exists ®hisstaternents can anse from fiauc ar errar and are
considered matenai il individually o7 in aggregate. tney
could reasonably be expecied to influerce the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of the finarcial
staterne s

A fuller descnption of our respensibilinies 15 provided 0
the FRCS website at
s e org uk/audnarsresponsibilities
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9. THE PURPOSE OF QUR AUDIT WORK AND TO
WHOM WE OWE OUR RESPONSIBILITIES

This report is made solely to the Groop's members, as

o body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006 and the terms of our engagement by
the Campany Our audit work has been undertaken so that
we mught state (o the Group’s members those matters we
are required to stale to them in an auditor's repert and for
no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted hy law,
we 4o not accept of assume responsibiily 1o anyoene other
than the Group ard Lhe Group's members, 4s 3 body, for
aur audit woik, for this report, or for the opinions we have
formed

Richard Kelly (Senior Statutory Auditer)
for and oun behalf of KPMG LLP. Statutcry Auditor

Chartered Accountants
Sattire Coutt

'5 {andda Square
London

Fid 5GL

3 Jupe 2021



Group Statement of Comprehensive Income

for the year ended 31 March 2021

Notes

Income

Investment income
Other gperating income
Gioss reatal income

Service charge income

Gains/(losses) on investments held at
tair value

Net movement on foreign exchange;
investments and loan notes

Net movement on foreign exchange;
cash and cash equivalents

Net returns on contracts for difference
Net return on total return swap

W A N

10

10
10

Total Income

Expenses
Management and performance fees

Ditect property expenses, rent payable
and service charge costs

Other administrative expenses

Total operating expenses

Operating profit/(loss)
Finance costs

Profit/(loss) from operations before
tax

Taxation 8
Total comprehensive income
Earnings/(loss) per Ordinary share 9

Year ended 31 March 2021

Revenue

Return
£000

36,557
67
3,185
1,051

3,320

44,180

{1,5586)

(1,321)
(1.237)
{4,108)

40,072
(a16)

39,656
(767)

38,889

12.25p

Year ended 31 march 2020

Capital Total Revenue Capital Total
Return Return Return

£000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000
- 36,557 47112 - 47112

- 67 35 - 35

- 3,185 3,415 - 345

- 1,051 1,786 - 1,786
196,582 196,582 - (153,614) (153,614)
{3,144) {3144) - 11,296 11,296
(1,478) (1,479) - 302 302
17,978 1,298 5724 (41,276) (35,552)
(188) ~ (188) - (3,808) {3,808)
209,754 253,934 58,072 (187,100) {129,028)
{14,328) (15,884) {1,570) {7.392) (8,962)
- (1,321) (1,984) - (1,984)

_ (604) (1,835) (1,398) (615) (2,013)
(14,932) {19,040) {4,952) {8,007) (12,959)
194,3;2 7234,8;4 53,120 (195,107) (141,987)
(1,969) (2,385) (814) (2,443) (3,.257)
192,853 232,509 52,306 (197,550) {145,244)
2,667 1,900 {(5,912) 3,149 (2,763}
195,520 234,409 46,394 (194,401) (148,007}
61.61p 73.86p 14.62p (61.26)p (46.64)p

The Total column of this statement represents the Group’s Statement of Comprehensive Income, prepared in accordance with IFRS. The
Revenue Return and Capital Return columns are supplementary to this and are prepared under quidance published by the Association of

Investment Companies. All items in the abave statement derive from continuing operations.

The Group does not have any other income or expense that is not included in the above statement therefore "Total comprehensive

income” is also the profit for the year.

Alt income is attributable to the shareholders of the parent company.

The nates from pages 73 to 97 form part of these Financial Staternents,
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Group and Company Statement of Changes in Equity

GROUP
For the year ended 31 March 2021 Notes Share Share Capital Retained
Capital Premium  Redemption Earnings
ordinary Account Reserve Ordinary
£'000 £'000 £000 £'000
At 31 March 2020 79,338 43,162 43,971 969,982 1,136,453
Total comprehensive income - - - 234,409 234,409
Dividends paid 17 - - - {44,429) {44,429)
At 31 March 2021 79,338 43,162 43,971 1,159,962 1,326,433
COMPANY
For the year ended 31 March 2021 Notes Share Share Capital Retained
Capital Premium  Redemption Earnings
Ocdinary Account Reserve Ordinary
£000 £000 £'000 £'000
At 31 March 2020 79,338 43,162 43,971 969,982 1,136,453
Tatal comprehensive income - - - 234,409 234,409
Dividends paid 7 - - - (24,429) (44,429)
At 31 march 2021 79,338 43,162 43,97 1,159,962 1,326,433
GROU?P
for the year ended 31 March 2020 Netes Shase Share Capital Retained
Capital Premium Redemption Earnings
Oddinary Account Reserve Ordinary Tetal
£000 £000 £'000 £000 £000
At 31 March 2019 79,338 43,162 43,971 1,161,783 1,328,254
Total comprehensive income - - - (148,007) (148,007)
Dividends paid 17 - - - {43,794) (43,799)
At 31 March 2020 79,338 43,162 43,971 969,982 1,136,453
COMPANY
For the year ended 31 March 2020 Notes Share Share Capital Retained
Capital Premium Redemption Earnings
Ordinary Account Reserve Ordinary Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £'000
At 31 march 2019 79,338 43,162 43,91 1,161,783 1,328,254
Total comprehensive income - - - (148,007} (148,007)
Dividends paid 7 - - - (43,794) (43,794)
At 31 March 2020 79,338 43,162 43,971 969,982 1,136,453

The notes from pages 73 to 97 form part of these Financial Statements.
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Group and Company Balance Sheets
as at 31 March 2021

Notes Company Group Company
201 2020 2020
£'000 £'000 £000

Non-cuirent assels

Investments held at fair value 10 1,400,516 1,400,516 1,155,295 1,155,295
Investments in subsidiaries 10 - 43,312 - 50,429
1,400,516 1,443,828 1,155,295 1,205,724

Deferred taxation asset 12 686 686 - -
B 1,401,202 1,444,511 1,155,295 1,205,724
Current assels
Debtors 12 60,990 60,520 60,094 59,972
Cash and cash equivalents 29,114 29,112 40,129 40,127

90104 29,632 100,223 100,099 -
Current liabilities 1 (107,280) {150,120) {59,711) {110,016) E 5
Net current {liabilities)/assets (17,176) ~ (60,488) 40,512 (9917) § T;_’
Total assels less current liabilities 1,384,026 1,384,026 1,195,807 1,195,807 4
Non-current liabilities 13 {57,593) (57,593) (59.354) (59,354)
Net assets 1,326,433 1,326,433 1136,453 1136,453

Capital and resetves

Called up share capital 14 79,338 79,338 79,338 79,338
Share premium atcount 15 43,162 43,162 43,162 43,162
Capital redemption reserve 15 43,971 43,97 43,971 43,971
Retained earnings 16 1,159,962 1,159,962 969,982 969,982
Equity shareholders’ funds 1,326,433 1,326,433 1,136,453 1,136,453

Net Asset Value per:
Ordinary share 19 417.97p 417.97p 3581p 358.11p

These financial statements were approved by the directors of TR Property Investment Trust pic (Cornpany No:84492) and authorised for
issue 0n 3 June 2021,

D Watson
Director

The notes fiom pages 73 to 97 form part of these Financial Statements.
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Group and Company Cash Flow Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2021

Company Group Company
201 2021 202G 2020
£000 £'000 £000
Reconciliation of profit/{loss) from operations before
tax to net cash outflow from operating activities
Profit/{loss) from operations before tax 232,509 231,844 {(145,244) (145,244)
Finance costs 2,385 2,385 3,257 3,257
(Gains)/losses on investments and derivatives held at fair
value through prolit or loss {214,372) {207,255) 198,698 198,71
Net movement on foreign exchange; cash and cash
equivalents and loan notes (179) (179) 859 8s9
(Increase)/decrease in accrued income (102) {102) 584 584
Sales of investments 353,167 353,167 316,841 316,841
Purchases of investments {370,496) (370,496) (383,674) {383,674)
Decrease/(increase) in sales seitlement debtor 4,753 4,753 (1,417) (1,417)
(Decrease}fincrease in purchase settlement creditor (5.781) (5,781) 4,501 4,501
(Increase)/decrease in other debtors (M,436) (11,436) 4,447 4,447
Increase/{decrease) in other creditors 2,451 (4,001) 2,047 2,034
Scrip dividends included in investment income and net
retutns on contracts for difference (8,489) (8,489) (3.818) (3,818}
Net cash outflow from operating activities before - T
interest and taxation (15,590) {15,590) (2,919) (2,919)
Interest paid : (2,607) (2,607) {3.421) (3,421)
Taxation paid (1,915) (1,915) (2,321) (2,321)
Net cash outflow from operating activities (z0m2) (20,112) (8,661} (8.651)
Financing activities
Equity dividends paid {44,429) (44,429) (43,7949) {43,794)
Crawdown of loans 55,000 55,000 40,000 40,000
Net cash from/(used in) financing activities 10,571 ' 10,571 (3,794) (3,794)
Decrease in cash {9,541) (5,511) (12,455) {12,455)
Cash and cash equivalents at start of year 40,129 40,127 52,282 52,280
Net movement on foreign exchange; cash and cash
equivalents {1,474) (1,474} ] 302 302
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 29,114 29,112 40,129 40,127
Note
Dividends received 38,224 38,224 52,003 52,603
Interest received 45 a5 37 37

The nates from pages 73 to 97 form part of these Financiat Statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 have been prepared on a going cancern basis, in accordance with
international Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) adopted pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 1606/2002 as it applies in the European
Union and in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006. The financial statements have also been prepared in
accordance with the Statement of Recommended Practice {SORP), “Financiat Statements of Investment Trust Companies and venture
Capital Trusts,” to the extent that it is consistent with IFRS.

in assessing Going Concern the Board has made a detailed assessment of the ability of the Company and the Group to meet

its liabilities as they fall due, including stress and liquidity tests which considered the effects of substantial falls in investment
valuations, substantial reductions in revenues received and reductions in market fiquidity including the effects and potential effects
of the current and likely ongoing ecoromic impact caused by the Coranavirus pandemic. The Board is satisfied with the operationa!
resilience of service providers despite COViD-19 and continues to monitor their performance throughout the pandemic.

In light of the testing carried out, the liquidity of the levet 1 assets held by the Company and the significant net asset value position,
and despite the net current liability pesition of the Group and Parent Company {which could be mitigated by the sale of liquid leve! 1
investrments), the Directors are satisfied that the Company and Group have adequate financial resources to continue in operation

for at Jeast the next 12 months following the signing of the financial statements and therefore it is appropriate to adopt the going
concern basis of accounting.

The Group and Company financial staternents are expressed in Sterling, which is their functionat and presentational currency.
Sterling is the functional currency because it is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Group operates.
values are rounded to the nearest thousand pounds {£'000) except where otherwise indicated.
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Key estimates and judgements

The preparation of the financial statements necessarily requires the exercise of judgement, both in applicaticn of accounting
policies, which are set out below, and in the selection of assumptions used in the calculation of estimates. These estimates and
judgements are reviewed on an ongeing basis and are continually evaluated based on historical experience and other factors.
However, actual results may differ from these estimates. The only key estimate is considered {c be the valuation of investment
properties. See section {f) of this note. There are not considered to be any key judgements.

a) Basis of consolidation
The Group finantial statements consolidate the financiai statements of the Company and its subsidiaries to 31 March 2021. Al the
subsidiaries of the Company have been consclidated in these financial statements.

tn accordance with IFRS10 the Company has been designated as an investment entity on the basis that:
- It abtains funds from investars and provides those investors with investment management services;

It commits to its investors that its business purpase is to invest solely for returns from capital appreciation and investrnent
income; and

= Itmeasures and evaluates performance of substantially alt of its investments on a fair value basis.

Each of the subsidiaries of the Company was established for the sole purpese of operating of supporting the investment cperaticns of
the Company (including raising additional financing), and is not itself an investment entity. IFRS 10 sets out that in the case of controlled
entities that suppoart the investment activity of the investrnent entity, those entities should be consolidated rather than presented as
investrents at fair vaiue. Accordingly the Company has consofidated the results and financial positions of those subsidiaries.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of their acquisition, being the date on which the Company obtains control, and continue
to be cansolidated until the date that such control ceases. The financial staterments of subsidiaries used in the preparation of the
consalidated financial statements are based on consistent accounting policies. All intra-group balances and transactions, including
unrealised profits arising therefrom, are eliminated. This is consistent with the presentation in previous years.

b) Income
Dividends receivable on equity shares are treated as revenue for the year an an ex-dividend basis. Where no ex-dividend date is
available, dividends receivable on or before the year end are treated as revenue for the year. Provision is made for any dividends
not expected to be received. Where the Group has elected to receive these dividends in the form of additional shares rather
than cash the amount of cash dividend foregone is recognised as income, Differences between the value of shares received and
the cash dividend foregone are recognised in the capital returns of the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income. The fixed
returns on debt securities are recognised on a time apportionment basis so as to reflect the effective yield on each such security.
Interest receivable from cash and short term deposits is accrued to the end of the year. Stock lending income is recognised on
an accruals basis. Underwriling commission is taken to revenue, unless any shares underwritten are required to be taker: up, in
which case the proporticnate commission received is deducted from the cost of the investment.

Recognition of property rental income is set out in section (f} of this note.
Recognitior: of income from contracts of difference is set out in section (g) of this note.
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

¢) Expenses
All expenses and finance costs are accounted for on an accruals basis. An analysis of retained eatnings broken down into

revenue and capital items is given in note 16. 1n arriving at this bieakdown, expenses have been presented as revenue items
except as follows:

«  Expenses which are incidental to the acquisition or disposal of an investment;

- Expenses are presented as capital where a connection with the maintenance ar enhancement of the value of the
investrments can be demanstrated, this includes irrecoverable VAT incurred on costs relating to the extension of residential
leases as premiums received tor extending or terminating leases are recognised in the capital account;

- One quarter of the base management fee is charged to revenue, with three quarters allocated to capital retum 1o reflect the
Board's expectations of long term investenent returns, All performance fees are charged to capital return;

+  The fund administration, depositary, custody and company secretarial services are charged directly to the Company and
are included within ‘Other administrative expenses” in note 6. These expenses are charged on the same basis as the base
management fee; one quarter to income and three quarters to capital.

d) finance costs
The finance cost in respect of capital instruments other than equity shares is calculated so as to give a constant rate of return on
the outstanding balance. One quarter of the finance cost is charged to revenue and three guarters ta capital return.

€} Taxation
Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax sates and laws that are enacted or substantively enacted by the batance sheet date.

Income tax is charged or credited directly to eguity if it relates to itemns that are credited or charged to equity. Otherwise income
tax is recognised in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Incorme.

The tax effect of different iterns of expenditure is aflocated between capital and revenue using the Group’s effective rate of
tax for the year. The charge for taxation is based on the profit for the year and takes into account taxation deferred because of
ternporary differences between the treatment of certain iterms for taxation and accounting purposes.

in accordance with the recommendations of the SORP the allocation methed used to calculate tax relief on expenses presented
against capital returns in the supplementary information in the Staternent of Comprehensive Income is the “marginal basis”
Under this basis, if taxable income is capable of being offset entirely by expenses presented in the revenue return column of the
Staternent of Comprehensive Income, then no tax relief is transterred to the capital column.

Deferred tax is the tax expected ta be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the Balance Sheet and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted

for using the balance sheet liability method. Defered tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable tempaorary differences and
deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is prabable that taxable profits will be avaitable against which deductible
temporary differences can be utitised.

The Company is an investment tryst under 51158 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 and, as such, is not liable for tax on capitat
gains. Capital gains arising in subsidiary companies are subject 1o capital gains tax.

f) investment property
investment property is measured initially at cast including transaction casts. Transaction casts include transfer taxes, professianal
fees for legal services and initial leasing commissions to bring the property to the condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating. The carrying amount also includes the cost of repiacing part of an existing investment property at the time that
cost is incurred if the recagnition criteria are met. The purchase and sake of praperties is recognised to be effected an the date
unconditional contracts are exchanged.

Subsequent to initial recognition, investment property is stated at fair value. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
values are included in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income in the year in which they arise.

investment property is derecagnised when it has been disposed of or permanentty withdrawn from use and no future economic
benefit is expected from its disposal. Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of investment property are recognised in
the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income in the year of disposal.

Gains or losses on the disposal of investment property are determined as the ditference between net disposal praceeds and the
cafrying value of the asset at the date of disposal.

Revaluation of investment properties

The Group carries its fnvestment properties at fair value in accordance with IFRS 13, revaiued twice a year, with changes i fafr
values being recognised in the Group Statement of Comprehensive income. The Group engaged Knight Frank LLP as independent
valuation specialists to determine fair value as at 31 March 2021.
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1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

valuations of investment properties
Determination of the fair value of investment properties has been prepared on the basis defined by the RICS Valuation - Global
Standards {The Red Book Glabal Standards) as follows:

“The estimated amount fer which a property should exchange on the date of valuation between a willing buyer and a willing
selier in an arm’s length transaction after proper marieting wherein the parties had each acted knowledgeably, prudently and
without compulsion.”

The vaiuation takes into account future cash flow from assets (such as lettings, tenants” profiles, future revenue sireams, capital values of
fixtures and fittings, plant and machinery, any envirenmental matters and the overall repair and condition of the property) and discount
rates applicable to those assets, These assumptions are based on local market conditions existing at the balance sheet date.

In arriving at their estimates of fair values as at 31 March 2021, the valyers have used their market knowledge and professional
judgement and have not anly refied solety an historical transactional comparables. Exarmples of inputs to the valuation can be seen
in the sensitivity analysis disclosed in note 10 (g).

Rental income
Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease, except for
contingent rental income which is recognised when it arises.
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Incentives for lessees to enter into lease agreements or other negotiated rent free periods agreed are spread evenly over the
lease term, even if the payments are not made on such a basis. The lease term is the non-cancellable period of the lease
together with any further term for which the tenant has the option to continue the lease, where, at the inception of the lease,
the directars are reasonably certain that the tenant will exercise that option. Premiurns received to terminate or extend leases
are recogmised in the capital account of the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income when they arise.

Service charges and expenses recoverable from tenants

Income arising from expenses recharged ta tenants is recognised in the periad in which the expense can be contractually
fecovered. Service charges and other such receipts are included gross of the related costs in revenue as the directors consider
that the Group acts as principal in this respect.

g) Investments
when a purchase or sale is made under contract, the terms of which require defivery within the timeframe of the refevant
market, the investments concerned are recognised or derecagnised on the trade date.

All the Group's investments are defined under IFRS as investments designated as fair value through prafit or loss but are also
described in these financial statements as investments held at fair value.

All investments are designated upon initiai recognition as held at fair value, and are measured at ssbsequent reporting dates at
fair vaiue, which, for quoted investments, is deemed to be closing prices for stocks sourced from Eurcpean stock exchanges and
for SETS stocks sourced from the London Stock Exchange. SETS is the London Stock Exchange electronic trading service covering
most of the market including alf the FTSE All -Share and the most Jiquid AIM constituents. Unguoted investments of investiments
for which there is only an inactive market are held at fair value which is based on valuations made by the directors in accordance
with IPEVCA quidelines and using current market prices, trading conditions and the general economic climate.

tn its financial statements the Company recognises the fair value of its investments in subsidiaries as being the adjusted net
asset value. The subsidiaries have historically been holding vehicles far direct property investment or financing vehicles. No
assets are currently held through the subsidiary structure and all financing instruments are disectly held by the Company.

Changes in the fair value are recognised in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income. On disposal, realised gains and
losses are also recognised in the Group Staterment of Comprehensive income.

Derivatives

Derivatives are held at fair value based on traded prices. Gains and losses on derivative transactions are recognised in the Group
Statement of Comprehensive Income. Gains and fosses on CFDs and total return swaps resulting from movernents in the price
of the underlying stock are treated as capital. bividends fram the underlying investment and financing costs of CFDs and total
return swaps are treated as revenue/capital expenses.

Gains and losses on forward currency contracts used for capital hedging purposes are treated as capital.
Contracts for Difference ("CFDS™) are synthetic equities and are valued by reference to the investments’ underlying market values.

The sources of the returns under the derivative contract {e . notional dividends, financing casts, interest returns and capital
changes) are allocated fo the revenue and capital accounts in alignment with the nature of the underlying source of income and
in accordance with the guidance given in the AIC SORP Notional dividend incorne ar expenses arising an long or short positions
are apportioned wholly to the revenue account. Notional interest expense on long positions is apportioned between revenue
and capital in accordance with the Board's long term expected returns of the Company (turrently detesmined to be 25% to the
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

revenue aceount and 75% to capital reserves). Changes in value relating to underlying price movements of securities in relation
to CFD exposures are aflocated wholly to capitaf reserves.

h) Boriowings, loan notes and debentures
All loans and debentures are initially recognised at the fair value of the cansideration received, less issue costs where applicable,
Alfter initial recognition, alt interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Amortised cost is caiculated by taking into account any discount or premium on settlement. The casts of arranging any interest
bearing loans are capitalised and amortised over the life of the loan on an effective interest rate basis, :

i) Foreign currency translation
Transactions invalving foreign currencies are converted at the rate ryling at the date of the transaction,

Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are translated into Sterling at the rate ruling on the balance sheet date. Foreign
exthange differences are recognised in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income.

j) €ash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are measured at amortised cost and comprise cash in hand and demand deposits.

k) Dividends payable to shareholders
Interim dividends are recognised in the period i which they are paid and final dividends are recognised when approved by
sharehalders.

1) Adoption of new and revised Standards
Standards and intespretations effective in the current petiod
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous consolidated financial statements except as noted below.

{FRS 3 amendments. The amendments provided mare guidance on the definition of a bustness to assist in determining
whether a transaction results in an asset or a business acquisition. The amendments have not had an impact on the Group's
financial statements.

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Amendiments to IFRS 9, 1AS 39 and IFRS 7 The amendments provided temporary refiefs
which enable hedge accounting to continue during the period of uncertainty before the replacernent of an existing interest
rate benchmark with an aiternative risk free interest rate. The amendments have not had a material impact on the Group’s
financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 1and IAS 8 - Definition of Material. The Internationat Accounting Standards Board refined its definition of
“material” and issued practical guidance on applying the concept of materiality. The amendments have not had a materia! impact
on the Group’s financial statements.

The Conceptual Framewaork for Financial Reparting. The Conceptual Framework is not a standard howeves its purpose is 1o outline
a set of concepts for financial reporting, standard setting, guidance for preparers in developing consistent accounting policies
and gssistance to athers in understanding and interpreting the standards. The Framework has not had a material impact on the
Group’s financial statements.

Early adoption of standards and interpretations

The standards issued before the reporting date that become effective after 31 March 202t are not expected to have a material
effect en equity or profit for the subsequent period. The Group has not early adopted any new Internationa! Financial Reparting
Standard or Interpretation. Standards, amendments and interpretations issued but not yet effective up to the date of issuance of
the Group’s financial statements are listed below:

IAS 1 Amendments - Classification of Liabilities as Current ar Nan-Current (effective date amended to 7 january 2023). The
amendments specify the requirements for classifying liabilities as current or non-current. The amendments are not expected to
have a material impact on the Group’s financial statements.

IAS 1 Amendments - Disclosure of Accounting Policies (effective 1 January 2023). The amendments require an entity to disclose
its material accounting palicy information instead of its significant accounting policies. The amendments contain guidance and
examples on identifying material accounting policy information. The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on
the Group’s financial statements.

IAS 8 Amendments - Definition of Accounting Estimates (effective 1 fanuary 2023} The amendments define accounting estimates
as “monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty”. The amendments also clarify the
interaction between an accounting poficy and an accounting estimate. The amendments are not expected lo have a material
impact on the Group’s financial statements.

IAS 16 Amendments - Proceeds before Intended Use (effective 1 january 2022) The amendments intend to dlarify the accounting
for the net proceeds from selling any items produced while bringing an item of property, plant and equipment intg use. The
amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

tAS 37 Amendments - Onerous Contracts - Cost of fulfilling contract {effective 1 January 2022) The amendments darity that for
the purpose of assessing whether a tantract is onerous, the cost of fulfilling the contract includes both the incremental costs
of fulfilling that contract and an allocation of other costs that retate directty to fulfilling contracts. The amendments are nat
expected to have a material impact on the Group’s financial statements.

IAS 39, [FRS 4, 7, 9 and 16 Amendments - Interest Rate Benchmark Reform {Phase 2) (effective 1 January 2021) IBOR reform refers
10 the global reform af interest rate benchmarks which includes the replacement of some intetbank offered rates (IBOR} with
alternative benchmark rates. To ensure users of financial statements can understand the effect of the reform on a company’s
financial instrurnents and risk management strateqy, additional information on the nature and extent of risks to which the
company is exposed arising from financial instruments subject to IBOR reform is required. In addition, details of the company’s
progress in completing its transitions to alternative benchmark rates is required.

IAS 41, IFRS 1, 9 and 16 Amendments - Annual Improvements 2018-20 Cycle (effective 1 January 2022} The minor improvements,
none of which wilf have a material impact on the Group’s financial statements, to the standards noted were endorsed in
September 2020,

IFRS 3 Amendments - Reference to the Conceptual Framework {effective 1 January 2022) The amendments require that for
transactions within the scope of IAS 37 of IFRIC 21, an acquirer applies 1AS 37 or IFRIC 21 {instead of the Conceptual Framework)
to identify the liabilities it has assumed in a business combination. in addition, IFRS 3 now contains a stalement that an acquirer
does not recognise contingent assets acquired in a business combination. The amendments are not expected to have a material
irnpact on the Group’s financial statements.
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IFRS 4 Amendments - Extension of (FRS 9 Deferral (effective 1 January 2023) The option for companies whose business is the
issuance of insurance contracts, to defer the effective date of IFRS ¢ Financial Instruments has been extended. The amendment
is not expected to have an impact on the Group's financial statements.

IFRS 16 Amendments - Covid-19 Relfated Rent Concessions (effective 1 April 2021) the may 2020 amendments, which introduced
an optional practicaf expedient that simplifies how a lessee accounts for rent concessions that are a direct consequence of
Covid-19, have been extended to fease payments originally due on or before 30 june 2022,

IFRS 17 - Insurance Contracts (effective 1 January 2023) iFRS 17 replaces IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts and contains several areas that
are covered, including measurement of revenue, insurance performance, onerous contracts and disclosure. The standard is not
expected 10 have an impact on the Group’s financial statements.

IFRS 17 Amendments - Amendments to IFRS 17 {effective 1 January 2023) In June 2020, amendments to iFRS 17 were issued
which are intended to make financial performance easier to explain and reduce compliance costs by simplifying some
requirements in the standard. The amendments are not expected to have an impact on the Group’s financial statements.

2 INVESTMENT INCOME
2021 2020
£000 £000

Dividends from UK listed investments 3,753 491
Dividends from overseas listed investments 18,656 26,631
scrip dividends from listed investments 7,482 3,370
Property income distributions 6,666 12,200

36,557 712

3 NET RENTAL INCOME

£'000 £000

Gross rental income 3,185 3,415
Service charge income 1,051 1,786
Direct property expenses, rent payable and service charge costs (1,321) (1,984)
i 2,915 3,217
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

NET RENTAL INCOME continued
Operating leases

The Group has entered into commercial leases on its propesty portfolic. Commercial property leases typically have lease terms
between 5 and 15 years and include dauses o enable periodic upward revisian of the rental charge accarding to prevailing market

conditions. Some leases contain optians to break before the end of the lease term.

Future minimum rentals under non-cancellable operating leases as at 31 March are as follows:

2021 202¢
£000 £000
Within 1 year 3,000 2,950
After 1 year but not more than 5 years 10,000 10,100
More than 5 years 19,000 15,500
32,000 28,550

OTHER OPERATING INCOME
20 2020
£000 £'000
Interest receivable 1 2
Interest on refund of overseas withholding tax a4 3
Underwriting commission 22 -
67 35

Underwriting is part of the process of introducing new securities to the market. The Company may participate in the underwriting of
investee companies” securities, as one of a number of participants, for which compensation in the form of cammission is received. The
Company only participates in underwriting having assessed the risks involved and in securities in which # is prepared to increase its
halding should that be the outcome. The commission earned is taken to revenue uniess any securities underwritten afe required to

be taken up in which case the propontionate commission is deducted from the cost of the investment. During the year the Company
participated in one {2020: nil} underwriting and all commission earned was taken 1o revenue and shown under Other operating income.

MANAGEMENT AND PERFORMANCE FEES

201 200 2020 2020 2020
Revenue Capital Revenue Capital Total

Return Return Return Return
£7000 £'000 £000 £'000
Management fee 1,556 4,669 6,225 1,570 4,709 6,279
Perforsance fee - 9,659 9,659 - 2,683 2,683
1,556 14,328 15,884 1,570 7392 8,962

A summary of the terms of the management agreement is given in the Report of the Directors on page 41.
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6 OTHER ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

20N 2020
£000 £'000

Directors' fees {Directors' Remuneration Repert on pages 55 to 57} 232 209
Auditor's remuneration:

- far audit of the consolidated and parent company financial statemens 8O 80
Legal fees 15 31
Taxation fees 69 103
Other administrative expenses 199 199
Other expenses 454 562
trtecoverable VAT 182 214
Expenses charged to Revenue o 1,231 1,398

Expenses charged to Capital 604 615 =

: 1,835 2,013 4

Z>

Other administrative expenses include depositary, custody and company secretarial services. These expenses are charged on the
same basis as the base management fee; one quarter to income and three quarters to capital. Total other administrative expenses
charged to both income and capital are £797000 (2020: £796,000).

Other expenses include broker fees, marketing and PR costs, Directors” National Insurance and recruitment, Registrars and
listing fees, and annual report and other publication printing and distribution costs. These expenses are charged solely to the
fevenue account.

VAT on costs incurred in connection with the extension of the residential leases on The Colonnades are charged to the capital account.

7 FINANCE COSTS
2021 2020
£‘006

Bank loans and overdrafts repayable within 1 year 1,241 1,866
Loan notes repayable after 5 years 1,384 1,391
HMRC interest: release of Fll GLO provision (240) -
N 2,385 3,257
Arnount allacated to capital return (1,969} (2,443)
Amount allocated to revenue return - 416 814

8 TAXATION

a) Analysis of charge in the year

20 201 2020 2020 2020
Revenue Capital Revenue Capital Total
Return Return Return Return

£000 £000 £000 £'000 £'000

UK corporation tax at 19% (2020: 19%) 1,989 {1,989) - 3,362 (3,149) 213
Overseas taxation 866 8 874 2,606 - 2,606
2,855 {1,981) 874 5,968 (3,145} 2,815

{Over)/under provision in respect of prior

years ~ {1,980) - {1,980) {406) - {406)
875 (1,981) {1,106) 5,562 (3,149) 2,413

Deferred taxation (108) (686) (794) 350 - 350
Current tax charge for the year 767 (2,667) {1,900) 5912 (3,149) 2,763
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8 TAXATION continued

b) Factors affecting total tax charge for the year
The tax assessed for the year is lower (2026: lower) than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK for a large company of 19%
{2020: 19%).

The difference is explained below.

201 201 2020 2020 2020

Revenue Capital Revenue Capital Total
Return Return Return Relurn

£°000 £000 £000 £'000 £000

Net profit/(loss) on ordinary activities

before taxation 39,656 192,853 232,509 52,306 (197,550)  (145,244)
Corporation tax charge at 19% (2020:19%) 7,535 36,642 44,177 9,938 (37,535) (27,597)
Effects of:
Non taxable gains on investments - (32,351) (37.351) - 29,187 29187
Currency movements not taxable - 877 877 - (2,204} (2,204)
Tax relief on expenses charged to capital - 139 139 - (1,038} {1,038)
Non-taxable retuins (23) (3,380) (3,403) - 8,566 8,566
Non-taxable UK dividends {972) - (972) (1,043) - (1,043)
Non-taxable overseas dividends (4,573) - (4,573) (5,540) - (5,540)
Overseas withholding taxes 866 8 874 2,606 - 2,606
Deferred tax prior year adjustment {108) (686) {794) - - -
(Over)funder provision in respect of prior

years (1,980) - (1,980) (406) 5 (401)
Disallowable expenses 19 - 19 65 (43) 26
Deferred tax not provided 3 1,084 1,087 288 (87) 201

767 (2,667) (1,900) 5,912 (3,149) 2,763

The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets of £2,703,000 (2020: £nil) arising as a result of losses carried farward.

It is considered 100 uncertain that the Group will generate profits in the relevant companies that the losses would be available to
offset against and, on this basis, the deferred tax asset in respect of these expenses has not been recognised.

Due to the Cornpany’s status as an Investment Trust, and the intention to continue meeting the conditions required to abtain
approval for the foreseeable future, the Company has not provided deferred tax on any capital gains arising on the revaluation or
disposal of investments.

¢) Provision for defesrred taxation
The amounts for deferred taxation provided at 19% (2020: 19%) comprise:

Group
201 201 2020 2020 2020
Revenue Capital Total Revenue Capital Total
Return Return Retuen Return

£'000 £000 £'000 £000 £'000
Accelerated capital allowances - - - 108 - 108
Unutilised losses carried forward - {686) {686) - - -

Shown as:
Deferred tax {asset)/liability - {686) (686) 108 - 108
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8 TAXATION continued

¢) Provision for deferred taxation continued
Company

2011 2021 2020 2020 2020
Revenue Capital Revenue Capital Total
Return Return Return Return
£000 £'000 £/000 £'000 £000
Accelerated capital allowances - - - 108 - 108
Unutilised losses carried forward - {686) (686) - - -
Shown as:
Deferred tax {asset)/liability - (686) (686) 108 - 108
The movement in provision in the year is as follows:
Group
2021 20 2020 2020 2020
Revenue Capital Revenue Capital Totat
Return Return Return Return
£000 £000 £000 £'000 £000
Provision at the start of the year 108 - 108 107 (350) (243)
Accelerated capital allowances (108) - {108) 1 350 351
Unutilised losses carried forward - {686) (68¢€) - - -
Provision at the end of the year - {686) {686) 108 - 108
Company
2021 201 2020 2020 2020
Revenue Capital Revenue Capital Total
Return Return Retuin Retuen
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Provision at the start of the year 108 - 108 107 {350) (243)
Accelerated capital allowances {108) - (108) 1 350 351
Unutilised losses carried forward - {686) (686) - - -
Provision at the end of the year - {636) {686) 108 - 108
9 EARNINGS/([OSS) PER SHARE
Earnings/(loss) per Ordinary share
The earnings/(loss) per Ordinary share can be analysed belween revenue and capital, as below.
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 Maich 2020
£°000 £'000
Net revenue profit 38,889 46,394
Net capital profit/(loss) 195,520 (194,401)
Net total profit/(loss) 234,409 (148,007)
Weighted average number of shares in issue during the year 317,350,930 317,350,980
Revenue earnings per share 12.25 14.62
Capital earnings/(lass) per share 61.61 (61.26)
Earnings/(loss) per Ordinary share 73.86 (16.64)

The Group has no securities in issue that could dilute the return per Ordinary share. Therefore the basic and diluted return per

Grdinary share are the same.
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

10 INVESTMENTS HELD AT FAIR VALUE
a) Analysis of investments

Company Group Company
2021 2020 2020
£000 £000 £000
Listed in the United Kingdom 394,176 394,176 351,506 351,506
Unlisted in the United Kingdom 1,468 1,468 682 682
Listed Overseas 521,801 921,801 708,597 708,597
iavestment properties 83,07 83,07 94,510 94,510
investments held at fair value 1,400,516 1,400,516 1,155,295 1,155,295
Investments in subsidiaries at fair value - 43,312 - 50,429
1,400,516 1,443,828 1,155,295 1,205,724

b) Business segment reporting
Gross Gross
vValuation Net Net RREITENLT revenue revenue
31March  additions/ appreciation/ JEELECET 31 March 31 Maich
2020 (disposals)  (depreciation) 207 2021 2020
£'000 £000 £'000 £000 £000 £000
Listed investments 1,060,103 58,477 197,397 1,315,977 36,403 46,964
Unlisted investments 582 - 786 1,468 154 148
Centracts for difference 8,698 (26,817) 17,978 {147) 3,320 5724
Total return swap (3,808) 3,996 (388) - - -
Total investments segment 1,065,675 35,656 215973 1,317,304 39,877 52,836
Direct property segment 94,510 {9,838) {1,601) 83,071 4,236 5,201
1,160,185 25,818 214,372 1,400,375 44,113 58,037

In seeking to achieve its investment objective, the Company invests in the shares and securities of propesty companies and property
related businesses internationally and also in investment property located in the UK. The Company therefore considers that there
are two distinct reporting segments, investments and direct property, which are used for evaluating performance and allocation of
sesources. The Board, which is the principal decision maker, receives information on the two segments on a reqular basis. Whilst
revenue streams and direct property costs ¢an be attributed to the reporting segments, general administrative expenses cannot be
split to allow a profit for each segment to be determined. The assets and gross revenues for each segrment are shown above.

The property costs included within note 3 ate £1,321,000 (2020: £1,984,000) and deducting these costs from the direct property
gross revenue above would result in net income of £2,915,000 (2020: £3,217,000) for the direct property reporting segment.
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10 INVESTMENTS HELD AT FAIR VALUE continued
¢) Geographical segment reporting

Gross GFOsS

Vaiuation Net Net ERELITELTN revenue revenue

31 March  additions/ appreciation/ EEEIREI)] 31 March 31 March

2020  (disposals)  (depreciation) 2021 2021 2020

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

UK listed equities and convertibles 351,506 (30,616} 73,286 394,176 10,265 16,963

UK unlisted equities 682 - 786 1,468 154 148

UK direct property” 94,510 (9.838) (1,601) 83,071 4,236 5,201

Continental European listed equities 708,597 89,093 124,111 921,801 26,138 30,001

1,155,295 48,639 196,582 1,400,516 40,793 52,313

UK contracts for difference? 5,071 (13,708} 8,621 584 1,242 2,714
European contracts for difference? 3,627 (13,709) 9,357 {725) 2,078 3,010 332
-
UK total return swap® (3,808) 3,99 (188) - - - z3
1,160,185 25,818 214,372 1,400,375 44,113 58,037 é e

Inciuded in the above figures are purchase costs of £741,000 (2020: £460,600) and sales costs of £184,000 (2020: £195,000).
These comprise mainly stamp duty and commission.

The Company received £329,018,000 (2020: £367,577,000) from investments, including direct property, sold in the year. The book cost
of these investments when they were purchased was £266,450,000 (2020: £317581,000). These investments have been revalued
over time and until they were sold any unsealised gains/losses were included in the fair value of the investments.

" Net additions/(disposals) includes £465,000 (2020: £981,000) of capital expenditure. Net appreciation/(depreciation) includes
amounts in respect of rent free periods.

2 Gross revenue for contracts for difference relates to dividends receivable, on an ex dividend basis, on the underiying positions
held. The appreciation/{depreciation) in CFDs relates to the movement in fair value in the year,

3 The depreciation in the TRS relates to the movement in fair value in the year until maturity.

d) Substantial share interests
The Group held interests in 3% ar more of any class of capital in 10 companies (2020: 8 companies) in which it invests. None
of these investments is considered significant in the context of these financial statements. See note 21 on pages 96 and 57 for
further details of subsidiary investments.

€) Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
Financial assets and financial liabilities are carried in the Balance Sheet either at their fair value (investiments) or the balance
sheet amount is 3 reasonable approximation of fair value {due from brokers, dividends and interest receivable, due to brokers,
accruals and cash at bank).

Fair value hierarchy disclosures
Categorisation within the hierarchy has been determined on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement of the relevant asset as foliows:

Level 1- valued using quoted prices in an active market for identical assets.

Level 2 - valued by reference to valuation techniques using observable inputs other than quoted prices within Level 1.
Level 3 - valued by reference to valuation techniques using inputs that are not based on cbservahle market data.

The valuation techniques used by the Gioup are explained in the accounting policies in notes 1 (f) and 1 {g).
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10 INVESTMENTS HELD AT FAIR VALUE continued

¢) Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities continved
The table below sets out fair value measurements using IFRS 13 fair value hierarchy.

Financial assets/(liabilities) at fair value through profit or loss

At 31 March 201 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£000 £'000 £'000 £°000

Equity investments 1,315,977 - 1,468 1,317,445
Investment properties - - 83,07 83,07
Contracts for difference - (141) - {147)
Foreign exchange forward contracts - {1,107) - {1,107)
1,315,977 (1,248) 84,539 1,399,268

At 31 March 2020 Llevel 1 Level 2 level 3 Total
£000 £000 £000 £000

Equity investments 1,060,103 - 682 1,060,785
Investment properties - - 94,510 94,510
Contracts for difference - 8,698 - 8,698
Total return swap - (3,808) - (3.808)
Foreign exchange forward contracts - {5,609) - (5,609)
o " 1,060,103 719) 95192 1,154,576

The table above represents the Group’s fair value hierarchy. The Company’s fair value hierarchy is identical except for the inclusion
of the fair value of the investment in Subsidiaries which at 31 March 2021 was £43,312,000 (2020: £50,429,000). These have been
categorised as level 3 in both years. The movement in the year of £7117.000 (2020: £13,000) is the change in fair value in the year,
which includes 3 distribution from a subsidiary company of £6,435,000 and the release of a corporation tax provision of £348,000
in @ subsidiary company. The total financial assets at fair value for the Company at 31 March 2021 was £1,443 828,000 (2020:
£1,214,422,000).

Reconciliation of movements in financial assets categorised as level 3

At 31 March 2021 31 March Appreciation / IR IENG]
2020  Purchases Sales (Depreciation)

£000 £000 £'000 £000

Unlisted equity investments 682 - - 786 1,468

Investment properties ’

- Mixed use 52,623 315 (303) {4,658} 47,977

- Office & Industrial 41,887 150 {10,000) 3,057 35,094
94,510 465 (10,303) (1601)  83,0m
95,192 465 (10,303) (815) 84,539

All appreciation/(deprediation) as siated above relates to movements in fair value of unhisted equity investments and investment
properties held at 31 March 202t

The Group held ane unquoted investment at the year end {see 11.6 overieaf).

Transfers between hierarchy levels
There were no transfers dusing the year between any of the levels.
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10 INVESTMENTS HELD AT FAIR VALUE continued

Sensitivity information for Investment Property Valuations
the significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement categorised within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy of
investment praperties are:

@ Estimated rental value: £6.5 - £65 per sq ft (2020: £6.5- £65)
@ Capitalisation rates: 2.0% - 6.0% (2020: 2.0% - 6.0%)

Significant increases {decreases) in estimated rental value and ent growth in isolation would result in & significantly higher (lower)
fair value measuremnent. A significant increase {decrease) in lorig-term vacancy rate in isclation would result in a significantly lower
{higher) fair value measurement.

There are interrelationships between the yields and rental values as they are pastiaily determined by market rate condition. The
sensitivity of the valuation to changes in the most significant inputs per class of investment property are shawn below:

Estimated movemnent in fair vaiue of investment properties at Office & w“
31 March 2021 arising from Retail  Industrial 52
£'000 £000 Tz
2k
2
Increase in rental value by 5% 310 1,585 50 1,945 “
Decrease in rental value by 5% (250) {1,610) {25) (1,885)
Increase in yield by 0.5% (4,040) (5.835) (925) {10,800)
Decrease in yield by 0.5% 5,155 9,505 1,325 15,985
Estimated movement in fair value of investment properties at office &
31 march 2020 arising from Retail Industrial Gther Total
£000 £000 £000 £'000
Increase in rental value by 5% 1,300 1,780 - 3,080
Decrease in rental value by 5% (1,225) (1.720) - (2,945)
increase in yield by 0.5% {5,025) {6,005) (950) (11,980)
Decrease in yield by 0.5% 6,750 9,355 1365 17,470

Tt FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Risk management polities and procedures

The Group invests in equities and other instruments for the long term in the pursuit of the Investment Objectives set out on
page 24. The Group is exposed to a variety of risks that could result in either a reduction or an increase in the profits available for
distribution by way of dividends.

The principal risks the Group fates in its portfolio management activities are:
® Market risk {comprising price risk, currency risk and interest rate risk)

@ Liquidity risk

® Credit risk

The Manager’s policies and processes for managing these risks are summarised on page 25 and have been applied throughout the
year.
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued

11.1 Market price risk
By the very nature of its activities, the Group’s investments ate exposed to market price fluctuations.

Management of the risk
The Manager runs a diversified portfolio and reports to the Board on the partfolio activity and performance at each Board meeting.
The Board menitors the investment activity and strategy to ensure it is compatible with the stated abjectives.

The Group’s exposure to changes in market prices on its quoted equity investments, CFDs and investment property portfolic, was as

follows:
2021 2020
£000 £000
Irvestments held at fair value 1,400,516 1,155,295
CFD long gross exposure 146,001 56,728
TRS long gross exposure - 6,598

Concentration of exposure to price risks

As set out i the Investrment Policies on page 25, there are quidelines to the amount of exposure to a single company, geographical
region or direct property. These guidelines ensure an appropriate spread of exposure to individual of sectar price risks. As an
investment company dedicated 1o investment in the preperty sector, the Group is exposed to price movements across the property
asset class as a whole,

Price risk sensitivity

The faliowing table illustrates the sensitivity of the profit after taxation for the year and the value of shareholders” funds to an
increase or decrease of 15% in the fair values of the Group’s equity, fixed interest, CFD and direct property investments. The levei of
change is consistent with the illustration shows in the previous year. The sensitivity is based on the Group’s equity, fixed interest,
CFD and direct property expasure al each balance sheet date, with ali other variables held constant.

2021 2021 2020 2020
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
in fair in fair in fair in fair
value value value value
£°000 £000 £000 £000

Statement of Comprehensive Income - profit after tax

Revenue return (103) 103 n 77
Capital return 209,801 {209,8071) 173,817 (173,817)
Change to the prefit after tax for the year/shareholders' funds 209,698 {209,698) 173,740 (173,740)
Change to total earnings per Ordinary Share 66.08p (66.08)p 54.75p (54.75)p

11.2 Currency risk
A propartion of the Group's portfolio is invested in overseas securities and their Sterfing vatue can be significantly affected by
movements in foreign exchange rates.

Management of the risk

The Board receives a report at each Board meeting ¢n the propartion of the investment portfolio held in Sterfing, Eusos or other
currencies. The Group may sometimes hedge foreign currency movements outside the Eurozone by funding investments in averseas
secyrities with unsecured loans denominated in the same currency or through forward currency contracts.

Cash deposits are held in Sterling and/or Euro denominated accounts.
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11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued

Foreign currency exposure
At the reporting date the Group had the fotlowing exposure:
(Sterling has been shown for reference)

Sterling 28.0% 27.0%
Eurc 51.0% 53.0%
Swedish Krona 13.0% 11.0%
Other 8.0% 9.0%

The following table sets oul the Group’'s total exposure to foreign currency risk and the net exposure to foreign currencies of the net
maonetary assets and Habiities:

Swedish wo

sterling Krona EE:

2021 £000 £°000 E g

ZF
Receivabies {due from brokers, dividends and other income receivable) 49,462 10,668 561 299
Cash at bank and on deposit 22,853 4,339 650 1,272
Bank loans, lean notes and overdrafts (95,000) - - -
Payables (due to brokers, accruals and other creditors) (10,142) (1,031} - -
FX forwards (61,209) - 13,848 46,254
Total foreign currency exposure on net monetary items (94,036) 13,976 ) __1_5,659 47,825
Investments held at fair value 478,715 707,968 155,635 58,198
Non-curcent assets 686 - - -
Nana-current liabilities (15,000) (42,593) - -
Total curtency exposute 370,365 679,351 170,694 106,023

Swedish

Sterling Euto Krona Other
2020 £'000 £000 £'000 £000
Receivables (due from brokers, dividends and other income receivable) 31,552 27,495 634 113
Cash at bank and on deposit 25,602 11,922 962 1,643
Bank loans, loan notes and overdrafts (40,000) - - -
Payables (due to brokers, accruals and other creditors) (8,026) (6,076} - -
FX forwards (133,731) 62,014 22,525 43,583
Totai foreign currency exposure on net monetary items (124,603) 95,355 2411 45,639
Investments held at fair value 446,698 551,576 100,836 56,185
Non-current assets (15,108} {44,246} - -
Total currency exposure 306,987 602,685 124,957 101,824

Foreign currency sensitivity
The following table itlustrates the sensitivity of the profit after tax for the year on the Group’s equity in regard to the exchange rates
for Sterling/Euro and Sterling/Swedish Krona and other cufrencies.

it assumes the foltowing changes in exchange rates:
® Sterling/Euro +/- 15% (2020:15%)

@ Sterling/Swedish Xrona +/- 15% (2020:15%)

@ Sterling/Other +/- 15% (2020:15%)
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued
Foreign currency sensitivity continved
If Sterling had strengthened against the currencies shown, this would have had the foliowing effect:
Year ended March 2021 Year ended March 2020

Swedish Swedish
Euro Krona Euro Krona Other
£°000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000

Statement of Comprehensive tncome -
profit after tax

Reveque return (2,726) (589} {250) (3,016) {340) (99)
Capital return (83,243) (20,269) (7,579) {71,091) (13,132 737D
Change to the profit after tax for the

yeaifshareholders’ funds (85,969) (20,858) {7,829) {74,107) {13,472) (7,416)
Change to total eainings per Csdinary share {36.13)p {2993)p

If Sterling had weakened against the currencies shown, this would have the following effect:
Year ended March 202t Yeas ended March 2020

Swedish Swedish
Euro Krona Euro Krona Other
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Staternent of Comprehensive Income -
profit after tax

Revenue return 3.4 732 318 4,97 423 113
Capital retusn 124,633 27,440 10,262 97,685 17,780 9,909
Change to the profit after tax for the

year/shareholders’ furds 128,044 28,172 10,580 102,656 18,203 10,022
Change to total earnings per Drdinary share 52.56p 41.24p

11.3 Interest rate risk
Interest rate movements may affect:

@ the fair value of any investments in fixed interest securities;

@ the fair value of the loan notes;

® the level of income receivable from cash at bank and on deposit;
@ the level of interest expense an any variable rate bank loans; and
® the prices of the underlying securities held in the portfolios.

Management of the risk

The possible effects on fair value and cash flows that could arise as & result of changes in interest rates are taken into account when
making investment decisions. Property companies usuatly have borrowings themselves and the level of gearing and structure of its
debt portfolio is a key factor when assessing the investment in a property company.

The Group has fixed and has had variable rate barrowings during the year. The interest rates on the loan notes is fixed, details are
set out in note 13. In addition to the loan notes the Group has unsecured, multi-currency revolving oan facilities which carry variable
rates of interest based on the currencies drawn, plus a margin. These facilities total £130,000,000 (2020: £110,000,000).
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11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued

Management of the risk continued

The Manager considers both the level of debt on the balance sheet of the Group (i.e. the loan notes and any bank loans drawn)
and the “see-through” gearing, taking intc account the assets and liabilities of the underlying investments, when considering the
investment partfoli. These gearing levels are reported regularly to the Board.

The majority of the Group’s investment portfolio is non-interest bearing. As a result the Group’s financial assets are not directly
subject to significant amounts of risk due to fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest rates.

interest rate exposure
The exposure at 31 March of financial assets and financial liabilities to interest rate risk is shown by reference to:

® floating interest rates: when the interest rate is due to be re-set;

@ fixed interest rates: when the financial instrument is due to be repaid.

The Group's exposure to floating interest rates on assets is £80,027.000 (2020: £79,651,000).
The Group’s exposure 10 fixed interest rates on liabilities is £152,593,000 (2020: £99,246,000).
The Group’s exposure to floating interest rates on liabilities is £nil (2020: £nil).

1YIINY NIH

Interest receivable and finance costs are at the following rates:
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@& Interest received on cash balances, or paid on bank overdrafts, is at a margin over LIBOR or its fgreign currency eguivalent
(2020: same).

@ [nterest paid on borrowings under the multi-currency loan facilities, is at 3 margin over LIBOR or its foreign currency equivalent for
the type of loan {2020: same).

@ The finance charges on the €50m and £15m loan notes afe at interest rates of 1.92% and 3.59% fespectively.

The year end amounts are not representative of the exposure to interest rates during the year as the level of exposure changes
as investments are made in fixed interest securities, borrowings are drawn down and repaid, and the mix of boirowings between
floating and fixed interest rates changes.

interest rate sensitivity
A change of 2% on interest rates at the reporting date would have had the following direct impact:

2021 207 2020 2020

2% 2% 2% 2%

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

£000 £°000 £000 £°000

Change to shareholders’ funds (1,176) 1176 (317) 317
Change to total earnings per Ordinary share (0.37)p 0.37p {0.10)p 0.10p

This fevel of change is not representative of the year as a whole, since the exposure changes throughout the period.

This assessment does not take into account the impact of interest rate changes on the market value of the investments the
Group hoids.

11.4 Liquidity risk
Unquoted investments in the partfolio are subject to Hiquidity risk. The Group held one unquated investment at the year end {see
11.6 below).

In certain market conditions, the liquidity of direct property investments may be reduced. At 31 March 2021, 6% (2020: 8% of the
Group’s investment portfolio was hetd in direct property investments.

Al 31 March 2021, 94% (2020: 92%) of the Group’s investment portfolio is held in listed securities which are predominantly
readily reatisable.

Bank loan facilities are short term revolving loans which it is intended are renewed or replaced but renewal cannot be certain. Loan
notes of €56m and £15m are repayable in February 2026 and 2031 respectively.

The table shows the timing of cash cutflows to settle the Group's current liabilities together with anticipated interest costs.
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11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued
Debt and Financing maturity profile

Within Within Within within Within More than

1year 1-2years 2-3years 3-dyears 4-5years 5 years

At 31 March 2021 £000 £000 £°000 £000 £000 £000
8ank loans® 95,000 - - - - - 95,000
Lean notes - - - - - 57,593 57,593

Projected interest cash flows on

bank and loan notes 2,178 1,356 1,356 1,356 1,356 2,693 10,295
Actiuals and deferred intome 10,719 - - - - - 19,719
Other creditors 110 - - - - - 110
108,007 1,356 1,356 1,356 1,356 60,286 173,717

Within Within Within within within  more than
1year T2years  2-3years  3-4years  4-5years 5 yeais Total
At 31 March 2020 £000 £'000 £000 £000 £'000 £000 £'000
Bank loans 40,000 - - - - - 40,000
Loan notes - - - - - 59,246 59,246

Projected interest cash flows on

bank and loan notes 1388 1,388 1,388 1,388 1,388 4,081 o2
Accruals and deferred income 3,812 - - - - - 3,812
oOther creditors 294 - - - - - 294
45,494 1,388 1,388 1,388 1,388 63,327 114,373

* A £60m muiticurrency facifity with RBS was renewed for one year in February 2021, £50m {2020: £10m) was drawn an this facility at the balance sheet date. A
£30m one year facility with ING Luxembourg was renewed in July 2020. £30m (2020: £30m) was drawn on this facility at the balance sheet date. A £40m facility
was renewed with iCBC in November 2020. £15m (2020: Enil) was diawn on this facilily at the balance sheet date.

Management of the risk

The Manager sets guidelines for the maximum exposure of the portfolio to unquoted and direct property investments. These are set

out in the Investment Policies on page 25. All unquoted investments with a value over £1m and direct property investments with a

value over £5 millicn must be approved by the Board for purchase.

The Company maintains regutar contact with the banks providing revolving facilities and renewal discussions commence well ahead
of facility renewal dates. In addition the Company is exploring new opportunities for the provision of debt on an angoing basis.

1.5 Credit risk

The failure of a counterparty to a transaction to discharge its obligations under that transaction could result in the Group suffering
a loss. At the period end the largest counterparty risk, which the Group was exposed te was within Debtors and Cash and cash
equivalents where the total bank balances held with one counterparty was £53,134,000 (2020: £46,731,000 two counterparties).

Management of the risk

mvestment transactions are camied out with a number of brokers, whose tredit standing is reviewed periodically by the manager,
and limits are set on the amount that may be due from any one braker. {ash at bank is only held with banks with high quatity
external credit ratings.

Credit risk exposure
In summaty, compared to the amounts in the Balance Sheet, the maximum expesure to credit risk at 31 March was as follaws:

2021 2021 2020 2020

Balance  Maximum Balance  Maxirum

Sheet exposure Sheet exposure

£'000 £000 £'000 £'000

Debtors 60,990 60,990 60,094 60,094
Cash and cash equivalents 29,114 2914 40,129 40,129
90,104 90,104 100,223 100,223
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11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued

where the receivables of the Group are exposed to credit risk, the requirement far impairment is assessed at each year end, For
all seceivables, in the table above, no impairment has been recognised in relation to expected credit losses as the impact of these
losses is immaterial as at 31 March 2021 (31 March 2020: no impairment).

Offsetting disclosuses

In order to better define its contractual rights and to secure rights that will help the Group mitigate its counterparty risk, the Group may
enter into an ISDA Master Agreement or similar agreement with its 07C derivative contract counterparties. An ISDA Master Agreement
is an agreernent between the Group and the counterparty that governs OTC derivatives and foreign exchange contracts and typically
contains, among other things, collateral posting terms and netting provisions in the event of a default and/or termination event. Under
an ISDA Master Agreement, the Group has a contractual right to offset with the counterparty certain derivative financial instrurnents
payables and/or receivables with tollaterat held and/or posted and create one single net payment in the event of default including

the bankruptcy or insolvency of the counterparty. Howeves, bankruptcy or inselvency laws of a particular jurisdiction may impose
restyictions on or prehibitions against the right of offset in bankruptcy, insolvency or ather events.

The disclosures set sut in the following tables include financial assets and financial liabilities that are subject to an enforceable
master netting arrangement 0 similar agreement.

At 31 March 2021 and 2020, the Group’s derivative assets and liabilities (by type and counterparty) are as follows:

IVIINYNIE

Year ended 2021 Year ended 2020

w
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Net amounis Net amounts
of financial of financial
assets/ assets/
liabilities liabilities
presented in presented in
the Balance Cash collateral the Balance  Cash collateral
Sheet pledged Sheet pledged
£000 £000 £000 £'000

CFD positions:

Goldman Sachs (11m) 50,913 8,698 3,525
(1) 50,913 8,698 31,525
TRS position: o o

ING - - (3,808) 7,997
- - (3,508) 7,997

Fx forward contracts: o
Bank of Montreal - - {2,582) -
Barclays - - (2,398) -
BNP Paribas - - {620) -
HSBC (1,107) - - -
Westpac - - (9) -
7(71,107) o - (5,609) -

11.6 Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities

Except for the loan notes which are measured at amortised cost {refer to Note 13), the fair values of the financial assets and
financial liabilities are either carried in the balance sheet at their fair value {investments) or the balance sheet amount is a
reasonable approximation of fair value (deblors, creditors, cash at bank and bank overdrafts, accruals and prepayments).

The fair values of the listed investments are derived from the closing price or last traded price at which the securities are guoted on
the Londan Stock Exchange and other recognised exchanges.

The fair value of contracts for difference are based on the underlying fisted investment value as set out above and the amaunt due
frorn or to the counterparty under the contract is recorded as an asset or liability accordingly, which fs disclosed in Note 13 for the
current year.

The fair values of the properties are derived from an open market (Red Book) valuation of the properties on the Balance Sheet date
by an independent firm of valuers (Knight Frank).

There was one unquated investment at the Balance Sheet date, Atrato, with a total value of £1,468,000 (2020: Atrato, £682,000).
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11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued
#n the Parent Company accounts there are investments of £43,312,000 in unlisted subsidiaries which are classitied as level 3.

The arnounts of change in fair value for investrments including net returns on CFDs recognised in the consolidated profit or loss for
the year was a gain of £214,372,000 (2020: loss of £198,698,000).

11.7 Capital management policies and procedures
The Group’s capital management objectives are:

@ to ensure that it will be able to continue as a going concem; and
@ to maximise the total return to its equity shareholders through an appropriate balance of equity capital and debt.

The equity capital of the Group at 31 March 2021 consisted of called up share capital, share premium, capital redemption
and revenue resefves tatalling £1,326,433,000 (2020: £1,136,453,000). The Group does not regard the fnan nates and loans as
permanent capital.

The loan notes agreement requires compliance with a set of financial covenants, including:

® To13! Borrowings shall not exceed 33% of Adjusted Net Asset Value;

@ the Adjusted Total Assets shall at all times be equivalent to & minimum of 300% of Total Borrowings; and
@ the Adjusted NAV shall not be tess than £260,000,000.

12 DEBTORS

Group Company Group Company
2on 20 2020 2020
£'000 £000 f'o0¢ £'000

Amounts falling due within one year:

Securities and properties sold for future settlement 267 267 5,020 5,020
Tax recoverable 4231 3,761 1,414 1,292
Prepayments and accrued income? 5176 5176 5,082 5,082
Amounts receivable in respect of Contracts for Difference - - 8,698 8,698
CFD margin cash 50,913 50,913 31,525 31,525
TRS margin cash - - 7,997 7,997
Other debtors 403 403 358 358

) 60,590 60,520 60,094 59,972

Non-cufrent assets
Deferred taxation asset 686 686 - -

*includes arnounts in respect of rent free periods.
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13 CURRENT AND NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Group Company Group Company
201 201 2020 2020
£'000 £'000 £000 £000

Amounts falling due within one year:

Bank loans and overdrafis 95,000 95,000 40,000 40,000

Securities and properties purchased for future settlement 194 194 5,975 5,975

Amounts due to subsidiaries - 42,880 - 50,342

Amounts payable in respect of Contracts for Difference 111 11 - -

Amounts payable in respect of Total Return Swap - - 3,808 3,808

Tax payable 9 9 213 213

Accruzls and deferred income 10,719 10,685 3,812 3,783

Foreign exchange forward contracts for settlement 1,107 1,107 5,609 5,609 P

Other creditors 10 104 294 286 % g
107,280 150,120 591 110,016 "_% §

Non-current liabilities:

1.92% Euro Loan Notes 2026 42,593 42,593 44,246 44,246
3.59% GBP Loan Notes 2031 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000
Deferred taxation - - 108 108

57,593 57,593 59354 59,354
Loan Notes

On the 10th February 2016, the Company issued 1.92% Unsecured Euro 50,000,000 Loan Notes and 3.59% Unsecured GBP 15,000,000
Loan Nates which are due to be redeemed at par on the 10th February 2026 and 10th February 2031 respectively.

The fair value of the 1.92% Euro Loan Notes was £42,732,000 (2020: £44,418,000) and the 3.59% GB8P Loan Nates was £15,215.000
(2020: £15,553,060) at 31 March 2021.

Using the IFRS 13 fair value hierarchy the Loan Notes are deemed to be categorised within Level 2.

The loan notes agreement requires compliance with a set of financial covenants, inciuding:

® Total Borrowings shall not exceed 33% of Adjusted Net Asset Value;

@ the Adjusted Total Assets shall at all times be equivalent to a minimurm of 300% of Total Barrowings; and
@ the Adjusted NAV shall not be less than £260,000,000.

The Company and Group complied with the terms of the loan notes agreement throughout the year,

Multi-currency revolving loan facilities
The Group alse had unsecured, multi-curiency, revolving short-term loan facilities totalling £130,000,000 (2020: £110,000,000) at
31 March 2021. At 31 March 2021 £95,000,006 was drawn on these facilities (2020: £40,000,600).

The maturity of these facilities is shown in notes 11.3 and 11.4.

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST 93



Notes to the Financial Statements continued

13 CURRENT AND NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES continued
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

tongterm  Short term

debt debt
Group and Company £'000 £'000
Opening liabilities from financing activities at 31 March 2020 59,246 40,000 99,246
Cash flows:
Drawdown of bank loans - 55,000 55,000
Movement on foreign exchange {1,653) - (1,653)
Closing liabilities from financing activities at 31 March 2021 57,593 95,000 152,593

14 CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL

ordinary share capital
The balance classified as Ordinary share tapital includes the nominal value proceeds on the issue of the Ordinary equity share
capital comprising Ordinary shares of 25p.

Issued, allotted
and fully paid

Number £000
Ordinary shares of 25p
Al 1 April 2020 317,350,980 79,338
At 31 March 2021 317,350,980 79338

The vaoting rights are discfosed in the Report of the Directors on page 43.
During the year, the Company made no market purchases for cancellation af Crdinary shares gf 25p each (2020: nong).
Since 31 March 2021 ne Ordinary shares have been purchased and cancelled.

15 SHARE PREMIUM ACCOUNT AND CAPITAL REDEMPTION RESERVE

Share premium account
The balance classified as share premium includes the premium above nominal value from the proceeds on issue of the equity share
capital comprising Ordinary shares of 25p.

Capital redemption reserve
The capital redemption reserve is used to record the amount equivalent to the nominal value of purchases of the Company's own
shares in order to maintain the Company's capital.

16 RETAINED EARNINGS

Group Company Group Company

201 2021 2020 2020

£000 £'000 £000 £'006

Investment holding gains 335,322 360,663 206,072 238,531
Realised capital reserves 757,418 731,167 691,148 664,465
1,092,740 1,091,830 897,220 902,996

Revenue reserve 67,222 68,132 72,762 66,986
1,159,962 1,159,962 969,982 969,982

Group investment holding gains at 31 March 2021 include a £143,000 gain (2020: £643,000 loss) relating to unlisted investments and
gains of £45,201,000 (2020: £51,882,000 gains) relating to investment properties.

Company investment holding gains at 31 March 2021 include gains of £70,685,000 (2020: £83,597,000) relating ta unlisted and
subsidiary investments with a £44,061,000 revaluation gain (2020: £50,742,000) relating to investment properties. Dividends are
only distributable from the revenue resesve.
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17 DIVIDENDS

Year ended Year ended
31 march 31 March
201 2020

£000 £'000

Amounts recognised as distributions to equity holders in the year:

Final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2020 of 8.80p 27,927 21,292
(2019: 8.60p) per Ordinary share
Interim dividend for the year ended 31 March 2021 of 5.20p

(2020: 5.20p) per Ordinary share 16,502 16,502
44,429 43,794

Amounts not recognised as distributions to equity holders in the year:
Proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2021 of 9.00p
(2020: 8.80p) per Ordinary share 28,562 27927

The final dividend has not been included as a liability in these financial staterents in accordance with 1AS 10 “Events after the
Balance Sheet Date”.
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Set out below is the total dividend to be paid in respect of the year. This is the basis on which the requirements of 5.1158 of the
Corporation Tax Act 2010 are considered,

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
20271 2020

£000 £'000

Interim dividend for the year ended 31 March 2021 of 5.20p

(2020: 5.20p) per Ordinary share 16,502 16,502

Proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2021 of 9.00p
{(2020: 8.80p) per Ordinary share 28,562 27,927
45,064 44,429

18 COMPANY STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the Company has not presented its own Statement of Comprehensive
Income. The net profit after taxation of the Company dealt with in the accounts of the Group was £234,40%,000 (2020: £148,006,000
loss).

19 NET ASSET VALUE PER ORDINARY SHARE

Net asset vafue per Ordinary share is based on the net assets attributable to Ordinary shares of £1,326,433,000 {2020
£1,136,453,000) and on 317,350,980 (2020: 317,350,980) Ordinary shares in issue at the year end.

20 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
At 31 March 2021 the Group had capital commitments of £144,000 (2020: £132,000) but no contingent liabilities (2020: nil).
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

21 SUBSIDIARIES
The Group has the following principal subsidiaries, all of which are tegistered and operating in Scotland, England and Wales:

Name Req. Number Principal Activities
New England Properties Limited 788895 Non-trading company
The Colonnades Limited 2826672 Non-trading company
Showart Limited 2500726 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties Residential Developments Limited 2365875 Non-trading company
The Property Investment Trust Lid 2415846 Non-trading company
The Real Estate Investment Trust Limited 2416015 Non-trading company
The Terra Property investment Trust Limited 2415843 Non-trading company
Trust Union Property Investment Trust Limited 2416017 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties (Number Five) Lirmnited 2415839 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties (Nurnber Six) Limited 2416018 Non-trading company
Tiust Union Properties (Number Seven) Limited 2415836 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties {(Number Eight) Limited 2216019 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties (Number Nine) Limited 2415833 Non-trading company
Trust Union Propesties (Number Ten) Limited 416021 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties {Number Eleven) Limited 2415830 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties (Number Twelve) Limited 2416022 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties {Number Thirteen) Limited 2415818 Naon-trading company
Trust Union Properties (Number Fourteen) Limited 2416024 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties (Number Fifteen) timited 2416026 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties (Number Sixteen) Limited 2415806 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties (Number Seventeen) Limited 2416027 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties (Nurnber Eighteen) Limited 2415768 Naon-trading company
Trust Union Praperties (Bayswater) Limited 2416030 Property investment
Trust Union Peoperties (Cardiff) Limited 2415772 Neon-trading company
Trust Union Properties {Theale) Limited 241601 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties (Number Twenty-Two) Limited 2415765 Non-trading copany
Trust Union Properties (Number Twenty-Three) Limited 2416036 Non-trading company
Skillion Finance Limited 2420758 Non-trading company
Trust Union Finance {1991) Pic 2663561 Investment financing
FGH Developments Limited 1481476 Non-trading company
FGH Developments (Aberdeen) Limited (E18030) $C68799 Non-trading company
FGH (Newcastle) Limited 1466619 Nen-trading company
NEP (1994) Limited 977481 Non-trading company
New England Developments Limited 1385969 Non-trading company
New England Investments Limited 2613905 Non-trading company
New England Retail Properties Limited an2n Non-trading company
New England {Southern) Limited 1787371 Noa-trading company
Sapca One Limited 803540 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties Limited 134624 Non-trading company
Trust Union Finance Limited 1233998 Investment holding and finance company
TR Property Finance Limited 2415941 Investrnent holding and finance company
Trust Union Properties (South Bank) Limited 2420097 Non-trading company
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21 SUBSIDIARIES continued
The Company has provided a guarantee for each of these subsidiaries in order for them to take the exemption from the requirement
of an audit, in line with the requirements of 5.479A of the Companies Act 2006.

All the subsidiaries are fully owned and all the holdings are ordinary shares.

All companies have the registered office of 11-12 Hanaover Street, London, W15 1YQ with the exception of FGH Developments
(Aberdeen) Limited which is registered to 50 Lothian Road, Festival Square, Edinburgh EH3 SBY.

22 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS DISCLOSURES

Balances and transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties, have been eliminated on
consofidation. The balances are interest free, unsecured and repayable on demand.

2021 2020
£°000 £0060

Amounts due by the Company to subsidiaries per note 13

The Colonnades Limited 22,619 22,619 5z

TR Property Finance Limited 20,281 77143 § E

New England Properties Limited (20) (20) g F
42,880 50,342

Remuneration of key management personnel
The remuneration of the directors, wha are the key management personnel of the Company for each of the relevanl categories
spetified in 1AS 24: Related Party Disclosures is provided in the audited part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report on page 56.

Directors’ transactions
Transactions in shares by directors are considered to be a refated party transaction due to the nature of their role as directors.

movements in directors’ shareholdings are disciosed within the Directors’ Remunetation Report on page 57.
Dividends totalling £17.000 (2020: £10,000) were paid in the year in respect of shares held by the Company's directors.
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13

Glossary and AIFMD disclosure

1.0 ALTERNATIVE PERFORMANCE MEASURES

Alternative Performance Measures are numencal measures of the
Company’s current or historical pertormance, financal pasition or

cash flows, other than the financial measures defined ar specfied
in the Financial Statements

The measures defired below are considered to be Alternative
Performance Measures. They are viewed as particularly relevant
and are frequently quated for closed ended nvestment
companies

Total Retuin

The NAY Tatal Return 1s calculated by reinvesting the dividends
In the assets of the Company from the relevant ex-dividend
date Dividends are deemed to be reinvested on the ex dividend
date as this 1s the protacal used by the Company's benchmark
and other indices. The Share Price Total Return 1s calculated by
reinvesting the dividends 1n the shares of the Company from the
relevant ex-dividend date

NAV/share price per share at

31 March 2020 3581 3175
NAV/share price per share at

31 March 2021 11797 392.5
Change in year 16.7% 23.6%
Impact of dividends reinvested 4.0% 47%
To_tal Ret:m for-t_he yee;r 20.7% ”28.301;

Net Debt

Net debt 1s the total value of foan notes, Igans (including rotional
exposure to CRDS and TRSs) less cash as a proportion of net asset
value,

The net geaning has been calculated as follows

Loan notes 57,593 59,246
Loans 95,000 40,000
CFB positions {notional exposure) 146,000 56,728
TRS position {notional exposure) - 10,405
Less: Cash (29.M4) (40,129)
Less: Cash collateral (included
within ‘Cther debtars’ in Note 12) (50,913) (39.522)
218,567 86,728
Equity shareholders’ funds 1,326,433 1,136,453
Net gearing 16.5% 76%
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the Ongoing Charges ratio has been calculated in accordance
with the quidance 1ssued by the AIC as the total of investment
management fees and administralive expenses expressed as a
percentage of the average Net Asset values throughout the year
The defimition of admmistrative expenses does \nclude property
ielated expenses, the Ongoing Charges talculatian 1s shown
mnclusive and exclusive of these expenses 1o allow companson
of the direct administrative and management charges with

the majorty ot Investment Irusts which do not hold any direct
property investments

Including

Excluding
Perfosmance Performance
Fees Fees

£'000 £000

Praperty Costs
£'000

Management Fee

(note 5) 15,884 6,225 6,225

Other

Administrative

expenses (note 6) 1,835 1,835 1,835

Property Costs 270 270 -

Less: Non

recurring

expenses - - -
17,989 8,330 8,060

Average Net 1,283,051 1,283,051 1,283,051

Assets

Ongoing Charge 0 o o

2021 1.40% 0.65% 0.63%

Ongoing Charge 0.80% 0.61% 0.59%

2020

Ihe Ongaoing charges atio pravided In the Company’s Key
Information Document s calculated sn (ine with the PRIIPS
requlations which 1s different to the AIC methodology above

Key Performance Indicators

The Board assesses the performance of the Manager in meeting
the Trust’s abjective against a number of Key Performance
Indicators, these are cansideied (o be Alternative Performance
Measures. These are set out on pages 26 and 27 of this report
together with information about any calculations or the source cf
data
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2.0 GLOSSARY OF TERMS AND DEFINITIONS

AIFMD

The Alternative Fund Managers Directive 1s turopean legislatian
which created a European wide framewark far regulating the
managers of “aglternative investment funds” (AIFs) 1 s des:gned
to requiate any fund which i1s not a uClis (Undertakings for
Collective Investment 1n Transterable Secunties) fund and which
1S managed of Marketed in the EU

AlC
The Assouiation of investment Companies - the AiC 1s the
representative body for closed-ended investment companies

Alternative Performance Measure

A financial measure of financial performance of financial pasition
other than a financial measure defined or specified m the
accounting staternents

Discount

The amount by which the markel price of a share of an
investment trust 1s lower than the Net Assel valye per share
expressed as a peicenitage of the NAV per share

Key Information Document

Under the PRIiPs Regulations a skaort, consumer fnendly Key
information Document 15 required setiing out the key features,
risks, rewards and costs of the PRIP and 15 Intended to assist
Investors to better understard the Trust and make comparisons
between Jrusts

The document includes estimates of investrrent performarce
under a nurber of scenaras These calculations are prescribed
by the requlation and are hased purely or 1ecent hustonicat data
It 1s mportant for Investors to note that there 15 no judgement
apelied and these do notn any way reflect the Boarc or
Manager’s views

Key Performance Indicator "KPi”

AKPI" s 3 quantihiable measure that evaluates how successful
the trust s n meeling its abjectives The 11Lsts KPIs are
discussed or pages 26 and 27

MIFD

The Markets in hinanc al Insiczments Diective 1s the EU
‘eqislation that requlates firms who provide seivices to ¢l ents
aked to “financial instruments” (shates, bonds, units in ollectve
iovestrmert schemes and dernvatives) and the venues where
those instruments are traded

Net Asset Value [NAV) per shate
The vaiue of 10tal assets less llab.it es [ ncluding borowings)
civided by the number of shares in 'ssue

3.0 ALTERNATIVE INVESTMENT FUND MANAGERS
DIRECTIVE (“AIFMD™)

In accordance with the AIFMD, informaticn in relation to the
Company’s leverage and remuneration of the Company’s Alkm,

FoC Investment Business Limited, :s required to be made
avallable to investors Detalled regulatary disclosures including
thgse on the AIFM's remuneratior pelicy are avallable on the F&C
website or from F&C on request [he pumerncal remuneration
disclosures in relation te the AIFM's first relevant accounting
penod will be made availabie in due course,

Leverage
Lnder the AIFM Directive, 1t 1s necessary for AlFs to disclose therr
leverage n accordance with prescribed calculatiors.

Although leverage 1s often used as anather term for gearing,
under the AIFMD leverage Is specifically defined Two types of
leverage calculations are defined, the gross and commitment
methods. 1hese methods summarily express ieverage as a ratio
of the expesure cof the AIF against 1ts net asset value ‘txposure’
typically includes debt, the vaiue of any physical properties
subgect to mortgage, non-Sterling currency, equity or currency
hedging at absolute notional values (even those held purely

for nisk reducticn purposes, such as forward foreign exchange
contracts held for currency hedging} and cernvative expasure
(converted into the equivalent underlying positions). The
commitiment methad nets off derivat.ve instrurments, wh.e the
gross method aggregates them

1he table below sets out the current maximum permitted limit
and the actual level of leverage for the Company as al 31 March
2020

Gross Commitment

Leverage exposure method method
Maximum permitted limit 200% 200%
Aclyal 124% 8%

The leverage imits are set by the AlbM and approved by the
Board ang are .n line witk the himits set gutin the Company’s
Articles of Assocation

This shaLld not be confused with the gearing set out In the
Financial H:ghhights which 1s caculated under the traditicnal
methoc set oLt by the Assotiation of Investment Cormpanies [he
AFM IS 2 50 required Lo comply with the gearng parameters set
by the 3oard In refation t¢ borrowings
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nuat General Meeting

THIS NOTICE 15 PMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR
IMMEDIATE ATTENTION

If you are in any doubt as to the action you should take you
should seek your own advice from a stockbraker, sohotor,
accountant or other independent professional adviser who 1s
authorised under the fmancial Services and Markets Act 2000 f
you are resident in the United Kongdom, or if nat, from another
appropnately authonsed independent tinancial adviser.

If yau have sold or gtherwise transferred ali of your shares,
please pass this document, together with the accompanying
documents to the purchaser, or transferee, or to the person who
arranged the saie ar transfer so they can pass these documents
to the persen who now holds the shares.

Our preference 1s to welcame shareholders in person to our 2021
AGM, particularly given Lhe constraints we faced in 2020 due to
the COVID-19 pandemic. The Company is continuing to monitor
the current CQVID 19 legislation and public health guidance 1ssued
by the UK Government.

we have prepared for this AGM based on the anticipated status
of the UK Government’s roadmap cut of lockdown at the date
of the meeting. It s expected that the AGM will be able ta go
ahead as normal as a physical meeting

However, It may be necessary 1o adapt our arrangements to
respend to any changes in arcumstances, ncluding the passibrlity
of a delay to the further easing of restrictions Any changes to the
arrangements for the AGM (including any change to the location
of the AGM) will be communicated to shareholders before the
meeting, including through our website (www.tipraperty.com)
and via an RNS anncuncement

Ihe meeting will be conducted in accordance with legislation
and public health guidance in farce at the ime af the meeting
Deperding on the cucurnstances at the ime of the meeting, 1t
may be necessary 1o hmil physical altendance by shareheiders.
we regret that it will not be possible to provide refreshments
in the usual way. If new restrictions are impeosed, 1t 1s possible
that we will not be in a position lo accommodate sharehalders
beyond the mimimum required ta hald a quorate meeting.

Regardless of the current expectation for the physical meeting
1o proceed as planned, we strongly encaurage all shareholders
lo vote 10 advance by praxy and appoint the Chairman of the
meeting as theyr proxy rather than any other named person,
who may not be permitied 1o attend the AGM. This will ensure
that their vote will be counted if they (or any other proxy they
might otherwise appaint) are not able to attend the meeting, All
resoiutions will be voted on by a pall.

Sharehalders intending to attend the AGM are asked to register
their intentian as scon as practicable by email to the following
dedicated address- cnuk-trpropertyinvestment@linkgroup co.uk

Shareholders who are not able or de not wish to attend the
meeting in person (regardless of an easing of restrictions) will be
able to watch a live wehcast of the meeting This welt in¢lude the
formal business of the meeting, the Manager's presentation and
questions and answers The webcast wili nol enable shareholders
to partiapate in the meeting o vole However, shareholders will
be inwited to submit questions through our website, by 12.00
noan an 26 July 2021 Questions of a very similar nature may be
grouped tagether to ensure the orderly running of the AGM
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Shaieholders are asked to cansult the website in the penod
leading up to the event where any restrictians or changes will
be set out and the format detailed when we know what will be
pefmitted at that time

Notice 15 hereby given that the Annual General Meeting of

TR Praperty Investment Irust pic {the "Company”) will be held
at 2 30 pim on 27 July 2021 at the Reyal Automobile Club, 89/91
Pall mall, London SW1Y SHS for the purpose of transacting the
following business

To consider and, if thaught fit, pass the following Resoiutions,

of which Resoiutions 1t 11 will be propased as Urdnary
Resolutions and Resolutions 12 to 14 shall be proposed as Special
Resolutions.

To recelve the Repart of the Birectors and the Audited
Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2021.

To approve the Directors” Remuneration Report {other than the
part containing the Directers’ remuneration policy) for the year
ended 31 March 20271

1o declare a final dividend of 9.00p per Ordinary share
Io re-elect Siman Marrisan as a Director

To re-efect David Watson as a Directar.

1o re-elect Im Giilbanks as a Director

To re-elect Kale Bolsover as a Director

To re-elect Sarah-Jane Curtis as a Director.

10 re-appoint KPMG LLP (the "Auditor®) as Auditors of the
Company to hold office until the canclusion of the next Annual
Genesal Meeting of the Company

lo authorise the Directors to deterrnine the remuneration aof
the Auditors

SPECIAL BUSINESS

Grdinary resolution

© THAT i substitution for all such existing authorniues, the
Duectors be generally and uncondiionslly authorised
pursuant 1o and in accordance with Section 557 of
the Companies Act 2006 {the "Act”) to exeicise all
the powers of the Company to aliot shares in the
Campany and lo grant nghts to subscribe for, or Lo
convert any secunty nto, shares 1n the Company up 1o
a nominal value of £26181,455 (being approximately
33% of the total 1ssued share capital of the Company
as at the latest practicabie date pnor to publication of
this Natice) provided that this authonty shall expire
at the date o! the rext Annual General Meeling of
the Company {0, 1l earlien, al the dose of business
on 27 October 2022), save that the Company shall
be entitled to make offers or agreements before the
expary of this authonty which wauld or might require
shares 1o be allotled o nghts to be granted after
such expiry and the Direclars shall be enttied ta allol
shares and grant rights pursuant Lo any such offers ar
agreements as If this authonty had not expired
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SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS

THAT

(3) (in substitution for all such existing authorities and subject
to the passing of Resolution 11 set out above) the directars
be empowered pursuant to Section 570 and Section 573 al
the Act 1o allat equity secunities (3s defired in Section 566G
of the Act) for cash pursuart lo the authorty conferred
by Resclution 11 ahave and/or to sell shares held by the
Company as treasury shafes for cash as if Section 561(1) of
the Act did not apply te any such allotment, provided that
this power shall be Limited to:

(1) the allotment of equity secunties and sale of treasury
shares for cash i connection with an offer of, or
invitation to apply for, equily securities:

(23} to shareholders In proporhon (as nearly as may be
practicable) to their existing holdings, and

(bb} to holders of other equity secunties, as recuired
by the nghts of those secunities, or as the 3oard
otherwise considers necessary,

and so that the Board may impose any imits or restrictions
and make any artangements which 1l considers necessary
ar appropriate to deal with treasury shares, fractional
enbitlements, record dates, legal, requlatory or pract«cal
problems in, or under the igws of, any lermtory or any other
ratter, and

{1} 10 the case of the authonty granted under Resoiution
1 and/or in the case of any sale of treasury shares
for cash, to the allotiment (otherwise than under
paragraph {1} above) of equity securities or sale of
treasury shares up to 8 nominal amount of £3,966,887
(being approximalery 5% af the total ssued share
capital of the Company as at the latest practicable date
prior to publication of the rotice of meeting),

(b) the power given by this resolution shall expire upon the
expiry of the avthanty canferrad by Resoiution 11 above,
save that the Compary shali be entitied to make offers cr
acreements belore the expiry of such power which would
or might require equity securties ta be allatted after such
expiry ard the directors shall be entitled to allot eguity
securities pursuant to any such offer ar agreement as if the
power conferred hereby had not expired,

IHAT the Company ne ard 15 hereby genera'ly and
uecorcitionally authansed 19 accorcance wath Secson 707
af the Act o make market purchases (aitnin the
Tearing of Section 593(4) of the Act) of Ordinary shares
of 25F e4ch 15 tne capital of e Compans or Such terms
TR

ag I suct manner as the directons mey,
ame cetermine provider tha

(a3 the rax.mure number of Crdrary shares Fereby
authorisec tg be purchased shal be "4539¢% of the
Corrpany's Or¢'rary shares Ir ssue at the date cf the
AnnLa, Gereral Meetirg (equiva'ent tc 47576.5°1 Gre nary
shares of 25p each at 3 june 2027, the :atest pract cabe
gate proor to publicaticr ¢f s hot e,

(b} the maximum price (exclusive of expenses) which may
be paid for any such share shall not be more than the
higher of

{1} 105% of the average of the middie rmarket cuotations
for an Qrdinasy share as taken from the London Stock
txchange Daily Offical List far the five business days
immediately preceding the date on which the Company
agrees to buy the shares concerned, and

{11) the hugher of the price of the last independent trade
and the highest current iIndependent b:d for an Qrdinary
share in the Company an the trading venue where the
purchase is carnied oul at the relevant time;

(¢) the mimimum price {exclusive of expenses) which may be
paid for an Ordinary share shall be 25p, being the nominal
value per Grdinary share, and

(d)the authonity hereby conferred shall expire at the
conclusian af the Annual General Meeting of the Company
in 2022 (or, if eaclier, at the close of busmess an 27 October
2022, save that the Company shail be entitled 1o entel
into a contract ta purchase Ordinary shares which will, or
may, be compteted or executed wholly or partly after the
power expires and the Company may purchase Ordirary
shares pursuant to such contiact as if the power conferred
hereby had not expired

IRAL with effect from the condlusion of this meeting,

the Articles of Association produced to the meeting and
nitialled by the Chairman of the reeeting for the purposes of
identif:cation be hereby approved ard adopted as the Articles
of Asscuation of the Company, in substitution for, and 1o the
exclusion of, the existing Articles of Assaciation
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Registered in Engand ho. 84492 31-72 Hanower Street

Londor
W15 1YQ
By Order of the Board
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NOTES TO THE NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENIRAL
MEETING

A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting
convened by the above Notice 15 enbitled to appoint one

of mare proxies to exercise ail or any of the nghts of the
member to attend, speak and vote in his or her place.
Sharehalders are strongly encouraged ta appoint the Chairman
af the meeting as their proxy, rathes than any ather named
persen who may not be permitted to attend the AGM In the
event of restrictions ar Imits an attendance A picxy need

nat be a shareholder of the Campany To appoint mare than
ane proxy, the proxy form should be photacopred and the
name of the proxy to be appointed indicated an each proxy
form together with the number of shares that such praxy 1s
appointed in respect of. Completion and submission of a proxy
instruction will not preclude a member from attending and
voting in persan at the AGM (subject to any restnctions on
physical attendance)

1o be valid any proxy form or other instrument appointing

3 proxy must be returned by post, by couner er by hand to
the Company’s Registiars, Computershare Investor Services
PLC, the Pavilions, Bridgwater Road, Bristal BS99 &2Y, or
alternatively, by going to www.eproxyappaintment.cam
and following the instiuctions provided All proxies must

be appointed by no later than 48 hours before the time of
the AGM In the case of joint holders, where more tharn ane
of the joint holders purports to appant a proxy, caly the
appointment submitled by the most seniar holder will be
accepled. Senionty 1s detesmingd by the order 1n which the
names of the joint holders appear in the Campany’s register
in respect of the joint halding (the first named being deemed
the maost senior)

In crder to be able to attena and vote at the AGM ar any
adjourned meeling (and also for the purpose of calculating
how many votes @ persor may cast), a person must have

fus or her name entered on the Register of Members of the
Company by 2 30 pm on 23 July 2027 (or 6 00 pm on the

date two days before any adjourned meeting) Changes to
entries on the Register of Members after this ime shall be
disregarded in determinng the rights of any person to attend
or vote at the meetirg

voting will be conducted on a pell at the Meeting. On a poll
vote every shareholder wili through their proxy have ane vate
for every ardinary share of which he or she 15 the hoider

Sharehalders should nate that it is possible that, pursuant to
requests made by sharehalders of the Company under Section
527 aof the Companies Act 2006, the Company may be required
to publish or a websile a statement setting out any matter
relating to. (1) the audit of the Cornpany’s accounts {including
the auditar’s report ang the conduct of the audit) that are to
be laid before the AGM, or (1) 2ny circumstance conrected
with ar auditor of the Company ceasing to hold eff:ce since
the previous meeting at which annual accounts and reports
were laid in accerdance with Section 437 af the Companies
Act 2006
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The Cornpany may not require the shareholders requesting
any such website publication to pay its expenses 10 complying
with Sections 527 or 528 of the Companies Act 2006 Where
the Cornpany 1s required to place a statement on a website
under Section 527 of the Companies Acl 2006, 1t must forward
the statement to the Company’s audior not later than the
lime when 1t makes the statement available on the website
The business which may be deall with at the AGM includes
any statement that the Company has been requirec under
Section 52/ of the Compames Act 2006 to publish on a
website.

Any coiporation which is @ member of the Company tan
appoint one or more corporate representatives wha may
exercise on its behalf all of its powers as a member provided
that they do not do so in relatton 1o the same shares

Ihe night to appaint a proxy does not apply to persons whose
shares are held on their behalf by ancther person and who
have been nominated to receive communication from the
Company in accordance with Section 146 of the Companies Act
2006 ("nominated persons”) Nominated persens may have

a nght under an agreement with the registered shareholder
who holds shares on their behalf ta be appointed (or to

have someone else appointed) as a proxy Alternatively, If
nominated persans do not have such a nght, or do not wish
to exercise i, they mdy have a nght under such an agreement
to give instructions to the person holding the shares as to the
exercise of voting nghts

CREST members who wish to appoint 3 proxy of proxies
through the CREST etecironic proxy appointment service

may do so for the AGM to be held on 27 July 2621 and any
adjournment(s) thereof by using the procedures described in
the CREST Manual CRESI personal members of other CREST
sponsored members, and those CREST members whao have
appointed a voling service provider should refer to their CRESI
sponsors of voting service provider(s), who will be able to
take the appropnate action an their behalf

In order for 2 proxy appaitment or wstiuction made by
means of CREST 1o be valid, the appropriate CREST message

(3 "CRESI Proxy instruction”) must be properly authenticated in
accordance with Euroclear UK & Iretand Limited's specifications
and must contain the information required far such
Instructions, as descrbed in the (REST Manual The message
must be transrmitted so as to be received by the Company’s
agent, Computershare Investor Services PLC (CREST Particpant
ID. 3RASQ), no iater than 48 hours before the time appoirted
for the meeting +or this purpase, the tme af receipt will

be taken to be the tme (as determined by the tme stamp
applied to the message by the CREST Application Host) from
which the Campany's agent 1s abie to retrieve the message by
enguiry ta CREST m the manner prescribed by CREST.

CREST members and, where applicable, thewr CRESI sponsot ar
voting service provider should nate that turodear UK & Ireland
Limited does not make avatlable special procedures in CREST
tor any particular messages.
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Normal system timings and limitations will therefore apply

in relation ta the input of CREST Proxy Instructions. # 1S the
responsibdity of the CREST member concerned to take (or, if
the CREST member 1s 8 CREST personal mnember of sponsored
member or has appoirted a voting service provider, la procure
that his or her CREST sponsor or voimg service pravider

takes) such action as shall be necessary 1o ensure that a
message 1$ tansmitted by means of the (RESI system by any
particular ime In this connecticn, CREST members and, where
applicable, their CRESI sponsof of voling service provider are
referred i particuiar 1o thase sections of the CREST Marual
concerning practical hmitations of the CREST system and
ttmings. 1he Company may treal as invelid a2 CREST Pioxy
Instruction 0 the circemstances set outin Requlation 35(5)(3)
of the Uncertificated Securties Regulalians 2001

Any member attepding the meeting (subjedt to any
restrictions in place at the time of the meetng) has the nght
to ask questions The Compeny must cause to be answered
any such questicn relating to the business being dealt with al
the meeting but ng such answer need be qren i (a) to do so
would interfere unduly with the preparation for the meeting
or involve the disclosure of canfidential information, (b) the
answer has already been giver on & website in the form of an
answer ta a quest-on; o1 {¢) it 1s undesirable in the interests
of the Compary or the good order of the meeling that the
quest on be answered Questions of a very sumilar nature may
be grouped together to ensure the arderly rurning of the
AGM

A copy of this not.ce, and other information required by
sectior 311A of the Caompanies Act 2006, can be found at
wWww IIDIGRErty (om

Members satisfying the thresholds in sectior 338 af the
Camparies Acl 2006 may requie the Company ta give, Lo
members of the Compary entitied to receive nclice of (he
AGM, notice of a resoticn which those members interd to
rmove {and whith may pioperly be moved) at the AGM A
resclution may properly be moved af the AGM urrless

(3 it would, if passed, be neffect.ve (whether by reason of
any inconsistency with any enactment or the Company’s
corstitution or otherwise), (1) 11 s defamatary of any person;
or () 1tis frvo.ous of vexatious A request mede purstant
to this nght may be in Fard copy or e’ectronic form, must
:dertify the rescuticn of which rot.ce 1s ta be given, must
be authenhcated by tre person{s; making it and musl be
received by the Compary not iater than six weeks befare the
cate of the AGM

Members sat-stying the threshalds r section 338A of the
Campar-es At 2606 may request the Company to Inciude

in the bus ness (¢ be cea't with al tre AGM any matter

{other thap @ proposed resolubon) which may proper'y be
inciscec in the bus ness af ke ACM A matler imay propery
be inclucec in the business at the AGM upless (1) tis
defamatery of ary person, or (1} 115 frive.cus ¢r vexatious

A request mrade purseert to thes 1okt may Be n hard copy

cr eectror ¢ form, imust centify the matter to be wwoiuded
the busress, must be accempan eg By 2 stelemert setting
oLt the grouncs for the reguest, st be authenticated by tre
person(s) mak.rg it and must be recevec by the Compary not
iater thar s x wee<s before the date of the AGM

Biographical details aof the directars are showr or pages 38
and 39 af the Annual Reparl & Accounts

- As at 3 June 2021 (being the latest practicable day prior

to pubiication af this Notice), the ssued share capial of

the Company 15 317350,980 Ordinary shares of 25p each.
Therefaie, the total nurrber of voting nghts in the Company at
3 June 202115 317,350,980

. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee, the

Maragemenl engagement Commuttee, the Nomination
Committee, the New Articles of Assaciation and the Letters of
Appaintment far duectars will be avauable tar inspection tar
at least 15 minutes prior ta and during the Company’s AGM

- You may not use any elecironic address provided either in

this Netice o any related documents to communicate for any
purposes other than those expressly stated

". The Company may process personal data of attendees at the

Annual General Meeting 1his may include webcasts, photos,
recording and audio and video links, as well as other forms
of personat data. 1he Company shall process such personai
data in accordance with its privacy policy, which car found al
AHps //www trproperty cam/legal

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST
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Fxotanation ot Notice of Annual Gen

RESOLUTIONS 1, 2, AND 3: ACCQUNIS.
DIRECTORS REMUNERATION REPORT AND
DIVIGEND

Ihese are the resolutions which deal with the presentatian of
the audited accounts, the approval of the Direclors’ Remuneration
Report and the declaration of the final dividend

Ihe vote to apprave the Remuneration Report 15 adwisory only
and wilt not require the Campany ta alter any afrangements
detailed in the repart should the resolution not be passed

the Rnard s proposing a final dividend for the year ended

31 March 2021 of 900p per ordinary share_ If approved at the
AGM, the Company would pay the dividend on 4 August 2021
ta those shareholders on the Company’s register at the close of
business on 18 june 2027,

RESDLUTIONS 4, 5, 6, 7, AND 8: RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

These resolutions deal with the re election of Simon Marnsan,
Tim Gilibanks, David walsan, Kate Bolsover anc Sarah-jane
Curtis In accordance with the UK Corporate Governance Cade, all
directors will retire on an annual basis and have confirmed that
they will offer themselves for re-election

A pertormance evaluation has been completed and your Board
has determined that each of the directars continues 1o be
effective and demonstrates thewr commitment to their role

Iheir b-ographicat details, which are set out on pages 38 and

39 demanstrate how the Board has the appropnate balance

of skills, expenence independence and knowledge to lead the
Campany's long term sustainable success. Accordingly, the Boaid
unanimously recommencs their re-election

RESOLUTIONS @ AND 16: AUDITORS

These deal with the reappointment of the Audrtors, KPMG
LLP and the authansation tor the directors to determine their
remuneration

RESOLUTION 17 ALLDTMENT OF SHARE {APITAL

Our Board ronsiders it apprapriate that an authonty be grarted

to allat shares in the capital of the Company up to a maximum
nominal amaount of £26,445 315 (representing approximalely one
third af the Company’s 1ssued share capital as at 3 June 2021,
being the latest practical date prior to publication af this Notice of
the meeting) As at the date of this notice the Company does not
hold any shares in Lreasury

Ihe directors have no present intention of exercising this
authority and would only expect to use the autharnty if shares
could be issued at, or at a premium to, the Net Asset Va.ue per
share,

This authanty well expire at the earlier ¢f close of business
on 27 October 2022 and the conclusion of the Annual General
Meeting of the Cairpany to be held in 2022

12+ TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST
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RESOLUTION 12: DiSAPPLICATION Of STATUTORY
PRE-EMPTION RIGHTS

Ihis resolution would give the directors the authonty 1o allot
shares (o sell any shares which the Company elects to hald
i treasury) for cash withaut fust offening them to existing
shareholders in propertion ta their existing shareholdings

This authority would be hrmited ta allotments ar sales it
connection with pre-emptive offers and offers to halders of
other equity securities sf required by the nighls of those shares
or as the board gtherwise considers necessary, ar atherwise up
to an agqregale nominal amount of £3,%66,887 This aggregate
nominal amount repiesents 5% of the total issued share capital
of the Company as at 3 June 2021, the lalest practicable date
prai to publication of this Natice. In respect of this aggregate
nominal amount, the directars canfium thewr ntention to follow
the provisions of the Pre-kmptian Group's Statement of Principles
regarding cumulative usage of authonties within a rolling
3-year period where the Principles provide that usage in excess
of 7.5% should not take place without prior consultation with
shareholders.

Ihe authonty will expire at the earlier of cfose of business on
27 October 2022 and the candlusion of the Annual Genera!
Meeting of the Company to be held in 2022.

RESOLUTION 13: AUTHODRITY TO MAKE MARKET
PUR{HASES OF THE COMPANY’'S ORDINARY
SHARES

At the AGM held in 2020, a special resoiution was proposed and
passed, qiving the diwrectors authority, until the conclusion of the
AGM 10 2021, to make market purchases of the Company’s own
Issued shares up to a maximum cf 14.59% of the 1ssued share
capital

Your Board 1s proposing that they shouid be given renewed
authority to puichase Ordinary shares in the market Your

Beard believes that to make such purchases 10 the market at
appropriate times and prices 1s a suitable method of enhancing
shareholder value, The Company would, within quidelines set
from trme to ume by the Board, make either a single purchase or
a series of purchases, when market conditions are suitable, with
the aim of maximising the benefits to shareholders

Where purchases are made at prices below the prevalling Net
Asset Value per share, this wiil enhance the Net Asset Value

far the remaining shareholders 1L s therefore intended that
purchases would onty be made al prices below Net Asset vaiue
Your Board considers that it will be most advantageous to
shareholders for the Company to be able to make such purchases
as and when 1t cansiders the iming to be favourable and
therefore does not propose to set a fimetable for making any
such purchases

The Companies {Acquisition of Gwn Shares) (Treasury Shares)
kegulations 2003 erable companies i the United Kingdom to
hold in treasury any of their own shares they have purchased
with 2 view to possible resale at 3 future date, 1ather than
rancelling them 1f the Company does re purchase any of 11
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shares, the directors de not currently infend ta hold any of the
shares re-puichased in treasury The shares so re-purchased will
continue to be cancelled

The Listing Rules of the UK Listing Authority fimit the maximum
price (exclusive of expenses) which may be paid for any such
share It shall not be mare than the higher of

(1) 105% of the average of the middie market quatations for arn
Crdinary share as taken from the London Stack kxchange Daily
Gfficial List for the five business days immediately preceding
the date on which the Company agrees to buy shares
concerned; and

{n)the tugher of the price of the last independent trade and
the h:ghest current independent bid for an Ordinary share in
the Company on the trading venue where the purchase 1s
canied out

The rimimum price to be paid wilf be 25p per Ordinary

share (being the nomenal value) The Listing Rules also Limst

a bsted company to puichases of shares representing up to
15% of 1ts 1ssued share capital In the market pursuant to a
general authonly such as this. For this reason, the Company 1s
hmiking its authonty to make such purchases 1o 14 99% of the
Company’s Ordinary shares 10 1ssue al the date of the AGM, this
Is equivalent to 47570511 Ordinary shares of 25p each (rominal
value £11,892,727) at 3 june 2021, the latest practcable date
prior to publization this Notice The authonty will last until the
Annual Gereral Meeting of the Company to be held in 2022

RESOLUTION T ADORPTION OF NEW ARTICLES OF
ASSCUIATION

Resolution 14 reiates tc the adoption of new Articles of
Assaciation (the “New Articles™) 1n order to update the
Company’s currert Articles of Assotiation {the "Current Articles”),
which were adapted on 14 December 2012 The New Articles
reflect developments in best practice, and provide additional
clanfication and flexibinty The man changes in the New Articles
are summajised In the Appendix on pages 106 and 107 Other
changes, which are af a minar, technical or clarfying nature have
nat been notec 1n the Appendix The New Ait tles showing all
the changes to the Curtent Articles are avallable for inspectian,
at www trproperty com and will also be availzbie at the Annyal
General Meeting

RECOMMENDATION

Your Board believes that the resalulions contanec in this Notice
af Annual General Meet-ng are in the best interests of the
Company ar:c sharehalders as @ whole ard recommends that you
vole in favour of therm as your Directors intend to da n respect of
their benef ¢ al shareha dings

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST
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APPENDIX

Further information and Expianatory notes regarding
amendments to the Company’s articles of association

Sigma Shares and Defented Shares

The New Articles amend the Current Articles ta remaove
provisians and references refating to Sigma Shares and Ceferred
Shares. This reflects that on 14 Gecember 2012 ali Sigma Shares
were consolidated and redesignated as Ordinary Shares, and
the resulting Deferred Share was purchased by the Company far
cancellalion The Company now has a singte class of Ordinary
Shares

Untraced sharehoiders

The New Articles amend the position in relation to untraced
sharehoiders Rather than requinng the Company to take out
two newspaper advertisements, the New Articles require the
Company o use reasonable eflorts to trace the shareholder
‘Reasonable efforts’ to trace 2 shareholder may include, 1f
considered appropriate, the Company engaging a prafessionai
asset reunification company or other traang agenlt to search far
a sharehalder who has not kept thew shareholder details up to
date

In addimion, the New Articles provide that money from the sale
ot the shares of an untraced sharehoider will be farfeited 1f not
daimed after twa years, rather than six years

Ihese changes reflect best practice and pravide the Company
with appropniate flexibility in connection with lecating untraced
shareholders

Sub-division of shaies

The New Articles clanfy that any shares resulting from a sub-
division of the Campany’s existing shares may, m additor to
having any preference or advantage as compared with the
Company’s other shares, atso have deferred ar other nghts This
change makes administering any sub-divisian of shares mare
straightforward.

Operation of general mestings

The New Articles contain specific provisions to danfy thal the
Campany can hold "hybnd”™ general meetings (including annual
general meetings) and to set aut how such meetings are to
be conducted Under the New Articles, the Company may hald
“hybrid” general meetings In such a way that enables members
to attend and participate 1n the business of the meeting by
attending a physical location ar by attending by means of an
electronic facility veting at hybnid meetings will, by default, be
decded on a poll Hybnd meetings may be adjourned 1n the
event of a technological failure

1The New Articles allow the Company, where appropriate, tc make
changes to the arrangements for general meetings {Including the
intreduction, change or canceliation of electronic facilities) aftes
notice ot the meeting has been ssued. The Company may give
natice of any such changes in any manner considered appropnate
{rather than via an advertisement in twa natignal newspapers)
The New Articles also explicitly allow the Company to introduce
heaith and safely arrangements at :1s meetings

Ihese changes were introduced to provide the Board greater
flexibility to align with technoiogical advances, changes in
investor senfiment and evalving best practice, particularly ir ight

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

of the Cowid-19 outbreak and the uncertain duration of sacial
distancing measures and restrictions on gatherings The Board
believes that hybrid meetings will allow for greater shareholder
and stakeholder engagement over the coming years in a way
that 15 more convenient for all parties Absent exceptional
crcumstances, members of the Board intend to continue the
practice of attending general meetings of the Company in person
In line with the views expressed by the Invesiment Association
and Institutional Shareholder Services, the changes will nat
permit meelings to be held exclusively on an eiectronic basis, so
a physical meeting wiil stil be requred In deriding whether and
how to held a hybrid general meeting in future, the Company
will have reqard ta the views of sharehclders and institutional
governance hadies at the retevant tme as well as to relevant
guidance or codes of best practice.

The New Articles also specifically refer to the possibility of
satellite/multi-venue meetings, such as the use of overflow
rooms Satellite meetings are legally vahid even without such a
provisian but it has been added for clanty

These changes are pnmarnly contaned 1n articles 47 48, 50
and 53 1n the New Articles. A number of other consequential
amendments have been made ta the New Afticles

Dbjections or Errers ia Voting

In relation ta the statutory requirement that a proxy must vole
in accordance with any mstructions given by the member by
whom the proxy 15 appointed, the New Articles slate explicitly
that the company 15 not required to check that proxies and
corporate representatives have voted in accordance with thei
mstructions or that therr fallure to do so would vitiate the result
of a sharehoider vote.

Mumber of duecions
Ihe Wew Articles reflect the statutory minimum ol twao directors,
and introduce a maximum of 10 directors.

Reappointment of direciers

In line with the requirements of the UK Corporate Governance
Code, the New Articles require directors Lo retire (and should
they wish to remain in office, seek re-election) at each annual
general meeting. This requirement does not epply to directors in
their first year of appointment who were appainted in the period
between the AGM notice being 1ssued and the AGM 1tsell. This
confirms existing Company practice,

Direciors fees

The Current Articles provide that the aggregale of all fees paid

to directors shall not exceed £250 000 per annum Article 88 of
the New Articles increases this amount to £300,000 to reflect the
amount approved by iesalutior of the Company on 22 July 2014

Borroweng Powers

The New Articles include 1n the definition ef “borrowings” the
minonty properticn of moneys borrowed by @ member of the
group and owing to a partly-owned subsidiary undertaiing
(with "the mirenty propertion” meaming a proportion equal to
the proportion of the 1ssued share capital of a partly-owned
subsidiary undertaking which 1s nat attributabte to a member of
the group)
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forfeiture of unclaimed dividends

The Current Articles provide that if a dividend or ather payment
due to members has not been ctaimed for twelve years after
being declared or becorming due, it will be forfeited tc the
Company Article 122 of the New Articles reduces this peniod from
twelve 10 six years

Baymensy of dividends and other amounts

Ihe New Articles give the Board greater flexibility to determine
the appropriate method(s) 't pays dividends (and ather sums)
tc shareholders Ihis flexibibity witl help the Board take account
of gevelopments in market practice and keep down the
admnsstrative cost of making payments. the New Afticles

also provide that where a payment cannot be made because

a shareholder has not provided valid account detalls to the
company, that amount will treated as unclaimed untl the
sharehalder provides those detalls

fapitai Raserve

The New Articles remove Articie 132 1n the 0ld Artictes, which
was ncluded to ensure that the company qualifes as an
investment trust and 15 treated as an nvestment company
Following the madernisation af the investment trust regime and
amendments 1o legislation abohshing the restriction on the abinty
Lo distribuie capital profits, this provisicn is no longer necessary

Strateni repart ard supplemantary mateoas

The Companies Act 2006 and the Companies {Receipt of Accounts
and Repaits) Regulations 2013 allow the Compary 1o send a capy
af its strategrc report with supplementary maternal instead of

its full accounts to @ member who has elected or tacitly agreed
to receve these docurments, provided that the Company 15 not
prohibited from doing so inits arlicles Artcle 129 15 «ntended to
make It ¢lear there 15 no such prahibition shareholders should
note that they can atways view the full annual report an the
Company’s website ¢r request 3 hard copy from the Company's
reqistrar

Genuer Mautral Drafung
Ihe New Art tles amend the Current Articles s¢ that gender
neutral language 15 used

Gunargt

Other changes which are of a minar, technica or dlanfying nature
or whith have beer; made to remave provisiors n the Cuirent
Articles which dupl cate english company law are rot noted
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Ihe half year results are announced In late November The fuil
year results are arnounced in early June

R IR

the AGM is held e London in July

Py it
Dividends are usually paid on the Qrdinary shares as foliows:

Intenim- January
Final Auqust

PH R T ey

Dividends can be paid te shareholders by means of BACS
(Bankers' Automaled Cleanng Services); mandate forms for

this purpose are available from the Registrar Alternatively,
shareholders can wiite ta the Requstrar {the address 1s given on
page 108 of this report) to give their instructions, these musl
include the bank account number, the bank account title and the
sort code of the bank o which payments are 1o be made

IR Property Investment Trust plc offers sharehalders the
opportunity to purchase further shares in the Company thraugh
the GRIP Please note that following Brexit sharehoiders iir Eurcpe
are no longer able to paricpate in the DRIP. DRIP forms may

be obtained fram Computershare Investar Services PLC through
their secure webs te www investarcentre ca uk, ar by phoning
0370 7071694 Charges ¢o apply, dealing commission of 0 75%
(subject to a minimum of £2 50y Goverrment stamp duty of
0.5% also appties

Ihe market prices of the Company’s shares are published cally

in The tinancial Tirres Some of the informatior 1s publishec in
other leading newspapers The hinancial Fimes also shows figures
for the estimated Net Asset Values and the disecunts applicable.

ISIN GBOCOZ064097
SEDOL 0906409
Bloomberg RY LN

Reuters IRYL
Datastream [RY

2

Details of tha benchmark are grven in the Stetegic Repo- |
on page 24 of this Report anc Accounts The berchmark index s
pubiished daily and can be founc on 3loorrberg;

FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developec tuicpe Cappet Net Tole.
Return Index it Stering
Blcarrberg: TRCRAG ndex

VI R

Details of the market price and Net Asset Value of the
Ordinary shares can be found on the Company's website at
www trproperty com

shareholders who hold their shares in certificated form can check
their holdings with the Registrar, Computershare Investor Services
PLC, via www dnvestorcentre co uk. Please note thal to gain
dceess to your detalls on the Computershare site you will need
the holder reference number stated on the top left hand corner of
your share certificate.

ISR IREH LR SR )
Copies of this Report and Accounts and ather documents issued
by the Company are available from the Company Sectetary |f

needed, copies can be made available 1n a vanety af formals,
ncluding Bratlle, audio tape or larger type as appropriate

You can contact the Registrar, Computershare Investor Services
PLC, which has installed textphones to allow speech and hearing
impaired people who have thenr own textphone to comtact

them directly, without the need for an intermediate operator, by
ialling 0870 762 0005 Specially traired operators afe available
guring normal business haurs 1o answer quenes via this service

altematrvely, if you prefer to go through a 'typetalk’ operator
{povided by the Royai National Institute for Deaf People) you
should dial “8007 foilowed by the fumber you wish to dial.
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where notification has been provided in advance, the Company
will arrange for coples of shareholder communications to be
provided 1o the operatars of nominee accounts Nominee
investors may attend general meetings and speak at meetings
when invited ta do so by the Chairman

Upon a disposal of all or part of a shaiehalder's holding of
Ordinary shares, the impact on the shareholder’s capiial gains
tax base cost of the conversian to Sigma shares in 2007 and the
redesignation ta Ordinary shares in 2012 shouid be considered

In respect of the conversion to Sigma 1n 2007, agreement
was reached with HM Revenue & Customs ("HMRC™) (o base
the apportionment of the capital gains lax base cost on

the propertion of Qrdinary shares that were converted by a
shareholder into Sigma shares on 25 july 2007

therefare, If an Ordinary sharehatder converted 20% of their
existing Ordinary shares into Sigma shares on 25 July 2007, the
capital gains tax base cost of the new Sigma shares acquired
would be equal to 20% of the onginal capital gains tax base cost
of the Ordinary shares that they held pre-conversion Ihe base
cost of their remaining holding of Crdinary shares would then be
&0% of the onginal capital gains tax base cost of their Ordinary
shares held pre-conversion.

As part of the re-designation of the Sigma shares into Ordinary
shares in December 2012, a further shareholder's agreement
was reached with HMRC that a shareholders capital gains tax
base cost in their new Ordinary shares should be equivalent to
their capital gains base costin the pre-existing Sigma shares

{1 e therr capital gains base cost unger the existing agreement if
applicable).

If in daubt as to the consequences of this agreement with HMRC,
shareholders should consult with their own professional advisors
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ihe shares of IR Property Investment Trust plc are histed and
traded on the London Stock kxchange Investors may purchase
shares through their stockbroker, bank or other financial
ntermediary

5 ! [P Ve i [ TN P oo g
R B (AL STRTTH NS RN RN

Investors may hold their mvestrment .n certificated form Qur
registrars, Cormputershare operate a dealing service which enables
investors to buy and sell shares quickly and easily online without
a broker or the nead to open a trading account. Alternatively the
Investor Centre allows investors to manage portfolios quickly and

securely, update details and view balances without annual charges.

Further details are available by contacting Computershare on 0370
707 1355 of visit www computershare.cam

TR Property Investrment Trust plc now offers sharehoiders the
opportuntty to purchase further shares in the company through
the Drvidend Re-investment Plan {"DRIP™) through the reqistrar,
Computershare Shareholders can obtain further information on
the CRIP through their secure website www.investorcentie (o ux,
ar by phoming 0370 707 16%4. Charges do apply Please note

that to gain access to your detads or register for the DRIP an the
Computershare site you will need the holder reference number
stated on the top feft hard corner of your share certificate

B T

A nurrber of banks and wealth management grganisations
provide Savings Schemes and 1SAs through which UK clierts car
ievest in IR Property Investment Trust plc.

ISA and savings scherre providers do charge dealing and other
fees for operating the accounts, and investors should read the
lerms anc Condilions provided by these companies and ersure
that the charges best suit their planned irvestment prafile Most
schemes carry annua- charges but these vary between provider
and procuct Where dealing charges apply, -0 some cases these
are applied as a percentage of funds nvested 2nd others as a
flat charge [he optimum way to hoid the shares will be drfferent
far eack investor depending upor the frequency and size of
investments to be made

Detatis are given below of twa providers ofierrg shares in
IR Property Investrnent Trust, but there are many other aptiors

Interactive irvestar provide and administer a range of self select
Investment piars, INC.UCINg tax advantaged :SAs anc SIPPs
(Selt-invested Perscnai Pension}, and Trading Accounts

Far maore informator, interactive Investor car be contacted on
£345 60/ 6007, of by wsiting https /fwwwi €0 uk/

Interactive nvestar offer investars © TR Property and other
investrrent trusts @ free opt-in anlire shaiehclcer votrg and
informaticn service thal ergbres investors to receive shareho der
cemmurn catiors gnd, if they wish to vate an the shareho dngs
heid in thesr accourt

IR Property is aiso or the rieractve super 60 r2led [t

BMG offer a rureber of Private Investor Plars, investiment Just
arc uncr SAs and Chitdren’s Ipvestrent Plans investrerts
can be mace as lurp sums or through regular savrgs For mare

information see inside the back cover BMO can be contacted an
0800 136 420, of visit www bmagam com

Please remember that the value of your investments and any
incame from them may go down as well as up Past performance
s not a guide to future perfarmance You may not get back

the amount that you invest if you are in any doubt as ta the
suitabdity of a plan or any investment avaitabie within a plan,
please take professional advice

o IR T EERTC IR P

R T A AT I
Fallowing the acquisition of Alliance Trust Savings by interactive
investor, ATS self-directed accaunts were lransferred ta the
interactive investor platform on 14th October 2019

In 2012 BNP Paribas closed dawn the part of therr business that
aperated Savings Schemes and ISAs. Investors were given the
choice of transferring thew schemes to Alliance trust Savings
("a1S") of to a provider of thew own chaice, of Lo close Lhelr
accounts and sell the holdings

I investars did not respond to the letters from BNP Paribas, their
accounts were transferred to ATS

Following the acquisition of Alliance Irust Savings by Interactive
investor, AlS self directed accounts were transferred to the
interactive investor platform on 14 Oclober 2015

Shareholders in a number of smvestment [Tusts have been
approached as part of a share fraud where they are informed

of an opportunity ta sell their shares as the company :3

subject to a takeover bid 1his 15 not rue and s an atlempt to
defraud sharehaiders The share fraud also seeks payment of a
“tommission” by shareholders to the parties carrying out the fracd

Sharehciders skould remain alert to this type of scam and treat
with suspicion any contact by telephone offering ar atlract:ve
irvestrent opportunity, such as a premium price for your shares,
or an attempt to canvince you that payment s required in ordel
to release g setilerment for your shares These frauds may also
offer to sel' your shares 'n companies which have itte or no
va.be ar may offer you bonus shares Ihese so callec “baller
oo™ scams ¢an also involve an attempl ta oblain your personal
and/or banking :nfarmaticn with which to comemit identity fraud

The caller may be friendsy and reassunrg or they may take a
mare urgent tone, encoLraging you to act quic<ly otherwise you
could ipse money or m-ss out on & deai

If you have beer contactec by an unacthor sed firm regarcing
your shares the FCA woule like 1o hear from you You can report
an LnaLthorsed frm using the FCA he.pine on G8O0 11 6768 o
by v-sit.ng the r website, which & so has cther usef rformatior,
at www fca crg uk

if you receive ary unschoted investment acvice make sure you
get the correct reme of the perscr and orgar sat.en if the cals
persist, harg up f you deal wth an unauthersed fism, you wint
ngt be elig tie to receve paymrent Lnder the kinarcial Serv ces

Compensatior Scheme

Please be advised that the Board or the Manager would
never make unsolicited telephone calls of such a nature to
shareholders.

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST
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You can use your ISA allowance to make an annual
tax-efficient investment of up to £20,000 for the
current tax year with a lump sum from £100 of regular
savings fram £25 a month. You can also transfer any
existing ISAs to us whilst maintaining the tax benefits.

BMOD JUNIOR ISA (JisA)

Atax efficient way to invest up to £9,000 per tax year
fwr g diild. Contributions start from £100 lump sum or
£25 a month. JISAs or CTFs with other providers can be
transferred to BMO.

BMO LIFETIME 1SA (LISA)

For those aged 18-39, a Lifetime iSA could help towards
purchasing your first horme or retirement in later life.
Invest up to £4,000 for the cusrent tax year and receive
a 25% Government bonus up to £1,000 per year. Invest
with a lump sum from £100 or regular savings from
£25 a month.

B0 CHILE TRUST FUND {1 F}

i your child already has a CTF you can invest up to
£9,000 per birthday year, from £100 lurnp sum or £25 3
month. CTFs with other providers can be transferred

to BMO.

M GENMLEAL INVISTVEN - AUTTUNY LGS
This is a fiexible way to invest in our range

of Investment Trusts. There are no maximum
contributions, and investments can be made from
£100 lump sum or £25 a month.

MO JUNIOH VESTAI NG ATLGUNT (i
This is & flexible way to save for a child in our

range of Investment Trusts. There are no maximum
contributions, and the plan can easily be set up under
bare trust (where the child is noted as the beneficiat
owner) or kept in your name if you wish to retain
control over the investment. investments can be made
from a £100 lump sum or £25 a morth per account.
You can also make additional lump sum top-ups at any
time from £100 per account.

The CI+ ard 354 accounts are opened by parents i the chids reine

aril they have sccess 1o e imeney at age 8 Lals mey be recorcec of
mon-torec for fraiming ard qua iy puiseses

BMO 9

e

Annual management charges and other charges apply according to
the type of plan

PR S S TR

£60+VAT
+ EA0+VAI
e E25+VAI
You ¢an pay the anruai charge from your accaunt, or by direct debit
{(in addition to any annual subscription hrmits)

G EERY DM
£12 per fund (reduced to £0 for deals placed through the online BMO

tnvestor Portal) for ISA/GIA/LISA/)IA and JISA. There are no dealing
charges an a CTF

Dealing charges apply when shares are bought or sold but not an the
reinvestrment of dividends or the investment of maonthly direct debits

Government stamp duty of 0 5% alsc applies on the purchase of
shares {where applicable).

The value of investmenis can go down as weil as up and yau may

not get back your anginat invesiment. Tax benefits depend on your
individual circumstances and tax allowances and rules may change
Please ensure you have read the full Terms and Canditions, Privacy
Policy and relevant Key Features documents before investing For
regulatory purposes, please ensure you have read the Pre-sales Cost &
Charges disclosure refated ta the product you are applying for, and the
relevant Key Information Dacuments (KIDs) for the investment trusts
you want to invest Into

Vietet
10 open a new BMQO plan, agply cnline at bmogam.com fapply
Gnline applicatians are not available if you are transfernng an exsting
plan with another prowider to BMO, or 1f you are applying for a new

plan in more than one name but paper applications are avallable at
bmomnvestments.co.uk/documents ar by cantacting 8MO

[P R

(all T
kmall- ;

Call, L :
Emdll; PR e e ¥,
By post

You can also Invest in the trust through onhine dealing platforms far
private investors that offer share deaiing and ISAs Campanies include:
Barclays Stockbrokers, EQi, Halifax, Hargreaves Lansdown,
HSBC, Interactive Investor, Lioyds Bank, The Share Centre

bmanvestments co uk
§  lacebook com/bmoinvestmentsyk

0345 600 3030, 900am - 5 00pm, weekdays, calls may be 1ecorded
or monitored for training and quality purpases

B0 Asset Manegement Lirmited 18 authensed erd iequ-gtec by the inanca {orduct Authonty and 15 a rrember ot 380 Global Asset Mardgeimert EMEA of which the

ulimate parert corrpany s 1he Bank of Montreal 737510156 05/2° UK
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